
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

Lori A. Wetvfr 29 HAZEN DRfVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-4501 1-800-S52-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-27 M827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Iain N. Wail

Interim Director

April 18. 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with North Country
Health Consortium (VC# 158557), Littleton, NH, to expand Community Health Worker (CHVV)
training and Coalition support services by exercising a contract renewal by increasing the price
limitation by $350,000 from $1.500,000 to $1,850,000 and by extending the completion date from
June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2025, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 86% Federal
Funds and 14% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 1, 2022, item #24,
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on December 7,2022, item #5A.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be Identified as sole source. In addition, the Department Is
extending the contract by twelve (12) months, which includes (1) month beyond the eleven (11)
months renewal time remaining. The Contractor provides expertise and experience with the
Community Health Worker training curriculum, a deep network of relationships with local
community health organizations, and a dedicated leadership role among New Hampshire's
Community Health Worker workforce.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing Community Health
Worker training and CHW Coalition support services. Community Health Workers bridge health
and social services for individuals, families, and communities: assist in the prevention of chronic
disease; improve health outcomes by facilitating access to health and community sen/ices; and
improve the quality and cultural competence of the service delivery system. The Contractor will
enhance education for Community Health Workers by adding training sessions on early childhood
health and immunization needs and providing resources to enable CHWs to better senre
individuals and families. In addition, the Contractor will continue providing training, technical
assistance, and continuing education programs to the public, health professionals, health
insurers, and healthcare and community-based organizations to expand the use of Community
Health Workers in New Hampshire.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

Approximately 200 Individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025.

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services through:

•  Key deliverables and standards for CHW training statewide and ensuring alignment
with the nationally accepted CHW Core Competencies. ̂

•  Required quarterly reports, which includes:

o The number of/name of trainings, and the number of attendees at each training;

o The number of Community Health Worker Certification committee meetings and
attendees, as well as the sectors attendees represent; and

o The number of Community Health Worker Coalition activities, attendees, and new
memberships.

•  The Contractor actively collaborating with the Department to enhance contract
management and improve results.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for the
remaining eleven (11) months available, as well as one (1) additional month to extend for one (1)
full year.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, it will limit the development
of a well-trained and coordinated Community Health Worker workforce and may impact the quality
and reach of associated community health services.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.391, FAIN NH750T000031.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

<:1JlJ_ori A. Weaver
\  Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Misehn is tcfjoin cornmunilies and families
m providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health ond'independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FtSCAL DETAILS SHEET

Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support
SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02

05-96-90-90101(W7710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS; PUBLIC HEALTH DIV,
BUREAU OF HEALTHCARE ACCESS, EQUITY,'AND POLICY, PH COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES
100V« Federal Funds

North Country Health Consortium Vendor #158557-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90577150 S350.000.00 $0.00 5350,000.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90577100 $150,000.00 50.00 $150,000.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90577100 5150,000.00 $0.00 5150,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90577150 3350.000.00 $0.00 $350,000.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90577150 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90577150 SO.OO $210,000.00 $210,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90577100 SO.OO $90,000.00 $90,000.00

1  Subtotal $1,000,000.00 $300,000.00 Sf,300,000.00

05.95-90.902510.19560000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: PUBUC HEALTH DiV.
BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION COVID-IO
100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500732 Contracts for Program Services 90023210 5500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

1  Subtotal $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

05-95-090-902010.70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU
OF FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION
100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90070471 SO.OO $50,000.00 550,000.00

Subtotal •SO.OO $50,000.00 $50,000,00

Total 51,500,000.00 $350,000.00 $1,650,000.00

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02 Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or
"Department") and North Country Health Consortium ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "C^ontract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 1, 2022 (Item #24). as amended on December 7, 2022 (Item #5A), Contractor agreed to perform
certain services-based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,850,000

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B - Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.'

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 97% Federal Funds, comprised of:

1.1.1. New Hampshire Initiative to Address COVlb-19 Health Disparities, as
awarded on May 27. 2021, by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.391, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) NH750T000031.

1.1.2. New Hampshire Immunization Program, as awarded on May 29, 2021, by
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, ALN 93.268, FAIN

NH23IP922595.

1.3. 3% General Funds.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and sihall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-5, Budget - Amendment #2.

6. Add Exhibit C-4, Budget - Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget-Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

North Country Health Consortium A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials;

4/12/2024
SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date:
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/15/2024

Date

—DocuSignad by:-

—P77»BBgirPT0IC7imgirpToi
Name^vWat^

Title: Interim Director - DPHS

North Country Health Consortium

4/12/2024

Date

■^OopuSignvd by:

Pt
^  BiaipaBipMaiaBii-

Name Pearson
Title: Executive Director

North Country Health Consortium

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. . '

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
I

-DocuSlgrndby;ooeusigneo oy:

4/15/2024

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE '

Date Name:

Title:

North Country Health Consortium

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

.  EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide the services in this Agreement to organizations that serve
diverse and underserved populations in accordance with NH RSA 354-A;31.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services in this Agreement are available statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days shall mean business days.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours shall mean
Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, excluding state and federal holidays.

.  1.5. The Contractor must utilize an Equity Review Toolkit, as provided by the Department,
for all projects in this Agreement to ensure an equity approach for all scope of work.

1.6. Community Health Worker Training

1.6.1. The Contractor must provide training, technical assistance, and continuing
education programs to the general public, health professionals, health
insurers, and healthcare and community-based organizations to expand the
use of Community Health Workers (CHW) in addressing the Impacts of
COVID-19 related to social determinants of health.

1.6.2. The Contractor must promote and coordinate CHW training statewide and
work with Southern NH AHEC to determine training key deliverables and
standards based on the CHW Core Consensus {C3) project. The CHW
trainings must include consistent objectives that align with NH CHW
Certification Standards.

1.6.3. The Contractor must promote CHW training, which includes but is not limited
to, the following activities:

1.6.3.1. Conducting needs assessments to identify professional
development opportunities for CHWs in the state.

1.6.3.2. Managing CHW trainihg logistics, including scheduling,
registration, implementation and evaluation of the trainings.

1.6.3.3. Building a cadre of CHW training faculty to support peer'to peer,
training.

1.6.3.4. Developing a CHW awareness program for racial/ethnic minorities
and rural populations to promote recruitment for CHW training
programs and build workforce capacity.

1.6.3.5. Creating a professional development series, including
opportunities for local CHW networking and education.

1.6.3.6. . Developing and offering training and continuing education to
clinical and community-based agencies staff including early
childhood educators, administrators, and payers on how to
integrate CHWs into the work of the agencies.

2
SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-02 Exhibit B-Amendmenl #2 Contractor Initials

North Country Health Consortium . Page 1 of 10 pate
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.6.4.

1.6.3.7. Coordinating with higher education Institutions including NH
Community College^ systems to create CHW Training Pathway to
help build a career ladder or promotion pathway for CHWs to grow.

1.6.3.8. Developing and facilitating CHW Project ECHO model to support
CHW and stakeholder training.

1.6.3.9. Providing technical assistance to healthcare, social service, early
childhood educating and other organizations that want to hire
CHWs or work with CHWs.

1.6.3.10. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders to assist in building and
maintaining support for team-based care and CHWs In specialized
roles within care teams and community-based programs.

1.6.3.11. Conducting statewide outreach to increase awareness of the NH
CHW Coalition to encourage CHW peer engagement and
opportunities for networking and professional development and
support.

The Contractor must provide CHW training using on-line and/or in-person
formats, including, but not limited to:

1.6.4.1. Utilizing existing New Hampshire CHW training curricula on topics
that include, but are not limited to:

1.6.4.1.1. Understanding the CHW role.

1.6.4.1.2. Developing Communication Skills.

1.6.4.1.3. Cultural Competency and Cultural Humility.

1.6.4.1.4. Health Equity.

1.6.4.1.5. Outreach Methods and Strategies.

1.6.4.1.6. Writing and Documentation Skills.

1.6.4.1.7. Client and Community Assessment Skills.

1.6.4.1.8. Service Coordination Skills.

1.6.4.1.9. Motivational Interviewing.

1.6.4.1.10. Group Facilitation and Presenting Skills.

1.6.4.1.11. Public Health Concepts.

1.6.4.1.12. Advocacy and Community Building.

1.6.4.1.13. Professional Skills and Conduct, including Legal and
Ethical Responsibilities.

1.6.4.2.

1.6.4.3.

Expanding the existing CHW Curriculum including inclusion of
CHW Core Competencies and other prevention trainings.

Developing a CHW Crossover Curriculum for workers in early
childhood education, family support, mental health, substance use
disorder and others.

■OS,P
SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-02

North Country Health Consortium

Exhibit B - Amendment #2

Page 2 of 10

Contractor Initials

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker.Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2
1.6.4.4. Ensuring that CHW strengths, including their ability to connect with

communities through their commonalities of shared life
experiehce, are reinforced.

1.6.4.5. Using CHW training modules that emphasize health promotion and
,  teach CHWs how to help NH residents focus on disease

prevention, screening, and/or prioritize and manage their chronic
diseases, and refer to evidence-based disease prevention and
management programs and addressing social determinants of
health that are impacting them.

1.6.4.6. Providing both basic and specific training for community-based
CHWs on connecting patients with community health and wellness
partners for immunization related to COVID-19 and chronic
disease prevention, screening and management in consultation
with the Department. CHW training must include;

1.6.4.6.1. Vaccine Preventable Disease including, but not
limited to, COVID-19, RSV influenza, shingles and
pneumonia and their health impact on adults with
chronic disease.

1.6.4.6.2. Outreach and community education techniques for
CHWs to support promotion of adult immunization
within their communities.

1.6.5. The Contractor must implement other activities related to training, including,
but not limited to:

1.6.5.1. Developing outreach and awareness guidelines and information
specific to reaching racial/ethnic and rural populations.

1.6.5.2. Providing training, technical assistance and continuing education
to the general public, health professionals, community-based

. organizations to expand the use of the CHWs in vaccine education.

1.6.5.3. Using materials available through the U.S. CDC. the Department,
or other organizations for training, promotion, and outreach with
approval from the Department;

1.6.5.4. Providing continuing education credits, as necessary, for licensed
practitioners who complete training;

1.6.5.5. Providing an evaluation summary to the Department of all training
and technical assistance activities quarterly; and

1.6.5.6. Supporting other training as required by the Department.

1.7. Community Health Worker Coalition Support

1.7.1. The Contractor must partner with a statewide CHW Coalition, regional health
care systems, community-based organizations, Accountable Care
Organizations (ACOs), and other key partner organizations to integrate CHWs
into health and social systems, improve CHW workforce development, identify
viable financing mechanisms and build infrastructure to support CHWs.
Activities must include, but are not limited to: /—2

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-02 Exhibit B-Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2
1.7.1.1. Evaluating the impact of the CHW Coalition activities related to

CO\/lD-19 prevention and management, and other Social
Determinants of Health (SD'oH) in New Hampshire and document
value added, effective use of services across the systems such as
behavioral, social, and clinical improvement.

1.7.1.2. ■ Engaging leadership across organizations to build a centralized
support for CHWs.

1.7.1.3. Developing a set of core skills, competencies, and scope of
practice for CHWs that are recognized statewide. This must be
done in collaboration with a larger stakeholder group that includes
CHW organizations, state and local health departments,
universities, CHW trainers and employers, insurers, public
agencies, nonprofits, and other interested groups.

1.7.1.4. Educating stakeholders at the state and local levels about the
observational data from practice and the evidence-based
interventions that have demonstrated the effectiveness of CHWs,
the beneficial outcomes for the public's health of integrating CHWs
into health care systems, and the necessary components of
comprehensive policies that support such integration.

1.7.1.5. Identifying and promoting sustainable financing mechanisms to
promote team-based care, inclusive of services provided by
CHWs.

1.8. Community Health Worker Certification

1.8.1. The Contractor must work with and support the Statewide CHW Coalition to
increase participation and engagement, and promote the Coalition by
performing the following services:

1.8.1.1. Supporting NH CHW Coalition to develop the criteria for CHW
Certification.

1.8.1.2. Engaging stakeholders, subject matter experts and decision
makers from private and public health, related sectors to develop
the framework for CHW Certification in NH.

1.8.1.3. Building and expanding the foundational education competencies
and curriculums associated with the requirements for CHW
Certification.

1.8.1.4. Acting as a liaison between CHWs, Coalition, and stakeholders on
developing policy and proposed legislation for CHW certification.

1.8.1.5. Synthesizing certification oversight and .identifying potential
structure for the CHW certification.

1.8.1.6. Working with NH licensing agency to implement the criteria for
CHW certification.

j

1.8.1.7. Supporting statewide data collection and aggregation that
illustrates the impact of CHW integration into healthcare and social

•DS^

2
North Country Health Consortium Page 4 of 10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2
service systems and the impact of solution-oriented services that
address identified needs.

1.8.1.8. Exploring blended funding opportunities to ensure CHWs are able
to work across historically siloed systems.

1.8.1.9. Increasing participation in quarterly CHW Coalition meetings,
which must include representation of CHWs and CHW allies from
across NH and a variety of organizations.

1.8.1.10. Improving communication between CHWs and stakeholders
through information sharing, Including newsletters and other social
media.

1.9. Community Health Worker Board

1.9.1. The Contractor must build a statewide CHW Board that will provide guidance
and direction pertaining to CHW certification, potential CHW Medicaid
Reimbursement, CHW workforce expansion, as well as other CHW issues.
Contractor must;

1.9.1.1. Investigate CHW State Board description from states that have
implemented a successful Board and develop ideology from
findings.

»

1.9.1.2. Participate in the Northeast CHW Coalition quarterly meetings to
support the building of that Coalition and to gain information from
states that have successfully implemented certification and state.
CHW board.

1.9.1.3. Develop a description of the roles and responsibilities of a
statewide CHW board based . upon research
feedback/observations.

1.9.1.4. Work with organizations and individuals that would be candidates
for the CHW board to build a framework and begin implementation.

1.9.2. The Contractor must research and develop a five (5)-year CHW NH State
plan, in collaboration with CHW and stakeholders. Contractor must:

1.9.2.1. Conduct research regarding requirements for the development of
a successful CHW NH State Five {5)-Year plan.

1.9.2.2. Produce a draft CHW NH State Five (5)-Year plan in collaboration
with the Department, CHWs and CHW allies, such as healthcare
providers and community programs who work with CHWs.

1.9.2.3. Produce and share the final plan with CHWs, stakeholders and the
Department via statewide CHW Coalition meetings and outreach.

1.10. The Contractor must partner with the Department to develop a system compile a
catalogue of all registered Community Health Workers who are currently active within
the state of New Hampshire.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliancy with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Informatiorf^F^acy

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-02 Exhibit B - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2
Rule)(45 CRF Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I,
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor rnust manage all confidential data related to this agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Staffing Requirements

3.1. The Contractor must provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities which
support the activities of this project, including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Maintaining a level of staffing necessary to perforrh and carry out all functions,
requirements, roles, and duties in a timely fashion.

3.1.2. Ensuring staff has sufficient training, education, experience, and orientation
necessary to fulfill the requirements of the positions they hold and verifying
and document this requirement has been met.

'  3.1.3. Keeping up-to-date records and documentation of all individuals requiring
licenses and/or certifications. All records must be made available to the

Department upon request.

3.2. The Contractor must develop a Staffing Contingency Plan which must include, but is
not limited to:.

3.2.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key personnel
or other personnel.

3.2.2. Allocation of additional resources to the Agreement in the event of inability to
^  meet performance standards.

3.2.3. Discussion of time frames necessary for obtaining replacements.

3.2.4. Capabilities to provide, in a timely manner, replacement staff with comparable^
experience.

3.2.5. A method of bringing replacement staff up-to-date regarding the activities of
this Agreement.

4. Reporting Requirements/Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor must submit a finalized Work Plan to the Department for approval
within thirty (30) days of contract approval. The Work Plan must include, but is not
limited to:

4.1.1. A description and list of activities, including those focused on Vaccine
Preventable Disease and Immunization;

4.1.2. Names of responsible Contractor personnel, and

4.1.3. A timeline.

4.2. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, must develop a Draft Year 2
Work Plan, which must be submitted thirty (30) days prior to the end of Year 1.

•DS,

p
SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-02 Exhibit B-Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B -• Amendment #2
4.3. The Contractor must begin evaluation planning within thirty (30) days of the Contract

effective date, in consultation with the Department, including, but not limited to:

4.3.1. Evaluating the success of capacity building activities as well as the value of
the CHW model.

4.3.2. Identifying appropriate evaluation and data collection methods to assess
effectiveness of CHW role in disease prevention and management.

4.3.3. Including the most appropriate approach to collecting information on
Implementation/process issues, and the value and impact of the Coalition
when developing the evaluation plan.

4.3.4. Selecting outcomes to be documented such as value added, cost savings to
programs and effective use of services.

4.3.5. Planning to disseminate results to support expansion of CHW interventions in
New Hampshire.

4.3.6. Meeting with the Department to discuss activities, budget, and performance
measures on a monthly basis.

4.4. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports on all activities on a template reporting
form provided by the Department, as described in Section 5.

4.5. The Contractor must provide a comprehensive annual report by June 30"^ of each year.
The annual report must summarize:

4.5.1. Participation

4.5.2. Outcomes

4.5.3. Challenges

4.5.4. Strengths

4.5.5. Identified needs for the upcoming fiscal year/contract year

4.6. The Contractor may be required to collect and share other key data and metrics with
the Department, in a format specified by the Department.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor must submit quarterly reports on all activities on a template reporting
form provided by the Department, ensuring that the following minimum performance
indicators are achieved annually to measure the effectiveness of the Agreement:

5.1.1. A summary of the project outcome including barriers encountered in
implementing the project.

5.1.2. Key deliverables and standards for CHW training in NH are developed.

5.1.3. All key deliverables and standards for CHW training in NH are aligned with
the Nationally accepted CHW Core Competencies.

5.1.4. Number of trainings, name of trainings, number of attendees.

5.1.5. Number of trainings, name of trainings, number of attendees for sessions
which include Vaccine Preventable Disease/Immunization and Early
Childhood education subject matter. —os

SS-2022-DPHS-1O-COMMU-02 Exhibll B-Amendment #2 Contractor Initials ̂

North Country Health Consortium Page 7 of 10 pate
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2
5.1.6. Number of CHW Certification committee meetings, number of attendees,

identify sectors that attendees represent.

5.1.7. Steps taken to build infrastructure;

5.1.8. Number of viable finance mechanisms identified.

5.1.9. Number of CHW Coalition activities, number of attendees, CHW Coalition
New memberships.

5.1.10. Number of Certification related Infrastructure components recommended.

5.1.11. Number of listening sessions held, as well as the number of attendees and
sectors they represent.

5.1.12. Steps taken to create sustainable reimbursement.

5.1.13. Steps taken to create CHW NH State Five (5)-Year Plan.

5.1.14. The number of CHWs, staff, administrators and payers who participate in
training on the roles and value of CHWs.

5.1.15. The percentage of training participants who report use of CHWs in their
programs three (3) - six (6) months after training.

5.1.16. The percentage of participants trained as CHWs who become employed in a
CHW role after completing training.

5.1.17. The number and types of organizations represented on the CHW Coalition.

5.1.18. The number of CHW Coalition members broken down by CHW and
Stakeholder.

5:1.19. The percentage of CHW Coalition members who report satisfaction with the
leadership and structure of the Coalition.

5.1.20. The percentage of the CHW Coalition members who report their participation
in the coalition adds value to their current work.

5.1.21. The number of health care staff, administrators and payers who participate in
CHW Coalition training on the roles and value of CHWs.

5.2. The Contractor must actively and regularly collaborate with the Department • to
enhance contract management and improve results.

6. Additional Terms

6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements unider
this agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

6.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

6.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement Effective
Date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to^pFog^^ms

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-02 Exhibit B — Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

North Country Health Consortium Page 8 of 10 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

'  ̂ EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2
and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency: individuals who
are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision;
and individuals who have speech challenges.

6.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

6.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services of the
agreement must include the following statement, "The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with ̂ the State of Nevy
Hampshire, Department of Health'and Human Services, with funds provided
in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
were available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and
Human Services."

6.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the agreement must have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

6.3.3.- The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

6.3.3.1. Brochures.

6.3.3.2. Resource directories.

6.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

6.3.3.4. Posters.

6.3.3.5. Reports.

6.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

6.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

6.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor vyith
respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the
operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with
the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that,
during the term of this" agreement the facilities shall comply with all rules,
orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal
and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

7. Records

7.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

7.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contra^tw^the

SS-2b22-DPHS-10-COMMU-02 Exhibit B-Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

North Country Health Consortium Page 9 of 10 Date
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'  EXHIBIT B-Amendment #2
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

7.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and
practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses,
and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation,
all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

7.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of
their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to the agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of
units provided for in the Agreement and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the agreement and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such
obligations as, by the terms of the agreement are to be performed after the end of the
term of this Agreement and/or survive the termination of the agreement) shall
terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount
of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

SS-2022-DPHS»10-COMMU-02 Exhibit 8 - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

North Country Health Consortium Page 10 of 10 Date
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Exhibit C-4, Budget • Amendment # 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: North Country Health Consortium

Budget Request for:

Community Health Worker Training
and Coalition Support, (CC
GENERAL FUNDS)

Budget Period G&C Approval - 06/30/2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 30.40% on Wages/Benefits Only

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $29,904

2. Fringe Benefits $6,899

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $500

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $1,009

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $500

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $38,812

Total Indirect Costs $11,188

TOTAL $50,000

Contractor Initials:

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02 Date:
4/12/2024



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D48-B40A-D26E9188F389

Exhibit C-5, Budget - Amendment # 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: North Country Health Consortium

Budget Request for:
Community Health Worker Training
and Coalition Support

Budget Period 07/01/2024-06/30/2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 30.40% on Wages/Benefits Only

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $161,850

2. Fringe Benefits $37,339

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

5.(a). Supplies - Educational $3,600

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical . $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $500

6. Travel $1,138

7. Software $1,000

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $5,520

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $500

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $28,000

Total Direct Costs $239,447

Total Indirect Costs $60,553

TOTAL $300,000

(■

Contractor Initials;

—t>s^

oif

SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02 Date:
4/12/2024
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State of New Hampshire

^  Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secreiarv' of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify tluu NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH

CONSORTIUM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 05,

1998. 1 fiinher certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary.of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 301456

Certificate Number: 0006194726

j .ii

Op
%

55?
Vm

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of tlie Stale of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023. \
Pi

T.r

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDnnrVY)

3/4/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Geo. M. Stevens & Son Co.
PO Box 271
149 Main Street
Lancaster NH 03584

NAME*®^ Teresa Crossland
PHONE cn-j-TooiKcc P**
fA/r No Firl)- DUJ/0O«iDD0 (A/C. No):

a^d'ress: tcrossland(!S)Qms-ins.com
INSURER(S| AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A : Philadelphia Insurance Co 18058

INSURED NORTCOU-21

North Country Health Consortium Inc
262 Cottage Street, Suite 230
Littleton NH 03561 .

INSURER B: Allied Eastern Indemnity Co 11242

INSURER c: Great American 16591

INSURER D: United Financial Casualty Co. 11770

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 889466059 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO Y/HICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTFt TYPE OF INSURANCE
AUDL

iNsn

SUBR
wvn POUCYNUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYYI

POUCY EXP
fMM/DD/YYYYI LIMTS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X [ OCCUR
PHPK2624203 1/1/2024 1/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000,000

CLAIMS-IAAC
DAMAGE TORENIED
PREMISES fEa oecurrencoi $ 100,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000 •

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000

GEWL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 1 i 1 LOG
1 OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000

$

0 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 03166Q37 9/9/2023 9/9/2024
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
tEa arcioanii

$1,000,000

=

ANY AUTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

X SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par acsidwil) $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
rPwarddonli

s

$

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESSUAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHU8e89411 1/1/2024 1/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000

AGGREGATE $

DED i ^ 1 RETEIVTIONS in nnn $

B. WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY y/N
AfPrPROPRlETOrVPARTNER/EXECLfTIVe fVI
OFFICER/WEM8EREXCLUOED? '
(Mandaiory In NH) " '
If yes. descrtx under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

Ol-OOOOl 14597-06 1/1/2024 1/1/2026
1 PGR OTH-
1 STATUTE FR

E.L.EACH ACCIDEFTT $ 100,000

E.L. DISEASE ■ £A EMPLOYEE $ 100,000

E.L. DISEASE ■ POUCY LIMIT S 500.000

C Dc;o EPP5768641 e/10/2023 8/10/2024 AGGREGATE 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS'/ LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddJUonal Rtmarka Sehsduta, may ba aitachad if mora apaca i« raquirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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\±t Horth C-ouirh^
HEALTH CONSORTIUM /

North Country Health Consortium Mission Statement:

"An Innovative Collaboration to improve the health status ofnorthern
New Hampshire*

The North Countn-- Health Consortium (NCHC) is a non-profit 501(0)3 rural health network,
created in 1997, as a vehicle for adchessing common issues through collaboration among
health and human service providers sening Northern New Hampshire.

NCHC is engaged in activities for:
•  Solving common problems and facilitating regional solutions
•  Creating and facilitating services and programs to improve population health status
•  Health professional training, continuing education, and management seivices
'  to encourage sustainabilit)^ of the health care infrastructure
•  Increasing capacitv' for local public healtii essential sendees
•  Increasing access to health care for undersen'ed and uninsured residents of Northern

New Hampshire

262 Collage Street i Suite 230 I Littleton, NH 03581 I p: 603-259-3700 I f: 603-444-0945 ! NCHCNH.org
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North Country Health Consortium, Inc
and Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITiNC STANDARDS

AND THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

September 30, 2022 and 2021

With Independent Auditor's Report
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

September 30, 2022 and 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of North Country Health
Consortium. Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and Subsidiary (the Organization), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related,
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present faidy, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of September 30, 2022 and 2021,
and the consolidated changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP).

Basis for Opinion

'  ■ ■ \
We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards (U.S. GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller' General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year ended September 30,
2022, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update
2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control, relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

vjMafne">dNew,HampshjreVvMossochiisctts>'GonhBcUcul?»'=WestVirglhb^^

>ib^rydunh:epfn. * -
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Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary
Page 2 ,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management Is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated

.  financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsiihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordarice with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
isexpressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.
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Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary
Page 3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. GAAS. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 20,
2023 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an .integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bangor, Maine
June 20. 2023
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts, grants, and contracts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash - Integrated Delivery Network

Total current assets

Property and equipment
Computers and equipment
Dental equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Certificates of deposit
Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued wages and related liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities and total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2022 2021

>  1,041,393 S 1,320,750
567,360 413,995
29,423 33,530
. 818 010

1.638.176 2.586.285

147,396 147,392
10,813 10,815
30,045 30.045

3?e.pei 18.677

556,315 206.929
(190.445) (203.1771

365.870 3.752

12.869 127.904

12.869 127.904

;  2.016.915 s 2.717.941

62,597 $ 65,296
143,545 140,267
458.044 1.448.193

664.186 1.653.756

1.352.729 1.064.185

1.352.729 1.064.185

2.016.915 $ 2.717.941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CE95DE6.BOA2-4D48.B40A.O26E9188F389

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Support
Grant and contract revenue $  3.339.198 S 5.276.490

Revenue

Fees for programs and services
Interest income

In-kind contributions

Other income

242,211

1,058

380,632

141,972

296,655

4.431

9.165

Total revenue 765.873 310.251

Total support and revenue from continuing operations 4.105.071 5.586.741

Program expenses
Workforce

Public health

Mobile clinic / Molar

Community Substance Abuse Protection (CSAP)

1,175,806

292,067

82,459

1.595.360

2,895,285

357,542

21,400

1.783.857

Total program expenses from continuing operations 3,145,692 5,058.084

Management and general expenses 670.835 618.804

Total expenses from continuing operations 3.816.527 5.676.888

Change in net assets before discontinued operations 288,544 ■  (90,147)

Gain from discontinued operations - 147,2?9

Change in net assets 288,544 57,122

Net assets, beginning of year 1.064.185 1.007.063

Net assets, end of year $  1.352.729 S 1.064.185

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 3CE95OEG-BDA2-4D4&-B40A-O26E916SF3S0

NORTH COUfJTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Management
y^ry.iarr.e. Public Health MobHft Clinic CSAP Total Prooram Total

Personnel
Salaries %  279,366(  183,533 i  . 36.889 % 901,880 $  1,401.668 %  388,620 S 1,790,288

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 53 oa9 32.564 6.991 176.320 268.964 62.264 »1.228
Total personnel expenses 332.455 216.097 43.880 1.078.200 1,670.632 450.884 2.121.516

Non-personnel expenses
Computer fees 10.454 10,077 651 26,859 48.041 14,094 62,135

Medical and pharmacy supplies 896 185 1,769 68,576 61.426 714 62,140

Office supplies 3.78B 9,031 2,450 11,725 26.994 5,439 32,433

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 694.085 33,493 ■ 219,042 946,620 500 947,120

Bad debts . . . . . 13,598 13.SM

Depreciation - • 2,191 • 2.191 3,754 5,945

Dues, memberships, education, and subscriptions 50,740 46 308 2,094 63.188 6,644 59,832

In-kind services • • 12.569 • 12.569 • 12,566

Equipment and maintenance 634 1,547 42 1,649 3,872 69,268 73,160

Rent and occupancy 6.945 3,968 420 32,806 44.139 37,869 82,008

insurance 1,559 811 958 6,409 8.737 6,017 14,754

Miscellaneous 45,053 400 ■ 204 45.657 864 46,521

. Payroll processing fees SO - - SO 21,299 21,349

Postage 716 812 12 1,116 2,656 565 3,221

Printing 222 1,418 26 885 2.SS1 350 2,901

Professional fees 5,854 4,001 456 25,797 36.108 22,117 56,225

Training fees and supplies 14,772 2,572 2 59,056 76.402 4 76,406

Travel 4.750 6,982 1,248 43,007 55,987 3,731 59,718

Telephone 2,833 627 116 9,018 12.594 13.094 25,688

Vehicle expense • ■ 15,361 - 15,361 ■ 15,361
. . . 19 917 19.917 10 19,927

Total non-personnel expenses 843.3S1 75.970 38.579 517.160 1.475.060 219.951 1.695.011

Total expenses 1,175,606 292,067 82,459 1,595,360 3,145,692 670,836 3,816,627

101.843 64.662 8.852 374.421 649.778 ,549770,

Total expenses after indirect cost allocations S  1.277.649 S  356.729 S  91,311 S 1.969.781 %  3,695.470 S  121.057 $ 3.S1S.627

The accompanying notes are art integral part of these consoiidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CEd5OEG-BDA2-4D43>B40A-D26E9186F3a9

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC; AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Management
Woft:forr,ft Public Health Molar CSAP Total Prooram and General Total

Personnel

Salaries $  375,065 $  170,898 $ 12,574 S 970,495 %  1,528.832 S  400,570 S 1.929,402
Payroll taxes and employee i^enefits 77.073 30 254 2 636 193 966 303 879 93 008 398 887

Total personnel expenses 452 088 200 952 15210 1 164 461 1 832 711 493 578 2 326 239

Non-personnel expenses
Computer fees 1 o.Qoe 3.616 471 29,693 44,389 9,751 54,140
Medical and pharmacy supplies 11.876 1.719 3.118 7.083 23,801 551 24,352
Office supplies 7,781 0.795 . 100 26,016 40.092 2,065 42,757
MOA 2,260,723 101.034 . 318,757 2.680,514 1,132 2,681,646
Depreciation - . . . . 7,504 7,504
Dues, memt>ership6, education, and subscriptions 65,131 172 190 541 66,034 7,868 73,902
Staff development 160 . . . 180 . 180
Equipment and maintenance 28,216 173 18 7,321 35,728 875 36,403
Rent and occuparKy 17.050 6,427 597 51,421 75.495 20,712 96,207
Insurance 3,400 1,642 122 9,143 14.307 8.434 22,741
Miscellaneous . - -  • 32,597 32,597 6.877 39,474
Payroll processing fees 25 231 . 101 357 14.958 15,315
Postage 494 263 17 1,645 2,419 669 3.068
Printing 314 43 3 331 691 635 1,326
Professional fees 13,650 1,636 178 23,886 39,350 20.169 59,539
Training fees and supplies 16,325 13,774 61 50,286 80,448 4,384 84,830
Travel 3,062 4.309 1,309 18,446 27.126 786 27,912
Telephone 2,973 62 6 8,501' 11.542 16,378 27,920
Vehicle expense - - - . . 450 450
Event faculty fees 1 388 14 694 . 33 623 -49 70.5 1.208 50 913

Total non-personnel expenses 2.443 197 156 590 619 396 3.225 373 125 226 3:350.599

TotaJ expenses 2,895.265 357,542 21.400 1.783,857 5,058,084 618.604 ' 5,676,888

Indirect costs allocated to programs 137 148 50.133 5 049 374.432 566 76? f566 762)

Total expenses after indirect cost allocations S  3 032 433 S  407.675 $ 26.449 S 2 158.289 S  5.624 846 S  ' 52 042 S 5 676 888

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 3CE95DE6-BDA2^D48-840A-D26E9188F389

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  288,544 $  57.122

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used by
operating activities

Depreciation 5,945 7,504

Change in allowance for doubtful accounts - 9,853

Contribution of non-cash assets (388,063) -

(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Accounts, grants, and contracts receivable (153,365) 59,952

Total assets - discontinued operations - 44,929

Prepaid expenses 4,107 (3,082)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities

Accounts payable (2,699) (47,377)
Accrued wages and related liabilities 3,278 (109,044)
Deferred revenue (990.149) f2.012.330)

Net cash used by operating activities (1.212.402) (1.992.473)

Cash flows from investing activities
Transfers from (reinvestment of interest from) certificates of deposit 115.035 f547)

Net cash used by investing activities 115.035 (547)

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted
cash (1,097,367) (1,993,020)

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of year 2.138.760 4.131.780

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of year $ 1.041.393 S 2.138.760

Composition of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,041,393 $ 1,320,750

Restricted cash - IDN - 818.010

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ 1.041.393 $ 2.138.760

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D4&-B40A-D26E9188F389

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

1. Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. (NCHC) and Subsidiary (collectively, the Organization) is a
not-for-profit health organization chartered under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The
Organization's mission is to lead innovative collaboration to improve the health status of the region.
NCHC is engaged in promoting and facilitating access to services and programs that improve the
health status of the area population, provide health training and educational opportunities for
healthcare purposes, and is the operational home to the Northen New Hampshire Mobile Clinic.

NCHC's wholly-owned subsidiary. North Country ACO (the ACO), is a non-profit 501(c)(3)
charitable corporation formed in December 2011. This entity was formed as an accountable care
organization (ACO) with its purpose to support the programs and activities of the ACO participants
to improve the" overall health of their respective populations and communities. A nominal cash
balance remains and activities have ceased.

The Organization's primary programs are as follows;

Workforce - To provide workforce education programs.

Public Health - To coordinate public health networks, and promote the community emergency
response plan. '

Mobile Clinic - To sustain operations of a mobile clinic program, offering health services to all
residents in northern New Hampshire.

Molar - To sustain a program offering oral health services for children and low income adults in
Northern New Hampshire.

Friendship House - A residential facility to provide patient drug and alcohol treatment and
recovery. As disclosed in Note 10. this activity has been discontinued.

Community Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP) - To conduct community substance abuse
prevention activities.

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset
classifications:
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DocuSIgn Envelope ID; 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D48.B40A.D26E9188F389

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the , discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time.' Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When
a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of activities. The Organization had
no net assets with donor restrictions at September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NCHC and the AGO.
All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Relief Legislation and Forgiveness of Paycheck Protection Program tPPP) Loan

In response to the global pandemic, in April 2020. the Organization obtained a RPR loan under
COVID-19 relief legislation in the amount of $798,800 to cover qualifying expenditures incurred
during the year ended September 30, 2020. During 2021, the loan was forgiven. The PPP loan is
subject to Small Business Administration review for six years from the date of loan forgiveness.

Relief legislation established the Provider Relief Fund (PRF) to support healthcare providers in the
battle against the COVID-19 outbreak. The PRF is being administered by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (DHHS). The Organization received PRF in the amount of $78,822
during the year ended September 30, 2021. Management believes the Organization incurred lost
revenues of at least $78,822 through the year ended September 30. 2021, and recorded grant
revenue equal to the relief received. Due to the complexity of the reporting requirements and the
continued issuance of clarifying guidance, the amount of income allowed to be recognized may
change. Any difference between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverable or payable will be included in income in the year that such amounts
become known.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D48-B40A^D26E9188F389

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

During 2021, the Organization was awarded a Coronavirus Relief Fund grant in the amount of
$550,000. The funds were to be used for operational costs of the Friendship House not otherwise
covered as a .result of reduced census and services due to COVID-19 for the period March 1, 2020
to December 30, 2020. Qualifying reimbursements in the amount of $550,000 have been included
as revenue in the consolidated statements of activities for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Concentration of Risk

The Organization's operations are affected by various risk factors, including credit risk and risk
from geographic concentration and concentrations of funding sources. Management attempts, to
manage risk by obtaining and maintaining revenue funding from a variety of sources. A substantial
portion of the Organization's activities are funded through grants and contracts with private,
federal, and state agencies. As a result, the Organization may be vulnerable to the consequences
of change in the availability of funding sources and economic policies at the agency level.

Revenue Recoanltlon

Below are the revenue recognition policies of the Organization;

Grant and Contract Revenue

Grants and contracts are recorded as revenue in the period they are earned by satisfaction of grant
obligations. Grants and contracts are recorded as support without donor restrictions if restrictions
are met in the year revenue is recognized.

Fees for Programs and Services

Fees for programs and services are recorded as revenue in the period the related services were
performed.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations are satisfied over time when services
are provided. The Organization measures the performance obligation from when the Organization
begins to provide services to a client to the point when they are no longer required to provide
services to that client, which is generally at the date services are performed.

Each performance obligation is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract with the
client. As the performance obligations are met (i.e., day of services), revenue is recognized based
on allocated transaction price. The transaction price is allocated to separate performance
obligations based upon the relative standalone selling price.

Because all of its performance obligations relate to short-term contracts, the Organization has
elected to apply the optional exemption provided in U.S. GAAR, and therefore, is not required to
disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that
are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D48-B40A-D26E9188F389

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

Program service fee revenue is included in the consolidated statements of activities within the gain
from discontinued operations and fees for program services and is as follows;

2022 2021

Friendship House Income - discontinued operations $ - $ 235,039
Fees 227,954 287,755
Other . 14.257 8.900

Net program service fee revenue $ 242.211 $ 531.694

Grants receivable, net related to exchange transactions were $198,948, $247,933, and $528,729
as of September 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020 respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash - Integrated Delivery Network (IDNi

Restricted cash - IDN consisted of advanced funding received from the State of New Hampshire
Department of .Health and Human Services for the IDN. The original advance of funds of
approximately $2,000,000 was to be used to fund the Organization's cost of administering the IDN
over a period of five years, beginning in fiscal year 2017. The remaining balance of $413,256 was
to be distributed to participants.

As of September 30, 2021, these amounts were restricted for distributions to participants. There
were no such balances at September 30, 2022.

Accounts. Grants, and Contracts Receivable

The Organization has receivable balances due from grants and contracts received from federal,
state, and private agencies. Management reviews the receivable balances for collectibility and
records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical information, estimated contractual
adjustments, and current economic trends. Management considers the individual circumstances
when determining the collectibility of past due amounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to earnings
and a credit to accounts receivable. Any collection fees or related costs are expensed in the year
incurred. The Organization recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts for grants and contracts of
$9,853 as of September 30, 2022 and, 2021. The Organization does not charge interest on its past
due accounts, and collateral is generally not required.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

Certificates of Deposit

The Organization has three certificates of deposit that may be withdrawn without penalty with one
financial institution. These certificates carry original terms of 12 months to 24 months, have interest
rates ranging from .25% to .35%, and mature at various dates through 2023.

Property and Equipment

The Organization generally capitalizes property and equipment with an estimated" useful life in
excess of one year and installed costs over $2,500. Lesser amounts are generally expensed.
Property and equipment is capitalized at cost if purchased or at fair market value if donated.

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method using the following ranges
of estimated useful lives:

Computers and equipment 3-7 years
Dental equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation" expense totaled $5,945 and $7,504 for the years ended September 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is related to advance payments on grants or advance billings relative to
anticipated expenses or events in future periods. The revenue is realized when the expenses are
incurred or as services are provided in the period earned.

Memorandum of Agreement Expenses

The Organization has entered into agreements (MOA) with subrecipients to help position IDN and
other program participants to deliver integrated physical and behavioral health care that addresses
the full range of Individuals' needs, to expand capacity to address emerging and ongoing
behavioral health needs, to reduce gaps in care across settings by improving coordination across
providers, and to address relevant alternative payment models. Expenditures associated with
these agreements include payments to subrecipients, service provider contracts, and consulting

^  costs.

Incorhe Taxes

The Organization and the AGO are exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and are not classified as private foundations. However, income from
certain activities not directly related to the Organization's tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation
as unrelated business income. The Organization had no unrelated business income activity subject
to taxation for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

The Organization has adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 740-10, Income Taxes - Overall. FASB ASC
Subtopic .740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributable for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return, and provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure, and transition. Based on management's evaluation, management has
concluded that there were no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the
consolidated financial statements at September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Although the Organization is not currently the subject of a tax examination by the Internal Revenue
Service or the State of New Hampshire, the Organization's tax years ended September 30, 2019

.through September 30, 2022 are open- to examination by the taxing authorities under the
applicable statute of limitations.

Functional Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include depreciation,
interest, and office and occupancy, which are allocated on a square-footage basis, as well as
salaries and benefits, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.

Newly Adopted Accounting Standard Update

During the year ended September 30, 2022, the Organization adopted FASB Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, which supersedes accounting standards that previously existed
under U.S. GAAP and increases the transparency of contributed nonfinancial assets for not-for-
profit entities through enhancements to presentation and disclosure. This ASU has been adopted
retrospectively; therefore, the consolidated financial statements and the related notes have been
presented accordingly. No material changes to financial reporting were required as a result of this
adoption.

2. Cash Concentrations

The Organization maintains cash balances at two financial institutions. These accounts are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution.
Management believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash as of
September 30, 2022.

The Organization manages credit risk relative to cash concentrations by utilizing "sweep" accounts.
The Organization maintains insured Cash Sweep accounts that invest cash balances in other
financial institutions at amounts that do not exceed FDIC insured limits. Cash at these institutions

is held in interest-bearing money market accounts.

-14-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CE95DE6-BDA2^D48-B40A-O26E9188F389

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

■  3. Operating Leases

•  The Organization leases office space in Littleton, New Hampshire under a three-year operating
lease that expires in May 2024 with two one-year renewal options.

The Organization operated the Friendship House, an outpatient drug and alcohol treatment facility
and program. The Organization leased the premises under a five-year operating lease that was to
expire March 2023, with minimum monthly rent and Common Area Maintenance (CAM) fee
payments of $19,582. The CAM fee portion was to be adjusted annually. Effective December 31.
2020, the lease was terminated.

The Organization leases satellite offices in Lebanon, Woodsville, and Plymouth, New Hampshire
under month-to-month operating lease agreements.

Future minimum rental payments under lease commitments as of September 30 are as follows:

2023" $ 77,412
2024 52.461

$  129.873

Lease expense was $82,211 and $107,902 for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

4. Deferred Revenue

The summary of the components of deferred revenue as of September 30 are as follows:

2022 2021

Deferred revenue, IDN $ 82,554 $ 818,010
Deferred revenue, other 375.490 630.183

Total . $ 458.044 $ 1.448.193

Deferred Revenue - IDN

Under the terms of an agreement between the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS)
and the State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, various IDNs are to
be established within geographic regions across the state to develop programs to transform New
Hampshire's behavioral health delivery system by strengthening community-based mental health
and substance use disorder services and programs to combat the opioid crisis. The Organization
has been designated to be the administrative lead of one of these IDNs.

In September 2016, the Organization was awarded a five-year demonstration project from CMS,
passed through the State, of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services. At that
date, the Organization was advanced $2,413,256 upon fulfillment of the condition of successful
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

submission and state approval of an IDN Project Plan. Of that amount, $2,000,000 was to be
retained by the Organization as administrative fees for five years and the remaining funds were to
be disbursed to participants. For years two through five, the IDNs were to continue to earn
performance-based incentive funding by achieving defined targets and any funds received were to
be passed through to the participants. The project ended in December 2021.

6. Related Party Transactions

A majority of the Organization's members and the Organization are also members of a Limited
Liability Company. There were no transactions between the Limited Liability Company and the
Organization in 2022 and 2021.

The Organization contracts various services from other organizations of which members of
management of these other organizations may also be rnembers of the Board of Directors of
NCHC. Amounts paid to these organizations were $339,352 and $365,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. There were no balances due to or from these
organizations as of September 30, 2022 or 2021. One of these organizations provided a nurse
practitioner to act as a part time medical director for 3-5 hours per week before the wrap up of the
Friendship House program.

6. Retirement Plan

The Organization participates in a defined contribution plan under section 401 (k) of the Internal
Revenue Code (the Plan). Under the Plan, all employees are eligible, regardless of age. There is
no service requirement to participate in the Plan. Employee contributions are permitted and are
subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. Monthly employer contributions are $50 for each
part-time employee and $100 for each full-time employee. Employer contributions for the years
ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 were $30,689 and $38,792, respectively.

7. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is. without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of the
following as of September 30; ^ •

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, grants, and contracts, net

1,041,393 $ 1,320,750
567.360 413.995

$  1.608.753 $ 1.734.745

In addition to maintaining financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

8. Contingencies

The Organization receives a significant portion of its support from various funding sources.
Expenditure of these funds requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the related
contracts and agreements. These expenditures are subject to audit by the contracting agencies.
Any disallowed expenditures would become a liability of the Organization requiring repayment to
the funding sources. Liabilities.resulting from these audits, if any, will be recorded in the period in
which the liability is ascertained. Management estimates that any potential liability related to such
audits will be immaterial.

9. Subseouent Events

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, management has evaluated
,  subsequent events for possible recognition or disclosure through June 20, 2023, which is the date

these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. Subsequent to September 30,
2022, the Organization's Board of Directors voted to dissolve the AGO.

10. Discontinued Operations

The Organization operated a pilot program referred to as ."The Friendship House" which was
discontinued in December of 2020. The operating results of The Friendship House were as follows
for the year ended September 30, 2021;

Grant and contract revenue $ 576,461
- Fees for programs and services 235.039
Expenses f664.231)

Gain from discontinued operations

There was no depreciation, capital expenditures, or significant operating or investing noncash
items related to the discontinued operations.

11. Contributed Nonfinancia! Assets

For the year ended September 30, 2022, contributed nonfinancia! assets recognized within the
consolidated statements of activities consisted of a vehicle with a fair value of $368,063 and
certain parts and maintenance totaling $12,569. There were no such contributed nonfinancia!
assets for the year ended September 30, 2021. Unless,otherwise noted, contributed nonfinancia!
assets did not have donor-imposed restrictions. The Organization does not monetize contributed
nonfinancial assets. Donations are valued and reported at their estimated fair value based on
current rates for similar items.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program title

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Passed through: University of New Hampshire

Extension Collaborative on Immunization Teaching
& Engagement

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Direct Programs:

Area Health Education Centers Point of Service

Maintenance and Enhancement Awards

Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grants

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund

Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural Health

Network Development and Small Health

Care Provider Quality Improvement

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS

Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public
Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)
Aligned Cooperative Agreements

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - BDAS

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Projects of Regional and National Significance

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Projects of Regional and National Significance

Total AL Number 93.243:

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Total AL Number 93.268;

Federal

AL

Number

10.229

93.107

93.276

93.498

93.912

93.243

93.243

93.268

93.268

Pass-through

Number

2021-77041-34831

(EXC220212118)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

93.069 NU90TP922018

93.074 U90TP000535

SP020796

SP020796

NH231P922595

NH231P922592

Federal

Expenditures

27,542

27,542

117,167

125,844

72,822

725,449

86,273

22,793

43,488

240,915

284,403

35,160

14,055

49,215

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Federal grantor/pass'through grantor/program title

Activities to Support State, Tribal. Local and
Territorial (SILT) Health Department
Response to Public Health or Healthcare Crises

Passed through; State of New Hampshire - BDAS

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Funded Solely With Prevention and
Public Health Funds (PPHF)

Opioid STR

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - BDAS

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatrnent of

Substance Abuse

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of

Substance Abuse ^

Total AL Number 93.959;

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Sen/ices:

U.S. Department of Justice

Passed through: State of NH Judicial Branch

Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Site-Based Program

.  Total U.S. Department of Justice:

Federal

AL

Number

93.391

93.758

93.788

93.889

93.959

93.959

93.991

16.838

U.S. Department of Treasury

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS

COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funi 21.027
Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS
COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fum 21.027

Total AL Number 21.027:

Total U.S. Department of Treasury:

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards:

Pass-through

Number

NH750T000031

• B010T00937

TI83326A

U3REP190580

TI010035

TI084659/TI083955

NB010T009381

N/A

SLFRP0145

N/A

Federal

Expenditures

104,088

23,729

9.666

7,725

27,677

104.754

132,431

7,374

1,768,979

21,815

21,815

56,292

26.365

82.657

82,657

$  1,900.993

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended.September 30, 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organization) under
programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30. 2022. The information in
the Schedule is presented in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Organization, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position,
changes in net assets or cash flows of the Organization.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-
through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

The Organization has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Goveniment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. {the Organization) (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated', statement of financial position as of September 30, 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 20,
2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, inc. and Subsidiary
I

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disdosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bangor, Maine
June 20, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's (the Organization)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of
Management and Budget Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2022. The
Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards
(U.S. CMS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit.does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization's federal programs.
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Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. GAAS. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of
the report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of each of its
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS,. Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope arid timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or'operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance. with a type of compliance
requirement of a .federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary
*

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist.that were hot identified.

I

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is .expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bangor. Maine
•June 20. 2023
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Material weakness(es) identified? □ Yes B No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
□ B- considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? n ; Yes B No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs;

Material weakness(es) identified: □ Yes B No
Significant deficiency(ies) Identified that are not

□ Bconsidered to be material weakness(es)? Yes None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
,n

.  .

Bin accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes No

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Prooram or Cluster
AL

Number

93.243 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects
of Regional and National Significance

93.912 Rural Health Care Services Outreach. Rural Health
Network Development and Small Health Care Provider
Quality Improvement

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs;

. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? □

$750,000

Yes B No
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Section II. Financial Statement Findings

Not applicable

Section III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Not applicable
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings
and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Finding 2021-001

Criteria ' . .

The Organization is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining effective internal controls
over financial reporting that provide reasonable assurance that the internal controls will prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. Intentional or unintentional, from occurring.

Condition and Context

During our audit procedures related to the payroll cycle, we noted an internal control deficiency related
to recording the payroll accrual. Management did not perform sufficient review of payroll accruals to
identify that some payroll expenses were being recorded as a debit to a liability account.

Cause and Effect

The condition identified resulted from significant turnover as well as a change in how certain fringe
benefits were communicated to the Organization by the payroll service organization. The routine
month-end closing transactions process was not updated to reflect this change. This resulted in an
understatement of liabilities and expenses by $34,219.

Prior Year Recommendation

We recommended the Organization perform a review of all statement^of financial position accounts
such that unidentified balances accumulating in those accounts would be identified and to update the
month-end closing transactions process to properly reflect fringe benefits.

Status

Resolved

Finding 2021-002

Criteria

The Organization is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining effective internal controls
over financial reporting that provide reasonable assurance that the internal controls will prevent
misstatements or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, intentional or unintentional, from
occurring.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings
.  and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Condition and Context

We noted one cash account for the consolidated, entity that was not Included in the Organization's
general ledger. While the balance in the account is small, any account opened under the consolidated

.  entity should be recorded on the general ledger, with regular activity monitored and reviewed by the
appropriate staff. The account was identified during our consideration of the Organization's bank
statements.

Cause and Effect

The conditions identified are the result of turnover and limited subsidiary activity during recent periods,
which resulted in limited monitoring of one cash account. The account balance was $3,080.

Prior Year Recommendation

We recommended the Organization include all depository accounts within the general ledger; with all
accounts reviewed and reconciled by Organization personnel on a regular basis.

Status

Resolved

Finding 2021-003

Criteria

The Organization is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining effective internal controls
over financial reporting that provide reasonable assurance that the internal controls will prevent
misstatements or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, intentional or unintentional, from
occurring.

Condition and Context

One invoice which was reported as an expense during 2021 actually related to 2020. This expense was
claimed for reimbursement under a federal award. Management's review of invoices was insufficient to
identify an immaterial invoice with improper cutoff. One invoice out of a nonstatistical sample of 40 was
recorded impfoperly.

Cause and Effect

The conditions identified related to significant turnover. The invoice identified as 2020 expenditures
recorded in 2021 was $1,597.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings
and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Prior Year Recommendation

We recommended the Organization perform additional training of grant managers to help ensure their
review of expenses includes identifying whether even immaterial invoices are being recorded in the
correct period.

Status
N

Resolved

Section III. Federal Awiard Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2021-004

Programs Affected I

AL 21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund

Criteria

The Organization is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining effective internal controls
over compliance that provide reasonable- assurance that the internal controls will prevent
misstatements, intentional or unintentional, from occurring, or detect and correct misstatements on a
timely basis.

Condition and Context

While comparing and reconciling the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) to the
consolidated financial statements, we noted certain program expenditures were excluded from the
SEFA.

Cause and Effect

The conditions identified related to significant turnover as well as a lack of processes to identify and
report COVID related funds. The condition resulted in management not identifying all programs, to be
included in the SEFA, which could have resulted in incomplete information reported to users of the
SEFA.

Questioned Costs

N/A

Identification of Repeat Findings

N/A
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- NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings
and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Prior Year Recommendation

We recommended the Organization implement a tracking system to identify and report all expenditures
of federal awards in compliance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

• Status
I

Resolved

Finding 2021-005

Programs Affected

AL 93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Passed through State of New Hampshire with a completion date of June 30, 2021.

In line with 2 CFR Part 200.502, the determination of when a Federal award is expended must be
based on when the activity related to the Federal award occurs. See Finding 2021-003

Status

Resolved
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HEALTH CONSORTIUM./;
2023-2024 Board of Directors

OFFICERS

Michael LeCy President
Weeks Medical Center

President/CEO

Ken Gordon, Vice-President
Coos County Family Health Serv ices
Chief Executive Officer (

Ann Duffy, Treasurer
Cottage Hospital
CEO

Michael Peterson, Secretary
Androscoggin Valley Hospital
President & CEO

DIRECTORS

Scott Colby
Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital
Former President and CEO

Greg Cook
Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital
President/CEO

Joining as an honoraiy member until April 2024

Ed Duffy, MD
Littleton Regional Healthcare
Executive Vice President, Chief Medical Officer

Mar go Sullivan
Androscoggin Valley Home Care
Interim Executive Director

Jeanne RobiUard

Tri-Count>- Communit>' Action Program
Chief Executive Officer

Vacant Seat

Ammonoosuc Comnuinit)' Health Serv ices
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Kristino Fjeld-Sparks
NH AHEC Director

Health Careers institute at Dartmouth (HCID)
Dartmouth's Geisel School o1'Medicine

Tiffany Haynes
North Countiy Home Health and Hospice Agency

Jaimie D'Alessandro

North Country Serenity Center
Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson, Treasurer
Northern Human Ser\'ices

Eric Moran

Whitehorse Recovery
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IDN Region 7 Project Manager February 2017-January 2018
•  Development of IDN initiatives to support integrated care
•  Reporting

NAM! NH National Alliance on Mental Illness -

Director of Adult and Family Programs - June 2015 to
January 2016
• Grant and Project Management and oversight including reporting, and supervision of

grant staff.
• Management of Family Mutual Support NH state contract that provided

funding for all of NAMI NH's core family support and education programs
•  Active participation in NAMI NH's Public Policy priorities- State and

Federal Legislation, includes serving on the NAMI NH Public Policy
Committee

•  Direct responsibility for management, recruitment, and technical assistance to
19 NAMI NH Affiliates.

•  Negotiate and deliver training contracts

•  Served on the Mental Health Planning and Advisory Council (MHPAC). The State is
required to have a mental health planning council, which includes consumers of mental
health services and family members, as well as service providers and Stale officials, to
review the State Plan and the implementation of the Plan. Also, served on the Medical
Care Advisory Committee (MCAC) a public advisory group to advise the State .
Medicaid Director regarding New Hampshire Medicaid policy and planning.

• Organization Strategic Planning

June 2011 to 2015 Manager of Grant Operations
•  Management of grants and projects for specific populations and topics including:

Veterans and Military Families, Supported Employment, support, education and
outreach to Coos County communities through Tillotson funding. Membership
and outreach project funded by NAMI National, Seacoast Women's Giving Circle
project to create awareness and promote advocacy around mental health.

•  Management of NAMI NH website content, including videos and webinar production.

June 2004 ~ June 2011 Community and Volunteer Developer
•  Volunteer Recruitment and Development
•  Provided training and presentations on topics such as: Public Policy,

Advocacy, "Life Interrupted" Family speakers program, Mental Health First
Aid, Family-to-Family Educational Course, Interacting with People with
•Mental Illness.

•  Oversight and management of content for NAMI NH's Social Media tools,
including 5 Facebook pages, Blog, bi-monthly Enews and twitter.

')
PK's Garden Center-

General Manager
October 1986 - November 2003 .

• Management of all operations for a Garden Center and Landscape services retail
business

•  Financial analysis and planning of all aspects of the business
•  Responsible for all employee policies and procedures, 70 employees
• Monitored and directed all purchasing
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• Advertising and Marketing

Designs by Annette-

Sole Proprietor of a Landscape Design and Consultation Business.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS & TRAINING:

NAM! Family to Family Educational Course
December 2000 - completed the NAMI Family-to-Family 12-week education course on mental
illness, with topics including brain biology, mental illnesses, coping skills, communication skills,
empathy, and support systems.

Certified NAMI NH Support Group Facilitator
January 2001 - 2015 Started and facilitated a NAMI NH family support group in Littleton, NH.

NH State NAMI Support Group Facilitator Trainer
April 2001 - completed the NAMI National Support Group Facilitator Trainer training in St.
Louis to become the first NAMI NH State Support Group Facilitator trainer.

"Visions for Tomorrow" Teacher

August 2003 - Qualified to teach the Visions for Tomorrow Educational Course for
parents with children with serious emotional disorders.

"Life Interrupted" Family Speakers Program
January 2006 - developed and published the "Life Interrupted" Family Speakers training
program.

NAMI NH Public Policy/Advocacy Training
August 2008 - developed the NAMI NH Public Policy training program.

"Family to Family" Educational Program Certified Teacher
January 2011 - completed F2F teacher training and became qualified to teach Family to
Family.

Certified Adult Mental Health First Aid Trainer

July 2013- Present certification also in Veterans Mental Health First Aid and First Responder's
Mental Health First Aid

Project Success Program Training
June 2017- Completed program training in the Project Success School Counseling program

Prime for Life Trainer

October 2017- Completed training for the Prime for Life program

Tillotson Leadership Series participant

2015

AWARDS-

2014^Eric Cogswell Memorial Award -Given to recipients who "provide hope, education
and/or support" for those living with mental illness.
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2014-NH Psychological Association - Recognition for the creation of the "Life Interrupted"
Speakers Program

2020- NH Community Health Worker Stakeholder of the Year Award

CURRENT VOLUNTEER ROLES-
Board of Directors for Northern Human Services- Community Mental Health Center for the
most northern regions of NH.
Board of Directors for Center for New Beginnings- Mental Health Center
Elected member of the Sugar Hill Cemetery Committee.
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Carolyn D. Schofielcl

Experience:
North Countiy Health Consortium

Senior Communicy Health Worker

NovembtT 2018-Present

Build rapport and trust with clients to assist them in determining their individual social
determinant of health needs and connect them to communitj' services. Provide informal
coaching to help them address their health and social needs to eliminate or reduce barriers.
Conduct home visits.

Foster strong relationships with area partner organizations to collaborate in client/patient
needs, promote the Ways 2 Wellness Connect program, increase interest in the self-
management programs and CHW trainings offered.
Trained to lead workshops in Stanford's, Chronic Disease Self-Management Program and
Chronic Pain Self-Management Program. Trained leader in Tai ji Quan: Movement for Better
Balance. Oversee scheduling and marketing of self-management workshops.
Northern AHEC Administrative Lead for the Better Choices Better Health Program. Duties
include scheduling of workshops within the NCHC leader staff, organizing and assisting new
•leaders, inputting data for evaluation purposes at the direction of the SNAHEC .staff.
Aid in improved communication between referring partner organizations and our clients
while adhering to confidentiality procedures.
Attend and participate in community events such as health fairs, poster sessions promoting
our program at conferences, and a panel member at local community cohversations.

Community Health Worker Education Coordinator

July 11, 2022-Present
Manage and coordinate Community Health Worker Training logistics, including scholarship
requests and cligibilitj', scheduling, registration, curriculum improvement and ovalLiation
procc.sses.

Help to develop and maintain peer to peer coaching to new CHW class instructors to assist in
growing the capacity of additional trainings in the future. Organize meetings to review
changes to the training. Organize and develop curriculum changes.
Work as a team to maintain communication with training participants, grade quizzes and
homework assignments. Offer individual assistance to class participants when needed.
Work closely with other marketing and coordination teams to promote the training and
scholar.ship opportunities.
Research training topics to provide 1-3 hour training opportunities to statewide NH CHW
Coalition members, partners and allies. Annual Summit planning member.

Cape Horn Pet Clinic
Practice Manager

June 2014-November 2018
Worked clo.scIy with owner of practice to open a new, warm and friendly veterinary clinic.
Ordering equipment, coordinating schedules of maintenance crews to adhere to a strict open
house dates. Configured the ho.spital in a way that would.allow ina.vimuni efficiency.
Created new training program.s, implemented new work policies and procedures, helped
develop an employee handbook, hired new staff, maintained personnel files and helped the
staff plan for continuing education. Promoted a client-centered environment by organizing
prograrhs and procedures that met and c.xceeded client's needs and expectations.
Developed a cooperative work environment among staff members; instilling the value of
teamwork; showed enthusiasm and willingness to perform as necessary to help the practice
function as a unit.

Promoted marketing programs that increased client/ patient visitation rates. Developed
product branding and logo designs. Studied and maintained effective advertising in the
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Yellow Pages, print advertising and social media. Created and updated a user-friendly
website with the help of a designer. Initiated new programs and marketed services through
public relations campaigns (Rabies Clinics, Special Pricing Days, contests, and giveaways}.
Effectively educated clients on their pet's'health concerns, offering helpful advice, tips, and
tricks on how to better care for their pets needs. Assisted clients in their transitions to
referral hospitals when necessary. Educated clients on a multitude of medical diagnosis,
treatments, and follow up plans.

Winnipesaukee Emergency/ Meredith Place Veterinary Emergency
Emergency Vctchnaiy Technician

June 20J2-Iunc 2014

Northern Lakes Veterinary Hospital
Veterinaiy Technician

December 2012- june 2014

Animal Hospital of Nashua/ Animal Medical Center of New England
Out Patient Nurse. Team Leader of Out Patient Nurses. ICU Technician

August 2009- May 2012

Countryside Veterinary Hospital
Kennel Assistant

December 2006- August 2008

Massachusetts General Hospital
Laboratoiy Animal Specialist I & II

October 2005- December 2006 Boston/

Education

Middlesex Community College
Bedford, MA , Major: Graphic Design

Westfield State College
VVcstficld, MA Major: Psychology

Chelmsford High School
Chclmsford, MA Graduated; 1995

Additional Experience and Certification

Northern Vice Chair of the New Hampshire Community Health Worker Coalition

Co-chair of the NH CHW Coalition, sub-committee on Certification

Certified by the American Heart Association in CPR
Trained Lader In Chronic Disease Self-Management

Trained leader in Chronic Pain Self-Management

Trained leader in Tai ji Qtian: Moving for Better Balance
Naloxone Administration Trained

UNH Professional Development and training: Teaching Adult Learners

Member of the National Association of Community Health Workers
Member of the New England CHW Coalition
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. rr-ivi.'l^ill-lSarsei

Employment History
Community Health Worker, North Country Health Consortium, September 2021-pre5ent
•  Bridge the gap between communities and the health and social service systems
•  Navigate the health and human services system

'• Advocate for individual and community needs, Build individual and community capkity
•  Provide direct service, Client record keeping

•  Covid and vaccination CHW

•  UNH Extension trainer SBV

•  Pilot Local Care Management for New Hampshire Healthy Families

•  Build CHW workforce capacity through mentoring and technical assistance to support local, regional,
and statewide development and integration.

•  CHW Training trainer

Operations Coordinator, Kingdom Community Services, April 2021-August 2021
•  Work with program managers to create volunteer recruitment, training, and volunteer support processes
•  Collaborate with program managers to develop systems that support staff and increase services to meet •

growing needs

Manage marketing and communication projects including social media, website and press releases
• Work with community partners to strengthen the food resources available to the greater St Johnsbury

community

•  Assist with grant writing and management

Project Manager, All Saints' Community Food Cupboard, May 2017-Present
•  Coordinate ordering, delivery and displaying of food and non-food Items for clients
•  Compile data on client visits for New Hampshire Food Bank, USDA and church reports
•  Recruit, train and schedule volunteers to work with clients and assist with food deliveries

•  Write and manage grants from New Hampshire Food Bank and other donors
•  Manage social media and communications about the Food Cupboard with the congregation '

Professional Organizer, Embark Organizing,
•  Founder and owner of Embark Organizing
•  Create plan to assist clients in becoming organized

•  Utilize.evidence-based strategies to empower clients to make meaningful change
• Work side-by-side with clients to achieve their organizing goals
•  Assist clients in rightsizing before a move or change in life event

September 2017-September 2021

Assistant Market Gardener, Small Axe Farm,
•  Harvest and storage of vegetables

•  Process and package vegetables for points of sale

•  Preventive management and control of weeds and pests

Seasonal Greenhouse Staff, Houghton's Greenhouse
•  Manage social media presence, create signage onsite

•  Transplant seedlings and plants, create hanging baskets
•  Plant maintenance and display

•  Customer service during check out, drive-up service during COVID-19 restrictions

August 2020-October 2020

Feb.-June 2020 & 2021;
March 2019-July 2019
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Substitute Art Teacher; The Riverside School, October 2012-May 2019
•  Maintain a creative atmosphere in the visual arts program when the art teacher was not available

•  Follow lesson plans or create my own for students in Kindergarten through 8"^ grade
•  Manage the needed art supplies and clean up for each project

Preschool teacher Children's Learning Center,
Head Naturalist Martha Lafite Thompson Nature Center
Zookeeper
Junior Curator Boston Museum of Science

: Education:
Master of Public Health Anticipated May 2027 University of Vermont Burlington, VT

Bacheiorof Science in Animal Ecology-Iowa State University, Ames lA I
Diploma-Winchester High School, Winchester, MA

Certificate: Professional Organizing Degree from Organizing U, organizing.com
Certificate: Core Four Business Planning Course from WREN, Bethlehem, NH

Certificate: CHW Training from North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH

Trainer for Chronic Disease Self-Mariagement Program and Chronic Pain Self-Management Program
Certificate: UNH professional development and training course Teaching Adult Learners

Secretary, Steering Committee, NH CHW Coalition January 2022-present

CEHI advisory board

CHW Advance advisory board

Panel member Summit conference

Presenter Stories behind Vacination

President, Board of Trustees, The Riverside School Lyndonville VT January 2019-August 2021
o  Board member since June 2015

Secretary, Board Member, Fairbanks Museum and Planetarium St Johnsbury, VT January 2019-present
o Diversity and inclusion subcommittee April 2021-present

Member Social Justice Committee, All Saints' Church Littleton, NH July 2020-present
Secretary of Board, North Country Pride, Littleton, NH April 2021-present

Facebook Administrator, Buy Nothing Group-Caledonia County April 2021-present

Selectboard member. Town of Kirby Vermont 2012-March 2017

Board representative from Kirby, Northeast Kingdom Waste Management District 2016-April 2021

Fairbanks Fellow Fairbanks Museum St Johnsbury VT May 2019

Volunteer Coordinator's council Volunteer Coordinator of the Year Kansas City MO 1999

National Association of Interpreters Region 7 Young Interpreter award 2000

NH CHW Coalition September 2021- present

NACHW September 2021-present

APHAJune 2022-pre5ent
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Savanah Miller

Employment History:

North Country Health Consortium .

Position: Recovery Support Manager

Program: Ask PETRA, WARM, RFW Liaison Program

Employed since November 2020

Topic of the Town Restaurant & Catering

603-444-6721

Position: Manager

2002-2022

I

Skills: Communication, Teamwork, Active Listening, Adaptability, Positivity.
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luana Wilson-Reynolds

Objective

I am seeking a job in an office setting, where we work as a team, and independently I enjoy greeting

the public, working with them and assisting with their needs, in a cohesive team environment.

Employment

11/2022 - Present

North Country Health Consortium - Administrative Assistant CHW/W2W NH Big Grant program

Enter all referrals into Apricot - Electronic Record

Check for chart completion.

Schedule meetings through Zoom, and CHW Calander in Outlook

This is a new position, developing as we go. I remain open and willing to do what is asked of me, and
excited to be part of developing this position.

North Country Gastroenterology - Receptionist

Being a receptionist for NCG, I enjoyed greeting and helping all the patients that presented at the office.

Answering Phones - Answered and forwarded calls as appropriate.

Scheduling - Scheduled all patients for initial visit and follow up appointments. Sending out appropriate
paperwork to be completed by the patient.

Medical Records - Put together Charts/records for upcoming appointments, filing, checked for chart
completion, documented communications with pt, or outside entities involved in ptcare. Culled records
of deceased patients, and filed them appropriately.

Release of Information - Requested information from outside agencies. Filled requests for records,
according to HIPAA standards.

Ordering supplies - Monitor supplies on a daily basis, and placed orders once a week to WB Mason.

Opened and closed office - Unlock doors, lights on, prepare waiting space for the day. End of day shut
down, and clean up for the day.

July 7, 2008-January 2022

Patient Access Supervisor/Registrar, Patient Access (Admitting), Cottage Hospital,

I enjoyed my job as one who is on the "front lines". Customer service is my passion and I enjoy

meeting and working with people from the community, as well as my fellow workers. I take great

pride in making sure that each patient starts off in a positive way.
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Data Entry - Registering patients requires accurate data entry. 98% accuracy is maintained

Insurance - Check for insurance eligibility. Notifying insurance companies of admissions and providing

ICO 10 diagnosis. Obtaining authorizations, and certifications for inpatient admissions and outpatient

procedures

Trainer - 1 train all new employee's coming into our department.

Answer and direct phone calls from within, and outside the hospital.

Computer System - HMS/Med Host. Current Computer system - ATHENA - We just switched to this

system in March. It has been a challenge, and a great learning experience.

July 1992 - September 2006

Coder/Abstractor, Valley Regional Hospital,

Coded all inpatient discharges, using ICQ 9 codes/CPT procedure codes

Abstracting - Data entry of all discharged inpatients

Release of information - Received requests from outside entities for patient's medical records.

Ensuring all releases are in place, following laws and guidelines, and sending the appropriate

information.

Education.

•  New/ Hampshire Vocational Technical College - Associates degree in applied science. Graduated

in 1988-Medical Records Program.

Springfield High School, Springfield, VT.

Communication;

Served on the Patient satisfaction team, at Cottage Hospital. This committee obtains feedback from

Patients and finds incentives for Improvement.

Member to the Decontamination team, training every 6 months, either by classroom, or by drill.

Past treasurer, and member of the Cottage Hospital Axillary - Fund raise for hospital
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Leadership

Supervisor Patient Access

First Congregational Church of Haverhill Corner

•  Chairperson for present search committee - Searching for called minister

\

•  Chairperson for personnel committee - Supervises minister, and church musician

•  Chairperson for Pastoral Relations Committee - Liaison between Pastor/leaders, and

Congregation.

References

I will provide references upon request.
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Norlh CountiT Hefilth Consortium

Communiiy Health Worker Training and Coalition Support-.Amendment #2
SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02

Key Personnel-SFY2024

Name Job Title \ Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Annette Carbonneau Director ofCHW Programs $10,655

Amber Culver CHW Program Manager $7,725

Dlianiele Duffy Comniunications/Outrcach

Coordinator

$6,045- .

Madican Bailey CHW Marketing Coordinator $5,479
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North Counti'v Mealth Consortium

ComiTiiinity Health Worker Training and Coalilion Support-Amendment #2
SS-2022-DPHS-10-COMMU-01-A02

Key Personnel-St-Y2Q25

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Annette Carbontieau Director ofCHW Proarams $13,081

Amber Culver CHW Pro.aram Manager $28,452

Carolyn Schotleld CHW/CHW Training.
Coordinator

$23,461

Rebecca Mill-Larsen CHW Proiecl Coordinator $ 1 1.172

Savanah Miller CHW/RC-Recovery Support
Manager

$13,151

Luana Wilson-Reynolds Program Administrative

Assistant

$13,619

Andrew Brown MIS Administrator $12,181

Dhaniele DulTy Communications/Outreach

Coordinator

$26,600

Madiaan Bailey CHW Maikeling Coordinator $20,133
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N^vvmber

:Ws Exc^to^/Qoyer^
.and the Hpnorabta Couh^

'.State'Houi'frJ . . . ..
'Coricbrcli*t4^:Han)tp^]^ -

ftEOUESTEDACTiON

''AolWn^ -the'Department'^ He^ Human Sefytor'Divliion ■bfiSiik?Wealth•96f^oeartd:eitter:lnto'ai8eti:8wrce amefWarn.to an.exl^lng cohtrad-wiUi.iNdrth Cduhti^v.
'ttealth ^ortium:(yc«!i5W57:^'l).:Utt|eton,iNH/fot't^^^^^
' HOTtlh WdrtefJGunrl^urn' end,to support the' CommuAty Healft vypf^ Ccalitloft, by vexetci^fr^ i
a renewel oj^bh'by .exter^^gdi^Icprnp^^b .from May 31,2(^3 to Jurip 30,; 2024. '^ectfve -;apon GoyQWf end Coundi a^rovi.wtih.rw chOTge to the'prto©^^
^Federal Funda, ; ~

'Tho1>rtgiriy:"cbntied.w^4:fippr^^ (^ritii.bh:Jime 1;.2022rl^
"  ' |x^^;nowr

' tT\r^requ#tfe Sdte"Sdurt»'l)TCaus6;MbP-1M'fBd
ipriVi^N approv^'asibte fiour^ootot>e;80t^veT%ideir^ed a3e<^^
ti* a uniqiwVqi®lif^ Ndw;:H^ dn C^rnmuri]ty:t^Ith'"Wto^^

Trdlnbig and uu.. u^uw
. * -'The'piffpdw of td.'pirte.^ the :c^f^-'d6htt»ol to allow .fbi^(l^:,corTtiiw ,C^ihsnpeikdrh Haafth Wdto Health Wort^ t^BC ' "

' be'ahhdi^ wrvtofoYtrtdiyiduafe'fdmil^ •
' dtabase end Imprtwe health'(hit Improyjhg theduaflty
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-^traWn^.'^tdchhli^l eissl^nce.-and conUiiDlr^li^uc^lo^ to the:general pub^ heaUh^

- ;pfdfe88lwate;h^lth1rt6Ufere;h8a o^antarttone to d^nd th6.M3e--
'! of"Comi^lty;'Meahh"

"'^Btate^deCbmTnunllyiKeaflh Wortte'f do&itk»h,'-i^l§npl.:he^^
ibfBffl^ton8>Abcouittab^:Cafe.b^ahi^ore;'arid:ptfttfkeyp8r^ -
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and the HbnoraUe CouncO
P<^20(2

Approximate ISOintfivKJuatet^n be eeivc^dyrihflSU^
nw.Comractor wD continue to provide services In, this agrement

eew ̂oree radal, ethnic,.;irum popuJatfone. The Conliractor wfll continue to
d^lpp'prqgrams tor radaUethrtlc mWorWes and rural populations to promolo rocrulinhent for
.Cornmuntty HeatthlWpttor b^Ing proQierro build workforce capacity.

•The^De^rtmerrt.win (tonflnuo to monitor servtees.by^

•  the mjmber ofiCornmunJty Heatth^WorVers. ̂ aff. edrhlnlfltfatora end payers. Sft^o:
particlpatd !n^traihin$.on.tbe.role%;and yali» of (^mmunlty, Health Worttefo;

•  TTw rtumber and ̂ pes of p^anizabons repf^^ntedan'theCqmmuni^ He^ VVortcer
:Coalition; and

- the pefoahtage of Grmwhuntty Health Worker Coalition membere who. report
'Satiafactlon viith, the leadarshlper^ fitojctore of the Coalition.

refererwed in BdilM'A of the oclgtnai.aoroem'et^/the parties haw the option to extend
■" if ' "

available.funding. agreemenl the parties and Governor and Ctoundl approyal. ThB Departoient
Is eKfirdBfr^ te optiorfio reiWWJS^N^ for One year (1) and one month (1) pf.lha,2.(lwo) years
av^lable.

.Should'thO.Govemor and Coutici.not airthofire this r^ue^re^hslpn of heajlhCTro
•vwrkfbrce and. programming Intended to build capacity of New yempehire Comrni^ty HeaWt
Workara to euppoh drgwiiatioha and.eervlceS for COVIOIO Impacted populalioria'may no! be
acKjevabIs, -which wouW. :negatlyeiy Impact the 'phyeical and' .mental wellrbeing :of these
;undaW)^^popu|ati^

aeiypdvStofi^rte"
Reapectfully submitted.

:

Loil A'Shlbinette
Cwnmiasioner

T^Dipoi^'ent ofH^l^ and Ifuman^Servicti'timhn.if ^d fond^
' Un ^vidP^opfii^nitia far diutfiV
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Oo^lgn EnyeU^ lp:.824D1C4j^3^^

State of New Hampshire
D^epartrUdptjpjf Health and Human Services;

Amendment#!

This ;AmGndmeht'to the Cpm^^ Worker tralhing arid Coalitiori Support contract: is by and
between Hhe. 'State pr ̂  of Health and Hurfian ,Services rstale" or
"Depa.rtmeht'').and NorthlCOu.ntry Health Cpnsprtiyrn; ("the (^ntractor^);

WHER^S, pursuant t6:ari-agreerrfent (the'"Cbntract") approved by the Governor and Execullye C^uncjl
on Junef 1 .^2022 (Item #24). 'the Contractor agreed to perfbrm certain services based upon' the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract.and,in consideration of certain suihs specified: and "

WHEREAS, pursuaht tp Forrri P-37, General provtslops; Paragraph ! 7 and Exhibit A, Revision^ to
Standard-Agreement Provisions; Paragraph 1.!;.,'ihe\Contract may be:amended upon written agreernent.
of the parties ahd approyal from.the Gpyemor and Executive Courjcii; and ,

WHEREAS, the parties^agTee tb.extehd the t^rm of the ag to support cbritiriued delivery of these
seryicesi^and

NOW THEREFORE, in cons0eratb of the foregoing and the mutualcovenants and conditjpns contained
in the Contract.and Set fprthlh.erein. the parties hereto agree to amend as foiiows:.

i.. :Fo'rrh R-37^Geherai Provisions. Biock 17. Cbmpietidn'Date, to read:*
Jurie3b.2024

2; .Form P^'37i Geiierai'Provisions; Blbck-f;9. Gbntractiiig Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W: Moore; Director,

:Nqrth;^ujilry :Heali^^

SSi2O22:bpH$klb'-G0MUrbl.-^}i [Page'.^ofa Dale -
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DocuSisn Emvlope ID: 624plC4A43iMlEp;'9^-EE(M^

All.terms and conditions of .tKe^Gbntract:notrnP.di^^^^ Amendment remajn.Jn futUorce;a_nd o^^
Thls'Amendmenl sHall.be OffecUve/upon'Govefnor andsCouncn approval.

IW yy.lTNESS WHEREOF, pod hands as of tha dale writton balow,

State of tjlew Hampshire
Department of Health and Hurhan Services

11/1872022

Date

DoevStga^ br

m! xiUey
Title: Director

li/W/MHO-

Date

North Country Health Consodium

Jaft^^^tkthyWrPcafs.on ^ ^ ^
Title: Executive "Oirector

N61(th'0duhlry'Heal^ CorisoTlium

.SSi2022-DPHS-1 OtGOMMU-Or-^^^^^
^A-S-1.2

■f^ge2of 3
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;c>OM^ Envelope"Ipre24blC4'A43fB^iE(V9C^^

The, precejdihg Amendment,,h beehTevle>^d by this"office, is'approved as to form, substanee, and
•execution;

OFFICEOF THE AnORNEY GENERAL

•pegfSlSwdbir;

,11/21/2022

Ddte ^ rl^r^Te'-Wtt^Cuarino
Title: Attorney

t hereby certify that the.foregoing Amendment approved by the Governor and Executive pouncil of
the State of New'Harripshire at the Meeting on:^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE'SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:.
Title:

..I

North'Cpunlry'HeallK" Cohsortum 'A'SVl^-
SS;20:22TbPHSr,10rGOMMUr0i;Ap1 l^ge,3:of.'3.
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StAtE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

plEPARTMENT'OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

mVlSiONOfPU^ SERVICES

Wri;A,!SbibJo>tte
. fCoomiuloqcr.

PatrtdiMlTUey
Dlrnler

29 HAZEN:DR1VE..C0NC0RD, Nil 03301
irS60TW2r334S ExL 4501,

Fai: 603^271-4827 TppAcc«»^ IH^735.2^
www.dbbs.ob.eov

May 2. 2022
His Exceiiencyi Govemor'Ghnstppher T. Sunurtu
arid the Honorable Councii

^tale Hou^-
Concord, NewfHkTipshire 0330";!

REQOEStED ACtlON

.Authorize the; departrnerit ,bf Health and Humari Services. DivlsiOri, of ̂ Public. Health
Services, to enter into-a j^bl© Source contrad with North Gpuntry Health C^risortiurTir^eri'dof"
Code" #1'5ii557.-BOp1)^ Lrttletori, NH,- iri: the amount of ,$t ;50d,o6o for the enhancemerit, pf^the
Community Health yi/prtcer .Curnculum ar>d to support the He^ WbfKer Coalitioa
.with the:;(^on;tp renew.for^ up to,tw6X2) additional years, effectiye upon Goyemof/ahdj^CQftjndl'
apprpvai through

Funds are availahle in the following accburrts fbr State, Fcscai years 20^ ar^,-2p23,
the authority, to adjiid budget,nho items within;the price nrhrtation and encumbrances; between
;state .fiscal yeare through the: Budget.Offii»V:if hee^ justified.
05^5i5^i01<W7710W^ HEwItH AND SOCIAL S^VICES, DEPT bF' H^TH AND'HUMAN
SERVES, H^; biytSibN OF PUBLIC HEALTH/BUREAU OF POUCY AND
PH COVID-19 HEi^TH DISP/UOTES ,

.Siate.Fiscai
Year

plass'/
Accourit

iCJassTitle Job Number Total Arhouht

2022 102-560731.
.. 'Gontractefor Prpgrahi

•Services
^0577150 iW50,000

:2*d22 'ipj?-^p73;i. Conliracts.fof Program
Services '

190577100 ;$j5d,QQd

^2023 . '102-500731
G.pntractsXPr PrPgrarn

Services
90577100 '^150.000

■2023 10275007^1' •Cphbactfor Prpgrarrl
'Services' ;90577l5q <$350,000

'Subtotal $1,000,000'

6'5^95-M'9d25ld^1956d HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF H^TH j^D HUIV^
S^RWCES- HhS:: DIVISION OF RUBUC HEALTH; BUREAU OF INFECHOUS DISE^lei
CONTROL. IMMUNiZ^TlbN CPVID^^^

State. Fiscal'
ypar ■

iCJass T
Accounts

Class Titte JobNumbeY .irp.tai /Vh.purit

2022- •102:500731
Conbacts.Xpr Prografh

Services
■9Pd232ld ■  J500,000

V

Subtotal:

Total ;$.1.500,0001

\nuDefxiTtm4^.of Healtk'anji (anil^^
M_,providi^'opiMrt^^ fqr.af^i^^ ccAieo'e" KedLUCakd. utdepindaieL
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'HisEjcceOerxy; Goyefrnr-Chrtst Sununu

■Page 2.of 3

EXPLANATION

n, This-r^ue^^ .is ^Sour^ because the epntraclor is a uniquely qualified New
Hamp^ire, Contractor ithat .'fi>cU^es oh CcOi'muhity - Health Worker Training ^id isuppprts the
Corhmunity' HMllh vyprker With, ernphasis :on' esqjanding nWioiityrnuraii/rartd
.disadyan^g^.^^^ •the.eohtractpr cornpl^r^ Ihe.traifiing Statewide, whiCh wiD
allow ;f6r cbrisistent ;ahd ongoing Health Worker trainm^ on the national 'Core
;competenc^, The Conlr^ will focus the itraihhg on COVlD-iS parklemlcHn^ted s6^ and
he^care sy^m «©rWdfte shortages and ad^ss' health-disparities ahwi'g pppt^ations who
aie at" high risk" of COVip-19. including racial and eflWiic minority poipulations arid rxfl^

y^mmunities.
The punxt^^ ths r^u^'is to aDqw f^^

VVori^ CuiTKutuni: Cornmunity;Hea]th Workers, biiktge health arid.soc^ services for irkliWduals,
ffamiiieis; land cdrnmuniti^. Thiay help to preverrtlchronic disease and impcpve heatth^con^
by faciFi^ng acc^ to wryK^ andjknprpylng the quality arid ciiitura! competehcb.of the se^
delivery py^erri. The: .Corit^c<br'wiir lechrijcal ;assistaricG. arki; continuing
educati^ progr^s jp the^geperal, j^blic. health; prpfes^'nals, f^lth'insurers, heaittirifa arftl
amimunity^>ased expand feuse of Community Health Workers in addf^irig,
the irnpacts of CbVlO-19'related to social determinants of hiealth. T^ Contractor will support and
partf^ ?«th a'^ewi^ Cc^ (^lition. r^ional 'heaftfi .daw sys^
cornrnuni^-based, oiiganizations. Accountable C^ Orgariizatidris, -and otto key partner
jorgariE^oi^ to Into he^. iand sy^ertts/
Pofrtractoi: win proij^.f^rrm Health .VVorker tr^ninguWrigdnrBne and/or in^rsori formats:,
■TT*d. Cbntractor^>^ support .'and partmirWith a" statewl HeiMth WdHt^'Coalition to.
%pfxjvb Coriimuriity Hwlto yyorker wprkforce/^ • ^ Wehtify viable finandhg
|meohan?sm8,:and buikiir^ Infna^ruc&rB to supto* Cdrhrhunity H

Apfkoxima^ dxliyidit^y^ servj^ldttfing State jFfspal Years 2C^ and 2di^:,
The Conbadtbr WUJ (xoyide services jri tfi'is agreerneht to di^nizatiOTW that save diyeiw

:raa^, etf^ Irpral, ar^ iBdeftoyed. pppt^^. The eprTtractor will develop a
"W^etenic minority arklniraJpppiriattons to
,trakW^:iypgrams;;ar^ wprkftyce capacity.

I^^rtmdnt'wQI htoriHorservici^
•  IThe, nUniber of; Cdnv^ Hea^ WbrkefSi staff,- toriihistfalbre' arid:;payem'W^o

part)dpat6.m.trairiihgtd^^ tlks. roles ar^ \^tue!i^C<kn
The hurnbiEif types idf organkatwris n^sf^eritcki oh the ^Comihuhay Health
'WortoOo^^rs^

*  Wdrtter <)«aiitipn ntemtm wdx)sal^in^i jhte'J&ato the Ckia^^
As r^erBrk^^te.Exhlbd A of titelattaChed ̂ rtorierit'the piEBt^ have'^the Cfittoh to ext^rtd

the apMtfhe^fiQf iip.h«b:(2)B^^ upon eatisfertoyj of setytoes;

iShould :tFte Ckiyemor an^ bburidil riotrauthOirutelthis' f^^ exparisibh of the heatteca^^
wbilddrDa' ^ PtoQfSrotlijTO to : t^itd tcapacity of New [Hampshire Qommurii^^
wprjkeiTB. to support prgantzatkmsTartdiseivices i^ dbyictlO^^ po^dtkiris rri^'^hot be
adtievabte, 'which would hei^tively im^ ?tHe-physji^ ar^ n>ef^ .vwl^ng of. these.
undefMry^pofiulatiorw in Ijlw



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3GE95DE6-BDA2-4D4&-B40A.D26E9188F389

Hi9^Eiq:dldncy;!5<»^^ Sununu.
and .ihe^Hwrabte.Couna^

iP.^e.3iof3

Area :MW^;;Stat^de

i$purce of Fedwal Funds: Assistance Listing Nuriiber #93,391, FAfN^tfNH^
As^stance Ll^ng Number #93;2M; FAIN #NM23I^

jn; the event: that" the F;ederalF.iinds become np.lpnger ayailablei iGeheral Funds'will hot
be requested to suppoil thls program.

:Re8pe'<^rfy:8ubmitted,

.ted A: Shibinettej
Jrt' :Gommi^ioner

■t^jAfiortm conmunUU* on^fomiUa
'in't^iAdihgoppofiuidtUi/or cUiwv.^'och{iik^ indtpehdeiKe:
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DbcuSIgn E.nyjBjope.lO: 80D|433E-4^P6-45i8;-/^6D-p648pC02E83C
FORM ;NUM BER P-37 (version 12/J1/2.019)

SufcijectlXpmrnurilt^ and Goaljtiqri Support';(SS"-2022-DPHST:l0'r.COMMU.-01)

. Notice:' ^hls ogrwme^ oil of Its attachments shaU bccomc public'upon submi5sion;lo Govcmor.and
Exccutjyc'Cp^^^ Any ihfomiaiign that is'private, confidential or proprietary)must
be clearjy idehlifjed.tg the,agency and agreed .to in wridng pnor to signing the contract^

AGREEMENT

The Staie of l^cw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually.ogree as.follows:

CENERAL-PRdVlSlONS

:i. IDENtlFlCATlON.
I . I State Agcncy.'Namc

l^ew Hamp'shife pepa^ Human Se'rylccs

1.2 StatciAgcncy-Address'

129 Preosant. Street-
:Goncordi l^H d330'l-3857

'  13 iCbhtractor. Name

Ndrth Go.unti^ Health Consortium

1.4-Coniractor'Address

262 Cbttage'Stree't-iSuitc 230
Littletbn-::NH;d356.1,

1 .;5 'Cohtractqr PHpnc
)Number

(6.03)259-3700

1.6 Account Number

P5-?'5-:?0-90;!diO. :
5-77.i.0boO; 05.95:^90.-
9026I.0-:i9'560.000,

1.7 Completion Date

May 31., 2023

1.8 'Price Limiiaiion,

51,500,000

• 19 ICdiitractingO/ftcer for-iSla^e

Nathan P. Wh'lteVbirector"

|;;I0. Stat'e^Agehcy Teieph^^^

(603) 27I.t9'63 1

"ir.ij: ,CphlractprSignatUrc 1.(^12 Name and Tiile.bfiContractor'Signatory,

•Lauren !pearson Executive;;pirector

,1.13: 5tate.T'f^ficy^ghalure.
Oel^lg^ try;

;S/1PZ2022

:f.l4: Name'and.Tidc p.f'Stalc A'gc^

iRatricia'iM. TiTiley .Director'

,l;.J 5. Ap^flVSif^5^Y^W.TI."pep.^menl of Admiriistration',;Divisibn of Personnel (if applicable)

:B'y: Pjrcctpr,.On:j ' i'

j.tb Apptpyal by the Attpmey G.encraJ.(Fprtn,,Sub$unce7a^

:i.l7. Approval by^ihffCwertwrtnd ExcculiyeiGpuncil Ofapplicable)

'  'C&G;l(etfi'humbcf:; p&C .Meeti:ng Pate:

Page J of,4
.Gdritfaclor'IriiiiialsT . "

Date:""™??.
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ID: BpOV4.32E-4EFM5lt-«^8p-p6^^

2.. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED'. The Stale of New
Hampshire,^acting through ihc agency ideniified in block
("State'.'), crigages cphiractpf "identified; in block- 1.3
("Con^ctpr'')'to pcif^ and ihe'(^ntra^ pertprtii, the
work;orsale!of goods; or both,identified and more particularly"
described in thc:-attached EXHIBIT, R .which ris !i'ncorporated
hercin,by-referencc.(-'Scrvices").

■X, EFFECTIVE pATE/COMpLETJON PFSERVICES.
3.1 ;N,oiwithstandii}g any .prpyisiph of ihjs .Agreement; to. the-

, cphtrary, and subject ;tp ^e apprpva). of the .Governor .and
E.%ccutive Gouncil'of the!State of New Hampshire, if appiicable',-
thisA^ccment,and oil obligations of the parties hereundcr,.shall
become effective on the date-"the: iGoyemor and Executive

•Cpuhcil. apprpvc this .A^ccment'm Sindicaied iii .block 1/1.7,
linjess nonsuch ap^ is'reqOirtfd, in whichp^^
shall become efiectivc on the'datc the Agrecrhcnt is signed by
the State Agency as shown In blpclc i". IT (''Elfectiye pate"'):
3;2 iTthe doniractor ^commences the Services prior to the
Effective Da'te, alfScrvices pcrformed.by the. Contractor, prior.to-

■the Effective; pate ;sh'all be' peWormed at .tHe>sble risk; of the
•Contractor,Vndjh the eycht that this, Agreemient does'hot.becom^^
re ffwtiye;. the iState ;shpjl .hayp ino, hablhty to the; ^Qohlractori
includirtg": without limliiatibn, any obligation jO pay the

rContractor for any costs incurred :or Services performed;
Corilractor must .complctc.ali Serviccs'.by the Compiction Dale

^specificd'in block.!];?;

4. CONplTfONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT;
Notwiihsianding any 'provision of'this: 'Agreement to the

-contrary, iail obligations of ^tHc State ihereunder,'including;
■without limitation,'the continuance of payments hercunder, are
icpnTirigehtlu'i^hthe;availability and,,cbhtinued'ap^
'fun^ [affected by n'hy state ;'pf f^eral legislative or execuiive
'ac^i.pn that "redOces.i .eliminaics.' modifies the
''appropria3ipn;pr'o'yai lability ̂ offundjng'^^for^ Agreern'ent^wd
ithe Scope fbr Services provided in.EXHlBlf B, in whoie or.'ih
;pari. In ;no levcnt shall the ^Siatc: be rliable Tor any payments
•hcticundcr in.excess.bf siidh ayailable apprpp.riatedTunds. 'Ih.the
ieycht of a; rclJucti.ombrJ of apprppriatci^'f^^^ the
^State]$halj,;K^ the nghl'to' withhold pa>ment;urilil sucb
ibecptnc .available, ircycf,;^and.shall havc-;die';nghi tp;rcduPC'^
'terminate the Scrvices^unber thiis Agreement Immediatcly- upon
/giving 'ihcXontractor nptice-.ofvSuch reduction or I'ermirtation,
'The Statc'.shall.inpt'bc required tbTfansfcr funds ffbm'ahy jpiKef
fac.couhl or sourc^.tplhc^^^^^ ijV blpdk i;6-|in the
evcnt fyn'ds in tharrAccPunt are-reduced or unavailable!-

[5. CONtRACt. PRTGE/PRICEtlMiTATlONA
Irax.'^eW-. ... .. .1 ^ ^ ■
;5.,l,The;cpntracj Rri,ce|rneth6d
jare\ idcnUfied .and more particularly ddscnk^d jn EXHIBI.f'iG
iwhich'iis'ihcorporatcd.hcrcimby'refcrcncc.
;5.-2"'Thc payment,!by the State'.oTjhc conUTici,,price:shalTbe the
'Only and!;thelc6mp[ete re imbufseiiiem to the Contractor.:for:all
;cxpcrise;s',.'pf w iricuriied.-by'the Gdnjracipflh the
rpcrfpriTiahcd hcrepf, shall, be T.hc !pnly;ahd .the cpniplete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services: -the Slatc shall
have.no liability t'o'ihe.Contractor other thanuhexoritraci price.
5.3. The Slate. rescr>*es Ihc right- to offset from any'amounts
otherwise payable'tp the Cpritrac!tof-un'de|;iKis,A^ those
liquidated amounts reqiiircd or permitted by N;h!,. RSA SOi?
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision Pf.law.
5.4, Notwiihstandirig, any provision Hn this Agreement lb/ ihc
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. ln:no
eyeiit'sKall,the,total of all payTnents authorizcd, or 8ctually:madc
hcfcunder,'exceed Ihe.Price Lirhitaliph setfoflh in.blpck l,.8.

6/GOKPLrANCE'BY contract
AND REGULATIONS/ equal EMPLOY
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In cpnncciion-with; ihc pcrformaricc of ihc. Services, the
Gpritractdr shall comply with iill appj.icabl.c statutes, jaws,
regujations, and iprdcrs .of fcdcial, state,, county pr'';munlcipa_l
authorities, .which; Irnp^ any pbligatipri. or duty upon the
Contractor,-including, but not limited to, civil rights and cquaf
employment opportunity laws. In addition,.if this Agreemcnt'is
funded in.any part by monies of the.Uriited Sia'tcs.the.Contraclor
shall comply'wj.ih all federal;executiyc.brdefs, rules, fegulatiohs
and;sta.tutes,.and wjth:ohy rules"; regulotipn§,and gui.d^^
Staie-or ihe'UhitW Stajes iMue tp iiiiRlemem-ih^ "regulaijorts,
The'Contractorshaii also'comply.-with all applicable intellectual
property.;laws.
b.2,'During the tcrm;of this Agrecmeni, the Corilractor shall not
discririiinate. against, erhployees-^ipr" applicants' for, cmplpytTiehi
because of face,■ci6lPr,''religipri,Jciw
oricniatiort.ior national origin and wili take-affirmative action to
prevent such di'scrrmination;
6.3. The'Contractor agrees !to permit the State ;or United States
access to any of thVCpniracior's books,-records and accbufiis for
the purdoWbfasceriairiingppmplian^ regulations
prid idfdcre, bn.d. the icpyVnatits, tcrM andj cphdition^. .Pf this,
A^crricnt;;

7. personnel.
;7.1 The Cpntractpr shall at its pwn;.expense prpvide all personnel
riccessajy tp. pcffprm the Services, Thc.,C6hlractpr wairfam
pit pcfsdnncl engaged in ^thei^Scivices shalj ,,be! 'quajified. to
^■fforTTi the 'Services;; 'ana ;shall be 'pfopiefiy licensed and
otherwise authorized to do sP under all applicable-laws.,
7.2„Uriless;piherwise authorized in writing.-'during the-.term of
this Agreefhent, land" for, a p,cnpd of six ;(6)! months' aflefiihe
.Cpmpjeiion!Date in'blpck i;7; fhcXontracipfVsha^^^ hot [hire; and
shali not pcnriit :p_ny subcpritractpr" or; .;pther person, Tfrm. pr
corporation with whom it is!cngaged in a/cpmbined effort to
perform'.the.Seryices.tp hire,'any person who is.a.State employee
of .pfncial- who [is materialiy inydlye'd [in the pfpcu'remcnt,
a'drTiinlstratiph of. pe!ifpfman'ce ipf Hjiis' Agreement.; nils
prpj^i.5ipn shajljS this Agreement..
7.3 The Contracting 5fficer:specifieb'in blpck; i .9, or his or her
successor, shall bclhc Statc's rcpresenjative.: In thc;evenrofany,
dispute concerning the lihtcrpretation pf this; ;Agrccmcnt; the
ePntra'ctihg.O,fTicbr's,dcci.si6'ii;sh'a.ll:bcTirialfof^^

[Page 2 of'4a
-'Gontractor'Initials

.  ' bate. "WTTUT?-
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8. EVENi; dF DEEAULT/REIVIEDIES.
8.1 .Any one or more of'lhe following acis,6> omissidhS;bf.;thc,
Conti:ac(orshairc6nsii.tuieM eyehtpf.dcfauJl'W^
of Default';);-
8.:I.J faijure Jd PCff®"!! sallsfaclonly' or ^on
schedule;

8.:1;2 faiiurc lo submit anysreport required hercunder; and/or
8. i .3 failure to^pcrform.'any other covenant, term or,condition of
this AgfwmehY.'
8,.2;UponYhC;QCCuitence'pf any may
tajteyhypnCi-or.mpre prafVpf.the following aciioiis:
8.i2;;i give the.pPntractpr a written notice specifying iHc-lEvent of
Defeult;and requiring ii to be remedied.wiihin, in the obsencc of
a greater or lesser specification of tiiiic, thirty (30),days;ft"pm the
datc.of.the holicei^ ahd if the Eyehtpf Default is npt tim
terminate this Agfccmenti efe
^Gdhtractpr.hPiicepfte'rTn
^.2'.2 giveth'eiCbntractbfa'written'noiice specifying the Event of
Default' and suspending; all payments- to be; made' under this'
■Agreement and.:ordcrihg thai the; portion-o'fihe contract p'rice;
.which-,would oiherwiise'accrue Yd ;ihe;,Cbntractbf .during :lhe
period frpm^the-.daic of such Hoiice until such.time" as the State,
deterinihes "th'at:'lh"c Gohtractpf ;tos cyfcd.YheJ Event of Default
;siitaU,neycr ^ paidto the:Gonlractor;
;8.2!3 give the Contcacibr a,written notice specifying the Event of
■Default and set off against .any pthcr '.obligatipns. the Slate niay
:owc to the ConlracYor any.damages".lhpS,tate,sufTers.by,rcaw^
any Event.pf Pefaurt;.and/pr,
B.i.fl give'thejGonttpctpTawThtefi^
ibefault',- 'treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
'Agreement and.pursue any of its remedies al;iaw or in equity, or
both;
'8.3. Noifailure.by the StaYcYo enfbrce.any provhsjon^heY^^^^
:any Event df:Defa'urt;sha1l>"'c7dee,m^^^ 9/J,fsirigHis with
rfcgard ;io 'UpY Event ;pf" DefauU, or nhy'sub'scquen^^^^^ Event Of
'n^faujt;;'%),ejcpresX,ffli!preYped^
;b'e'<leemed a'waiver of the'right of the State to enforcc.cach and
ail of the provisions heredf-upon.'any 'furihcr-.or other Event of
ibcfauli'on.thepart.of the Cohtractdr.

?; TERMINATION..
)9.-1 •Nptwiihstanding pafagfaph .8,- Yhe-, State; imay; 'at its 'sole
[drscfeiipnVterininatc the Agreement' fdrany'rcason.'in, wholc.or
iin pan;.by;ihiily. (30)'-days wTitlcn notice tp'tHc Controcidr that
.thc'State js exercising-itrpptibh tb.iciTOjhmdthe:AgTeemc^
i9.2 In the eVehidf dn. early tcriniriatfpn'pTthis Agrcetneni for
;any Yeasbn bthcr th'd ^cdmpletjph' of the Services, the
iGdhtractpr shall,, ^al. -the; Stale's discretion, .deliver to the
iContrBciingbfncer,.notlarerlhan:fiftccn;C15);(iays after ihedaYc
'.of' ierminationi 'a report- (-Tcrniinatidii ■Report!^) describing iin
iditail alliSerylces pcffonrtc'd, anUYhc contracY pn

-iand:includihgYheddte.pf,term^^ ThcTprih,_>ubjecl mdttcf;
:cdritent',.';and;humb^^^^^ ,Termination ^Report shall
'be Identical to those of any Report dcscriBcdin'thc attached
.JXf-liBif 6.-In;additibn,-at theiSiat'els discretion; the ConYracipr-
.shaJli'witKiii.TS-days of noiicc:df;eari^ ierminauon, de.yclop.aiid

submit to the State a Transition, Plan .'fdr'^,services; unYlcr ihe'
;Agreement!,

10. DATA;ACCESS/C0NFIpENTIALlfY7
PRESERVAT^
10.1 As used in.this Agreement, the .word."daiV.' shall.mcan all

Yriformation and things developed or obtained during the
(performance of.-^^oracquired or.developed.by reasdti of, this
.Agrccmcni- ihc,ludihg,.but hot Mmited lb, all,studics,;repp"rts,-
fi les; fojThulae, surveys, mapSi'ch^,;SOund recordings, video:

ireCbfdings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer prihiou'ls, notes;
lctters, memoranda, papers, and documents,,all whelhcr-
frriishedior unfinished.
1.0.2 All data and wy pr.pf^ffy-which;has l^en received from

'thcjState or purchased with fynds provided for that purposc
urider this Agreement, shall be ihe property.bf the Siate, and'
'shall be returned to the State upon.demand or,upon termination
*.df.this:Agreement for any reason.
],0.3:G6rifidchtiality.bf"data shall be gbVemcd by N.H.-RSA

-chapter 9.I;-A or bthcriexisting law.- Disclq^surfpfdataY<quires
prior'^irt.eri approval of ihe'-State;

i I . C6NTRAGTDR:'S-RELATI0N TO THE state., InYhe
'performance.of.this: Agreement-;the'Gontraclpr is ih.'ail respects;
an independent cbritractbr, ,aind iis 'heilhcr ari agent nor 'an
employe pT the 'State. Neither ihc' GpmractpY nor any .pf lits
officers,' empjoye'es, agents or. members shall'have authority, to
bind the State orTcccivc any benefits, woricers''Compensa(ion;or.
othcr'cmoluments provided, by-the'State.to'.its, employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS,
|2..1„The .Cdnlractbr shall riot assign,,of othctwiw
imercstjn this Agfeemenrwiihput the prior wriuen nPlicCi-whicli
shdif^yproyi'd^^^^ atleast fi fteenvfiS) days-prior to
the MSignment.'and a written consent of the States Tor purposes
of this iparagraph, a Change; of Gonirbl- shall icohstituie'
assignment. "Change of- Conirbr' mcaHs (a) fnergcf,.
consoIidation,.br aY'rahsactibh ofsertes pfrH^
whl9^^ A Yh'.ird 'party, Ypg'ethef .with "Us affiliates, ibc.cbmcs 'the
direct or indirect pvmer pf! fi fiy percent (50®/p):or ,m6rc'.'of;the
yoYing shares'-pr similar equity' Interests, or :combined vbtihg
powcr of the:Contractor; or!(b) the sale.of all or.subs'tantially all
of iiic:nssets of the Contractor.
;12.2 N-One 'of :thc;; rScryices shall be' by tthc
CpntractprAnth ^-yritten tiotice and cpnsentiof the State.
The State is entiiied.io cop'ies of all subcontracts and assignmcnt
agreements and shall.ndl be bound by"any proyisions coniaincd
iri,o subcpntrocYor an assigrimertt ag'fwmcnyid^^^^ is-npya
paffy. ■ -

Yi.jNpEMiVin Unless oihcrwisc.cxernpYedby!law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers :and -employees, !from and .against Atiy and.al! ."claims,
liabilities .and costs'Tofahypersorial injuYyof-prpperfy!^^^^^
palent.oTcp'p^ghi infringement, brTpiherciait^
the State,_;i^'qTiccrs:p!remploye«
may .be; claimed, tq arise; but- pO, .the octs-'pr omissien.^o^ie

.,. 1. ■ ■
:GontractorTriitiais

I3atc~W^'
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.Contractb>i !dr including but hot limited (to the
ncgligcn'ce;.tccXIcss orjntentipjHal conduce TKe.;Sihic shall hot
bp'Jiabie fprXhy^^ inciirfcd by;the,Cphtra^^^ under
(his.paragraph 13:'Notwithstandihgthe foregbihgVnothihg'herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of tHe'sovereign'
immunity bf,^he.State,^wKich■immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stale. (This .covenant in paragraph (13 shall, survive the,
•tcrfhinatioh.ofthisVApeemch^

If.liNSURANCE^^^^ ' ■
The Contractor-sha'lh at .'its; (sole Mpcn^v obtain an^

contchuously' maintain in force; and shall require: any
subcontractor-cr assignee to obtain'and maintain 'in force, the'
followihg'ihsurancc:'
.I4..I..I commercial general liability insuran'ce^againsi.al) claims
of bodily jhjury, idcath or prpperty^(damagX |h'amounts bf'noi. .
less than Sl,p0P,Q00'per'.bccu^^^ and $2,MO,000,aggregate
or excew; and(
14.^1.-2 special cause of loss coyerage fo.nh'.cpyerihg ail property"
siibjectrto subparagraph 10.2 herein,-ih ah amount-not less: than
80*/^ oTthe:.whole;replaccmeni value of the property.
l4.2iTHe i^licies described insubparagraph(l4il herein shall be

.on policylforms andicndorecmcrits.approycd.for use in the.Siate.
of. Ne\y Hampshire byilhc, hl:H(,i|>c'parlm^^^ and,
jssd'ed by in'sUrers licehscd i.n i Hampshire.
14.j3The; Gbniractorkshall ^ftrnjsh to ithe iCohiracting(Officer
Idcntificd'in block.V.9| or hiscor her successor,.'a'certificate(s') of
insurance, for all rinsurance' required. 'under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fiim'ish to the ContractingOfncer identified
in block :l.9, or.his of,her successb>,'cehificatc(s):.6T
forallTenewl(s)bf insui^'hce fequiredundcf'th^ no
later; than ten (ip) 'da'ys(," p.ripr to; the expiraripri .dXte, b.f each

'insurance; (pbl'ipy.; The c_efliOcate(sj pT' inSu(rancc: ["ond. ;ahy
,;rene\yals;ih,erep£shajf be herein by
srcfercncc:

15. WORKERS'COM PENSATION;
15.;l "By-signing this agrecmehythc Coritractpr agrees^ cciiifics

•.ohdo^'ffapts;ihafihe.Cpntfactb; is-inc^^^
■frbrhj the requiremcnlXpf N:H ._RSA'^c^^^ C^^^orkers'
iCompensqiiqn'').
15.2' -to the extent the Contractoris'subjcct.to the .requirements

.of NiH. RSA- chapter ,'281 iContractor 'Shall maintain,; and
,require :anyisubcontractor or assignee to-securc^andlmaihtain,
ipa^eht of \ybrkcre' (ebmpchsaiibh jifi, cphhectldn' .with
|achyitlcTwhich,\hepefspn'prbp^^^
jA'gfe'ement. •Tji^Cprilrectqyshan
lideniifiedanblock l.9,:orhisorhcrsuccessor,proofof-Workers'
Compensation ;in !thci manner .described (in (N.H. ,RSA .chapler'^
;281 -A ;arrd.' any applicable" :rchcwal(s); thcfc(6f; 'which' shalf be
ra.ttached and a/c-;ihcpi^pratcd^ he^ iby fcferchce;^. (The .(State
Ishall (npi ,.b?; X5?P9"sibjc) fof (p'ajmchi 'of any, Workers'
Cpmi^nwiipn premiums orfbr. any other, c%im:-pr:bcnefit for
;GontrMtor, for'iany subconlfaclor'tor empipyec .'of Gbnlractor-
•which mighi arise under applicable Siatc ;of New .Hampshire
vyofkers'. 'Gompcnsatibn laws; ^h^ ^connection; -with the

-perfbrmarice.of ihe"(Scryiccs underithis.Agrecment'..

116. (N.OTCCE. Ahyinbiice by (a party hefetb-tp ihc;;6ihcf-|^ity''
shallbe^deemcd;tp have,been dulydciiycredof gtycn(at;,ih(e^
of miajling by-ceniricd^tbaH. postag'c prepaid, in
.^Post Office addressed tp'the parties :at ihc-addXesises' giyen;jin;
blocks 1.-2 and I.diiherein.

;i<7. AMENDMENT.'This Agreement,may'.be.amcndcd.Ayaived
bf (discharged phly by "ah.-iristfumehl in (writing sjghcd by the
partrcs Hcrcto( and only (after (approval, of .such 'amcndmbnii
waiver'pr'discharge by the Gpvcrnpf and(Excculiyc ^
the State of New Hampshire unless no-Such appro,val is required
under.ihe circumstances pursuant to'State taw;iTule or policy.

:18., (CHOICE(OF LAW. AND FORUM. This Agrccment:shall
be,govcme(d, ihtefpreicd.and.cbnsftbed ih .accbrdancc with the
la'wsbfitHe State(6f Nc'w Hampshire", ahd'(is binding upph "and
inUrcSjip.thcbcnefu.bfthe paftiesand their rcspccii.yc successors
and Msigns; The wording used iii this Agrceiricm.is the wprding
chosen by iHe parties ip express thei.r'm.utval .intcnh'0.nd\h6 rule
of construction shall.bc:applicd against or in favor of any party;
Any. actions arising oul of this 'Agreement shair.be'bfoughiiand
maintained ih.New.lHampshirc Supcrior Couii,which.shalKKavc
exclusive jurisdiction .thereof.

.19,;. COiyFU in the pycntj of a (bonnict
between .the terms of this P-37 (forin"(asim^ified in;(EXHI.Bi(F
A);and/br atiachments and amendment.thereof, tHe;icrms o,f the
P,07 (as.modified in'EXHiBlT A) shall cont'roK

20". THIRD; (PARTIES: The" parii.cs (bcrcib ;d6 -nbt .intend. (Id
benefit" (any' third ("parties; (and this 'AgrMnicnt shall: inbt X(e
cpnsirtcd tp((cbnfcr(any'^s.uchbencfit...

21. HE.^-piNCS. Thc„h'cadihg'f thrp.ughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes ontyi-'and the words contained'therein
shalKin no way be. held to explain; modify, amplify.or aid'.in the
imeiprelation, consiructioh or mcahing^df thcf/piioyisibns of this
Agr"c"c(mcnt.

22;^, SPE^^ PROYISlONSj: .Xdditipnai br fiXpdffiymg
provisions set.Torth in the altached EXHIBIT A-are Incorporated
hereinby reference.-

2,3';(SEyE[LABILI'TY.: lh(the((b(ycnCany,6(rthe p^^^^
^grccrnVnt Lby7a(c(pu,rt((pficbrnp^^^^ Ib^be
cp(ntfary tplpny.slate'pr'fedcralslaw.thXrcmalhin^^^^^
this Agreement;will reniialn'in fuli'force:and cffecii

24. ENTIRE,.AGREEMENT: ThisvAgfccmeril, wKicH mayCb.c
execute in a' number ;6f;c(6(uh(tefparts, (e^^^^ shall,be
deemed^ [an priginal,- .'cbnsii.tmc's (the: ^entire; •"agrccmfm. and
unders.iandmg .between "the (partjcs,'. (and s.upcrecdcX all pripj
agreements and und'crstandings.wiih respcct:to thc:subject matter
hereof.

(Page 4 of 4:
(Coiiifactor Initials. .. 7. ,

Date;
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New Hampshire Departmeiit of Heajth and Human Seryices
Commuhity Health .Wbrkef training and Cdaiitlbh Support

EXHIBIT A

■Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

t, Heyisions tp^ Form P-3^ iGeneral Prpvisipns
1.1,.. Paragraph 3».: Effective Date/Cbmpletion ^ Services^, isdrdende'd by Padding

[sobparagraph'3.3 as. follows:
.3.3:;, The; parties, may .e.)dend the. Agreement for up; ,twp' (2)' additipnaj years

from, the Ccrripletioh Date, cohtihgeht upoh fsatisfacto^ delivery lof
, services, ayallabfefundi'ng. agreement of the parties, and'approval of the
Gbyempf: and Executive Gpuiicil,,

1.2.. Paragraph 12, .Assighment/belegatiori/Subcontracts^ ahiended by adding
jsubparagraph: 12 3 fas follows:

12.3. Subcbhtractor's are subject; tp jHe samb cbnlfactual conditions, as: the
CPritracto'r.and-the G.ontraPtor is responsible to;On'sure: ,'subcontractor:
compliance'^,with those,.cpndH^^^^^ The, Cpntractpr shall haye, wjitten
agreeniehts with. ali subcontraclbfs.^specifying the work to be pOrfornied.
and jf applicable, ia Pusines.s ,Associate Agreement in :accorda;nce with
the Health: ■jhsurahce Portability 'and Accpuhtabillty Act. Written
agreernentSAshall sped^ how, cPrrectiye:actipn s be managed. The
0  sifall manage thp subcphtractpr's perfprmance on an;phgping
basis';ahd taiie corrective 'action as necfessaiy.. The Contractor shall
annually prpyide Jhe.'i.State with a list of all subcontractors p.rpvid.ed fpx
uhdfef ^this Agreement and notify the iState of a'ny ihadbqii'atO
subcpntractPr pertbrmance.

:SS-2022.DP»^S-iO-COMMU-b;i
is

NMh'Coyntq' Heail^

A-,1,2:

IPage i ofi

Contractor. Initials.

Dale
5/2/20.2.2:
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New Hampshire Departrnent of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training ;and.Coalition Support

EXHIBltB

Scope of Serviceis

i, Statement of Wbrk

^ J . The C.ontracior .shall proyide: the services in this Agreenient to prgaiiizahons;
that serve diverse and, uhderserved !pbpuiatiohs In 'accordance with NH R'SA:
354-A:-3r. .*

r

1.2. theCbntra.ctprshali en seivlces|nthis Agreemenlare,avaiiabie statewide..

■1.;3, Rpfthejurpdses of this Agreement, ali references to days:s,haii meah;busines,s'

i ;4. .For the purposes :of this. Agreerheht' all^ references to business hoursl shalt
meah' Moriday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, iexcluding state; and
^ederaiTiolidays;.

^;5,. The; :Cbntractpy'sha iitiiize a Equity .Review toolkit, ;as: prov'ided iby the;
'  ibepartmenl^to'r'aii projects in :this;Agreetnen.t,lp ens an equity apprpach for

■a'll;SC.Pp.e'pf;wp.rk-
1  ?C6mm'u'riitv'.Health Wor^

*1.6..1.,, the PpPtrectpyshajj prpyjde t'raining.lechmcal as'sistahce, and
cpritiriuihg education programs'tolhe generatpublic, health

'  , professionals", health, insurers. a;nd heaUhcare, and.cprnmunltyrbas^^
prgamzatipns to e_xparid'the use' bf'Gorhmuhity Heaith Workers;(CH.W);
in addressirfg the impa'ctS;'of CdViP-f9;.rejated, to'.spGiaI'detenTiinan
pf-heatthv;

T.6.2:- the Gbritrafcto'r shall prornofe GHW training, which[fncjud.es.but is not
iirni'ted tothe fbl|owing;ach

Conducting heeds a'ssessrriehts. To identify professVbnal
deyeiopment ppportumtjes for in the-sta^^

i)6.2:l2i Managing GHW' Training, logistics, including; scheduHng',
:regjstratibh, Irnpiementation'and ;evaluation: pfthe irairiings;

i ;6.2.-3'. 'Building a :cadre; of: CB-W training Tacuity 'to syppprtj.peet'tp
peerTraihlhg;'!

1:6.2.^. 'Deye'lbplng ja 'GHW ayyareness program Tor ;ra'cial/bthhic
.mlnpnties and ;rural pppulalibns to prbmote Tecruitmertt for
•ChW training progrjams and bPlld.wprkjfprpe, papacjtyf

1:6.2i5':; Creating a 'pfofessibnal .develppment' series; .ihcluding
toppbrtdnitiesiprlocatCBW nehvo;kingand.;educa^^^ ■

1 .■6,2i6; ;E!e.Ve1pp.ing:and[olFfefing trajnlng ,and^ educatibnlb
icii.nical and ■cbmmuh'ityi^based agencies staff,/administrators,
land /payers; pn; hovy'tp Integrate CB.Ws intp:'the"wpyk pfthe
lageO-piesj:

'A i,6.2>7. ■CbordiriaTihg with' htghbr edUcatibh: ins'titutibns JncJu.ding
iGonlrnunity 'College, syst'ejris'. 'to crpate; PHW Jl^'ning

.

SS?2022-DPHSt,C^COMMU-0;i Conlractor Initials \

NbrthrGountry/Health Cpniort Page;16/9 Date
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l^ew Hampshire 0epartment.:of HeaTth.and Hurnan Services
Communify Health Worker Training and Coalltroh Support

EXHIBIT B

'Pathway to.'hejp build a .career ladder or prpmotipn patfiyyay
for GHVys to grow;

'1.6.'2;8. ;DeVelopirig and facilitatirig CHW Project ECHO model to
support pHWiand stakeholder training;;

-1 ;6..2":9. Providihg technical assistance to orgahizatidhs that want to
'hire .c'hWs or work with iCHWs';

i:6J2,.tO,. ^Identifying, and engaging key: stakeh.piders tO' .assist; in
:_bullding. and, :maiti,tainlng support for teani^based care and
GHWs in specialized roles within.care teams and community-
ibased programs;,

1,6,2.11; iCoriductirig statewide Outre increase awareridss of the
CHW Goalitiori to encourage CHW peer engagement and

ioppprtunities for. networking and professional development:,
:arid sOpport.

1.^3. The/C.ontractor.shallprpvide CHW using .on-line; and/or in-
.per^.on formats which^shall include, but is.not limited td:^
I.6.I1. .Litnizing existing New Hampshire CHW training ourricula on

"tpplcs that include;, but are :not |irnited tp:
1 .,6.3,1'-.:i. 'Clhderstahding theOHW.roie;
1 .S.;il.2. Oeyelpping Cdmrnunicatipn;$^
1 -G.-S'T.S. O.MlturaVGpmpefe and Cujtural Humility;
1.6.3.1.4. ;Health Equity;^
1,6.3:,1.5. Outrepch Method's and 5trategies^^^ .
L6.3^t:.6- ppcumehtatiph Skills;;
1.6.3.1.7. •Client and d.orhmuhify Assessmerit Skill^;;

.8. -Service, Gpordina'tipn: .Skills;
T;6^.3.T:9. !Mptiyatipnal ihtefviewing'j
1.6.3.1.10. :6ro'u,p: Facilitatioh and Pjesenting SkiH^^^
i.^-6,3',.T/1:1;c ,!Pu'bliC:!Health :C,pnceplSi.
1.6.3-1.12i Advocacy arid Cdrilmunify Building■.ari^ .
'T.6.5.,illT3-.. 'IPipfessipnal sAiiis ,and Conduct, IndudJog !l4egaj'.

a,pd Ethical,.pespbn,sibll,i^^
■  1,.6:3:2. ;iExpariOirig; the>eVistirig)e,ftw^SurnCU^ Iricldding' Iriciusipn

Of GHW Gpr.e-S'pmpetenci^^^ apd glher:prpyention trainlrigs;--;
1.6'.3:3. IDeveioping a CHW Crossover Cufriculum for workers in

■family; support, rp.enta) ;he'alth.f .substa.nce, iuse djsprder; and
ipthers'. ^

1.§:3.4'. Erjsuring that ■GhW strengths;. 5in;cju;di,ng. Iheir ability tpi
fponnect wl.th cpmmunjtjes 'through IhOin commprialitie^^ of-
ish'afe'd life ■expefieh'ce,^ are felhfOrced;

'  1.'6i3.5. Osing ICNW irainTng ;mod.ules. that iemphasize, ;heallf;i.,
'prp,mptip.n:and ;teacli iQHWs hpw. tp .hejp jNH resideri
on disease jpreveritiori, scfeeriirig;, Orid/6r prioritize land
rmari'age their ;chro_nic diseases. ;and,refe,r'to eyidence=tja|edj

i

'SSt2022OPHS^,i6OGMMUjl , .Cpntraclbr-Jnilials,

J*jbrth;Counlry;HealthOonsoftium ' ;P^'e:;26f'9 . O'ale.
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New'Hampshire D'epaiim of Health and Hurtian Services
Community Heaith'Wprker Training and Coaiition Support

EXHIBITS

'disease^ prevention and management' :programs -and;
(addressing social deterrtiirfahts of'health: that are impacting
them; and

T.6;3 6, Prpyiding both basic 'and specific traihihg for cpmmunit;^^
based CHWs on connecting patients with community heaitK
and weiincss partners related to ;CGyiD-l9 and ;Cli,rQhic'
disea'se prevention, "s'cfeehihg arid management in
consultation with the Department.

'1.6;4. The Contractpr shall impjement othe.ractivjties related'tp; training,
which shall include but npt-be lirhited to;

Usihg materials availabie through the, U.S. CDGv the.
Pepartmehtv pr pther prgahizatipns for ilrainingi promotipn,
:and outreach with approval from' the .Depa rtment;'
.Providing .continuing education 'credits, as n'ecessary; for
'licensed pracljljpn,ers whp-.complete .training;-;

16:4.3. Prbvidirig an fevaluatibn summary to the Department'of aif
traimng; andlephnicarassistaricep quarterly; and

1.6;4;4, -Siippprtihg ;pther traihihg ai required;by the Departrrieht.

Gommunitv HealthWorker CoalltioniSupport

1.7.1. The Gbntractor shall partneTwith:a statewide CHW Cbalilibh,. regional
'healthTcare-systems, community-based organizations, Accoun'tatile
;Gare Organizations ;(AGOs), and other key partner prganizatibns to
Jhtegrate CHWs ihto.hiealth end social.systehis.-iimproVe GHW
iworkfdrce development, identify viable ;fih.an,cing ;mechanisms and
.build InYrastrucfure^o supportjQHVys, ;ActJvitles shaJJ-jn^udei-'bijitmot
ibe limited to:

-.T- ^Evaluating the, jmpact ofth.e.,QHW.Goa,|ition pctiyities related
!td GpV|ptT9;pfpvpii and ■6ther ;SbciaI.
.iDetermih'ants. vor' iH'eaith •(3DoH) in New H'amp'sHire ^and
;documen,t,varue .addedl effectiye, use, phee.ryicps pcross th
isystems such as behavioral, social, and clinical
iimpro.ve.menl;'

■1.7.1.-2:r Engagifi'g, leade'fship acfb'ss iorgahizatibn's. to b'uild. a
C'entraiizCd support;"for GHV!/s;

,  Devejoping a' set bf-.cpre skills, cbmpetericles,. and scope; of-
'practiceTor;GH)i^ that are recognized, statewide;. This shail';

'  .'.be done incpllabpration .vyithia; large/.stakehdlder grpupTha];
!iricludes CHW cfgahizatibns, -'state -and IbCal: health
:departmehts, phiversitiesi G.HW trainers' and ,'e;mpiby.ers;
[insurersv public agencies," np.nprpplSf apdciher lihterested'
igrOups;-

:sS.2022:Oj?HS^10;epMMU,-01 Cp^njractor InXials?,
.  , . , „ iS/lV2d2'2

Nofl.r! Qpunliy Healiri Gonsortium Page 3;0f S; Date . - '
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tNew Hanipshirie Department of Health and Human Services
C.ommunify Heaith Worker Traihing and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B

VJ-AA.-. Educating stakeholders at the state and IdcalJeveis about'.the
dbseivaiidnal data from practice and the eyicjencerbase.d
inleryenlions thaf have demoristraled the effecliyeiiess of
CHVVs. the: :behefjcial/outcomes for :ihe public's: health; Of
integratjhg CHWs Into health care, systerns, and Jhe
necessary- cdrnponehts- Of cbrnprehensive poiicie'S that
suppo;rt';such integration; and

1.7.;1,/5'.; ;ldentifylng and prpmotihg sustainable .fihancirig rhechanisms
10 prornbte: team-based care, inclusive.of':se'rViceS provided
by.GHWs.

1,7y2V, The G,6ntract6r shaji wdfk with and support .the Statewide CHW-
.Coaiition to increase"participation and engagement/and promote the;
po.a'litlpn, inpjudingi but!.noi.;lifTi'ited'to;
'1.7.2.1.. Suppbrtihg; CHW Cediftcatidri: as .a vehicle fbr CHW.

;susia,fnabllity, through reimb.ursem.ent :and payment
ppportynlties to ensure workforce for pbpulatidri heaith
needs;

iy7r2;2^-^ Engaging stakehplders.--.subject rnatte.r experts and decislbp
make'rs ifrom private: :ahd 'public health related Sectors:, .to
jdeyejpp the framevyprk for CH Certificatipn'rn,

1.7.2.3: Buildin'g, and expandihg the. fbuhdatibhal educ'aiion
.competencies and .curriculums (associated with the
.requirements'for

1;7-.2.4., Acting as a liaison betWeeh CHWs, Coalitioh, and
StakehOjclers on" developing po'licy and proposed, legislatipn
jfor CHW-ceftihca^^^^^

1.7^.2.5:. Syhthesizing certification oversight:and. identifying jgotentiaj
structure fpr-the ChW cert.ifi

1:7'.2.6. iSUppolting statewide data cbjiection/and aggregation that
jyus.tr.ate.s the; impa.ctpT.G:H\S int.egratipn; into healthcare and

, .spciaf'service isystems and the irfipact/bf solutioh-oriehted
"se'rviGes that.address identified needs;
[Explphhg blended funding bppbrfunitles tbbhs.ufeGHWs are
able ibiworfe across: histbrrcaliy siloed systems;
.Increa.sjhg p.articipcLtipn in qu.arterlyGHVyGpaljt]pn;rTieetihgs
which/shalr ;ln'cjude representation; "from racr.ossy'NH and la
variety pf/organiM^^^^ , ^ !

1:7'.2.9: ilmprbVirig^ c'bmrnunicatibh between ;GHVVs :and stakeholders
.through ihtbrmatlbn sharing, includmg newsjetters".and pt.h.er
socialni'ediay - .

T7.27-.

1:7.2.8:.

:2. ExhiW Ihcorporated

[SS:2b22VDPns>.ib-COMMU::o.i ■Ppntractpf Initials-^

'North Country Health.Consorlium Pa'ge 4^of,9; Date-



OocuSign Envelope ID; 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D48-B40A-D26Egi88F389

New Hampshire Deparirnent:of Health and Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Cballtiori Supporl

E)WIBlfB:

H The; Contractor shail use and (disblose P>oiected Health Inforrriation in
cpmpliiaoce vyith the Standards for priyacy of Individually jderitlfiabie,^Health
Irifomiatidh (Privacy Rule)(45 CRF Parts 160 and T6;4) under the Heaiifi
Insurance, .Portability and Accounfabiiity Act (HIPAAj of 1996, and in
accordance with the, attached Exhibit l; Business Assqciate.Agreemeht/wh
hasobeeh'iexecuted by the parties.

2.2v: The Cpntractpr, shalf manage all confidential data related 'to this agreement.in
accordance'^ with the terms of Exhibit' K; DHHS Infoimatioh ^Security
Requirerrients.

2/3v The Gpntra.ctpr shall comply with all. Exhibits D through K, yyhjch .are.attached
hereloiand incorporated by reference herein.

3. Stafflrfg
3:1,. ThdCdntracloreh'airprPvide staffing tb,fuifiritheTo!es:andrespbnsibi|itieS'which

supppiiithe .activities;.pf this prpject;Including,-bo.inpi jlmiled-tp: ^
'3.1-cl. Mairitairiirig a .levelof staffing h'ece's'saiy td perform' ahd cafrYd.ut aill

ifunctlpiiS, requirements, iroles, and duties; in; a tihielyTasHion;
3.i/2^, lEnsu.rjngstaff has;suffi.GienV^^^ education,'expenehce, and

drlentaiion necessary id fulfill the: requirements of the^posjtjpnsiHey
hold and shall verify and'dpcurnentim^^ requirement hasibeep, met>
and

3.'i:.''3. iKeeping up'-tordate; records and dopumentation oTall indiyid.uals;
'requiring jicerises arjd/pr certificah^^^^^ fecpfds shall beravailableitb
.the fiepartrfie'nt upon request.

3.2;, The ppntVaptpx shajj deyeiopia Staffing-Gpntingency P[an iWhichahaJI inctudei
byt; not ;be limited'to:

3;2y. The;processTor .replacementof pe.rsonne)';in the::evento.f Loss :pTli:ey.
'■peispnn^J ,

3.2c2. Allocalidn oT:additionalTe;sources Jo the Agreement in 'the; ey.ent of'
iinabitity (o :meet:performance standards;.

3.2"3. Discussidh' bfitlrne fram'e:s:hece"ssa'ry: fdro replaberhehts;
3.2;.4. ' Capabilities Jo: proyide, in e:hme|y mapner-. replacement staff wUh

cprnparable expei^iehcei end
3.2:5. A.mempd.ofbringihg:;repla;cernehfsiaff.upStoMa't^^^

ectiyitles; pflhisAgroement:.
's

4; Reppfting Requirements/iSaliver^^
The Coritreelof shall submit "a- '.finalized Wd'fk- Rlah loathe iDepartmen't 'for'
approval, within Ith (SjO) ;daysi of co.nJraGt; ,apprGyal;; The Plan shall
ihclude,-,

•4.1.^,. A-deschptioh endriistpf activities,.

SS-2022rOPyS-;i0^eOMM,U-0,1 " Contractor Initials:^

■ North c6uritiv:He"a!tH Consortium Pa'ge S.bfS. Pats'
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New Hampshire bepartrhent of Health and Human SeiVices
bommuhl^ Health Worker Traiining and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B

^4;1.2. Names dfifespohsible Gohtractor; persdhhei. and.
,  ■A.VX A timeline..

4r2^ Xhe Contractpr.-in cpjiaboratipnwi Depad.nieht, shall develop a Draft Year-
2 Work' PJanV which'Shall be 'subniitted thirty (30) days prior to.the end of Year^

. r. _ ■ .

4;3> The iCpntractor 'Shall .begin eyaluation planning within thirty :(30) "days of the
Contract effective date, in- consultatio'n with the Department, including. but^:not

,  lirniiedXo:
4.|3.f, Evaluating the .succesedf capacity'building activities ■as\well.as the.

value of the .CH\?V model;
4;3i2,. fden'tjhfmg appropriate eyaluation and data ,cpl|ectio.n methods to

lasses^'.effedhvehess of CHW.rble in diseaserprevention and
'management;

4.'3;-3, Including:the most apprpprlate'approa.ch ,tpx.pnecting"Jnforj:njt|6n^^^
;implemehtatioh'/pr6cess is'sUes, 'and the value.andiimpact of the. .
iS.paiition when deyelpping Jhe evaluation plan;

4.'3'.:4,. "Seje.ch,ng pu'tcpmes'tp be docu.rnented such ;as yajue added'ijcost■
■sa'vings to"prOgrams.and effdctiv,e;use ofiservices;
'piannihg to disserrijnate res.ults to .support expansion ipf GHYV
jhten/ehtiohs lh:New Hampshire; and

4v3'6. Meeting'with the Depailment to discuss activities, budget and'
|pe.rforTnance'measures:pn;a:mpnt basis.

4-i-: Xhe .Cphtractqr submit qu'artefiy ;reports oh all activities On a ternplate
reprorting form prOyjded-by the'bepa;rtrhen't;;as described'tn. Section .51

4;:5'. Th.e■'Go.nh,actortshajj pxoyjde. a icomprehensiye .annual; report^ b^ June 30*^ of'
'■ .each yean The annual 'reportyrhustisuhhmarize:

4^5.1. P.arficipa'ilon •
4j5VZ, iputcpmes
^:5.3. 'Ghallertges
'4:5;.4. ■■Strengths.
4f5.5. Identified needs for the:Op.cPrning fiscal;yea"r/cohtra.ct>ye^^^

■4.:.6. "The Pdnttac'torimay bej.require.d to cplject .and share pth.erkey data an.d".metrics
.vyjthithepepartmeht. Ihta fpmiMspecified by'i^^^^

:5. MeasTifes;
The Gpnlractor shall'sub'm reports, dh all a'ctivitie's onva-tenipiate;
Tep'o'rting 'forrrt - provided by the "DepartrneTit, ensuring .that Xhe fpjjp.wi.og;
rhi.njmum. •peitprmance; indicators^ are iaphieye,d .ahnOally 'to rhneasLTrer the,
effectiyehess-jof Agfeerfieht:-

-iDS

.Sjr2b22-bPiHS-1pp® Contractor. Initial's,
iNorth'Cp.ynt^ Heajthponsortium "Rage 6 of 9 Pate !5/ii/202.2
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New Hampshire Dep.artmeht of Health and Human Services^
CbiTimuriity Health'WbrkerTralning'a Support

EXHIBIT B

iS'-Lt-i ^S'-surnma.ry .of the project putcbme including barriers ;encoCjntereci in
im^lementiiig' the^ project:'.

"S.'i .'2. tbe number of GHVys, staffr adrninistrators and payers who
participate In training on the roles and value of CHWs;

5.1.3; Tbe percentage o^ t^aining:particip,ants^whp. report use of CHVys in
their programs 3-6 mpnths after training;.

:5.1'.4:. The percentage bf participants tralned'as CHWs;who become^
employed.';ln a C'HW' role:afte,r:cpmpleting training;'

^  iS.T'S.. Xhe numbe.r and types of prgahizations represented ori the GBW
Co'alitidh;

6.1.6. the number o.f G.hW Gpa|itipn,rnem_bers broken down by CHW;and
.Stakehplderji --

i5.1.7. the'perceniage of .CHWlGoalition members^whp report salisfactipn'
^  .with Xhe leadership-and •structure of th.e Cbalition, arid;

is;. 1,8,.: The pe'rcentagb bf'the .GHW Cbalition members, who repoti their
palticlpatibri in the cpalitipn^add.s value to'their current work;:

'5. i .'9. The nMmber of health care staff, administfators and payers who
participate'in CHW Coalilibri ,training;,bri the, foies'and! value bfGtlWS:.

5.2. 'The, Cbn tractor shall actively end regularly .cpil.aborate with the Department to
enhanpe cpiitfact! management and improve results.

51 Ad ditiQhal Terms

6,1v Impacis Resulting from Court Orders :or Legisiative Changes.

6.1 .T . the-Gonlractbra'greesrth !io: the .ejrtent future state or federal
Jegjsiatjp.n or court orders jTiay Have ah iirtpacl bri the Services
described hefeiri,. the State ,Ha§ the"::righ't to rhbdify, Service^prjorities
(and expenditure requirements under; this ag.reement so asitp achieve'
icbnipli.a.n.ce the,rewith;

,6^?2v federal- Civil Rights LaWs; Cbrtipliance: Culturally and Linguistically
~ Appropriate i^rpgrams^i3^^

!6'.-2,l:, 'X.he;Gpntra,e!tpfisha^ 'submjtvwithiri" ten (10) daye;bf'the'%r.eemenl;
Effective D.aleVia .detailed ,des,criptipirpf the cprnmun
•.andlanguage assistance services'tb be prbvided.tb ensure
meahirigful aCcess tb.|pfbgrarh.S'and/br services; to |nd]yidua|s, >vith
irmited !EngHsh''prolnq Individ,Mpl.swho are deafbf have'.he'aring
IpAs; individuals who ;^re'blirid,:br h'aVe iow'vision';- and' individuaTs;who.

^  have^'spebchch'a^
6.3. Cfedils ;and:C.opyrigh.t:!0wnershiR

fiv3yi >.. -.ftllidpcumeh.ts, hotlces, press- fPleas'es, :re'sebrch r.epprts.-.andVother
rh'ateTiais prepared .during :or resuUing Xrpmlthe performance pf4he
servicesiof the agreement shalj ,in.c|ude theTPildwihg etatemerit; "The
preparation Pf-thTs (fepo'rt, dbcumentietc.):was. financed ;urider;a
'  """" ■ V\ . • ■ .

;SS-2022-DPHS-10-C6MMU"-bl iConl'ractoXlhitials.

sN6rthX.b)jhlryl:1ealth;Cd ! ifiageTof.'S Date-- 5J.ll/.2022;
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New Hampsh of Health and Human Services
Community Healtti'W.orker Training^and Coalition Support

EXHIBIT B

Cbntract.with !the Stateipf New Hampshire, Departmehtof Health' and
Hurhan S'ervlees:; with funds provided In part by.the State: ot.N.ew
Hampihir;e'and/o,.r such p'ther/unding sources as were ayaiiatle Of

.  required^ e-.g./the.Uhited Stale'sDepartnieht of Health arid^Hurhah
Services:"

6.3,2;., All majed^'s produced or purchased under the agreemerit shall haye;
prior appfovaT.fromrthe Deparlme'ht befofeipriftting, productibn,
distribution Pr use'.

6.3.;,3,; The Department shall retairi .cppyright;pwners'hip for any and all
prigirial rh'aterials produced, including, but h'ot lirTiited tP:
6.'3;3.1; Brochures.

(

6:3i3.2. Resource directories.

6.3;.;3.3. P>ptoc;Qrs;or guidelines-.,

6,v3:;3.4, Ppsters..

S3-3-5-' Reports.

The Gontractor shali not" reproduce' any materials produced under the
agreement-.wjthput prior written apprpyarfrorn.the Separtrnenh

6:4. 'Opefatioii of iFacilities: Co^niplianc'e with Laws and Regulations

In.'the operatlPn of any facilities for providing .services, the 'Cp.n'l'ra.ctpr,
shaircpmply with ;aj) laws,-;6fder"s and. regulations of fedefal.'state,;

-.' county andmuhicipal authorities and with any-direction ;of:a"ny Public
Officer, o.riOffi.cers:pursua;nt.'to ]aY/s;W shai,ltirnpose:an order or
duty- upon, thexpntraciqr with .respect-to the bperatjpn of the facility or

.  the' provisio'h: bf'.the serviceS-at such' facility. If Shy governmedtaT.
IjcenspTbr perrn'its'ha be required for the pperatipn pf the sajd faciti^
prrthefperfbrrhance pf the said seivic'es^ CbntradtPrwiirprbcufe '
said Jieehse or permit, and'wiH at ail tirnes compjy-withrth'e:ierms:^an,d
,conditions of each ;s,uc,h license ..or, permjt;;in connectio^ri wjth;the>
fdregbihg' requlremerits, thb CPntr^actbr hereby cbve'hants! and agrees
|haf. during the terrn of ihis'dgfbern.SOt the;facilities shall ppxnply yyjth

■  aj! f^ules. orders,•; regulatiphs, dhd requifem'erifs.bf the State Office oT
.the' Fire' Marshaj and 'thevi.bcal, fire protectipri agency, and .shall Je jn
conformance .yyithrtpcal building a.nd •zoQjng codes, byTlaws arid
fegulallohs\,

7. 'Flecords

TA- Tfic GohlfactpT^'shall kebpTecbfdsThat jnclude, not HrtiitedHb:
.  7. f .i. iBboks; ire'cords, docurnehts^and :other;e|ectronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting aJlcps.ts and/other expenses/ihcuf/ed by'the;
Cpntfactbr\in'the'perf6ffdahde and.alUncPme!
received ;br cbliected' by the; Goniractor.,

:;S.S-2.022:p.RHS-1>ebMM^^^^ -Contractor.Tnilials.
-  ■ iS/11/2022. .

;dPrthC.9untn"'Heajt|3'e P8g©.B;;of 9' Date- •
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;New Hampshire.pepartm of Health and Human Services.
Community Health Worker tfaihihg and Coalition Support

N  EXHIBIT B

7.2.

7,5 2.. All records must be, maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly.reflect all
siJch costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
.Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
reco.rdsrand pr]ginaj;.eyj,d costs such as purchase requisitions

. and orders, v'ouchefs, requisitiohs for materials, inVehtofles,
valuations of;in-kind contributions, labor:time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

7.5.3. Medical recbfds.on eachrp^atienl/recipieht of services.

During the term of this Agreerhent and the" peripd Tor retehtibri :hereunder,> the
'Department.the United.'States D.epartmentCf Health and Human::S,erv"ices, and,
jany of their designated representatjy.es shall have; access to. all reports and
T"eCCfds' maintained pursuant to. the^a'greerheht for purposes "of .audit;
examination, 'excerpts an.d transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the rpaximum. number <pf units proyided for in the Agreement-and upon
Ip'aym'ent of the price limitatiori'hereuhder. the.ag'reerheht and all theobfigatibhs'
of the parties, hereunder (except Cuch obligations as. by the; terms of the.
agreement ar,e to be performed aftp.r the end p.f ;the term; pf this,Agreemen't
ahd/brJsurviye the terrfiin'atioh of the''ag'reement) shall, terrti'ihate, provided^
,however,, that if, uo.on,review ,pf the. Final,Expenditure 'Report.the,Department
shall.disallbw anyoxpenses byjhe Cbntfapt#as costs :hereuhder .the;
Departrnent'shall reta|h5he right, at'itsdiscreiion.tbdeduct thC 'ahiounto^^
:e^pense:s-.as aje-disallowed.:ort^^ recover such:sums.;from;ihe,Dpn,tra^^^

SS4"022'-DPHS:.ld-COMMO.O^
' 'r • ' '

NorthCouritry HeaiffiConsprtiurn: Page-9 df9

Contractor Initials
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DocuSfgn.Envetope 10:800.1433E-4EFM5l6^A2'eO-D6^C)Cd2E83C.

Nevy Hampshire Dieparlment of Health and Human Services
Communi'^ Health Worker Training andXoaiitioh Support

EXHIBITC

PavmentTerms

-t;; Thls^Agreemeht is^ 00%;fu"ncied by:'

1.1. New^Hampshlre Initiative to Address GdVID-l^ Health Disparities, as
avyarded on May' 27i :2p21,-. by the Centers for Disease Cohtrdi and
PreVehtiori, 'AssiStarice Listing Number' #_9l391. FAIN
#Nri75Qj60Cr031.

1.2. New-Hampshire Immunization Program; as awarded on May 29, 2021;
by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevehtion, Assistance Listing
Number#93268. PAIN #NH

2:, For the purposes.of this Agreement:

2.;i., The, Department has ̂identified! the Gp.ntractor as a Subfecipierit, in
accordance with.2 CFR. 206:331.

2:2. The Department has identified this Agreement as ^NdN.rB&P, iri
accordance jyith .2'CFR §200.332.

2^'3. The de miriimis indirect Cost Fiate of 10.% appiiesjn accordance with 2-
.  dRBi§260.4?lA.

3' payment .sha'li^be op a cpsfTeJmbursement basis Tor factuai expehditures-
Ihcurred in the fuifillment of this-Agfeement, rand shall be in' accordance with
the approved line iiem; as specified in .Exhibits C-f, .BudgeUhrpugh Exhibit C^.
:3;. Budget..

:4.; The Cpniractbr shall submit ah invoice and..supporting documents to the
bepartrrient. no jater !than .the fifteenth (15th) working .day of the ■fojlpwlng
.(Tpnjh; TheCqnJractbr,^^^^

.4.1". Erisure the invoice 'ls' 'pfesehte'd in a ;fdrm' that is provided by the."
CepartrhentiOr is o't.he.rwise acceptablerto the; Department,;

4J2- LEn.s,ure ,th.e jnyojce,; idehtifjes; and, requests ;payrheht for allowable cbsls-
iricurfed in the: pfevib'uS hidrith.

4;3. .'Prpyid'e supporting dpcumentatipn 'pf'.ailp^abie costs that may .include,•
but is' hot,limited to, time sheets, payrbil.recofds, receipts for purchaseSi
end proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.;4.. lEnsum fhe inybice 'is cpmpleled, dated dhd returned tb'lhe .Department
with.th.efsO'ppbrtirig .dodume'ntation'for-a.u'thorized:expenses,, in;prder to; ,
initiate p.aymerit;," .. 1- j • " . • ^

i5,, In lieu Qfihafd cbpies, ajj inydices;may be.assighedeh eiectfdnfcslgriature; and,
■emaijedtp DPHSCbnt'ractBillihd@dhhs:hH.Q6v. br.invbices rriay. be',n1aiieci;tb:

Finahdial Mahagef
Cepartmenj of Health and Human Services

'SS-2022tDPHS^i6-COMM'u^^^^ C:i.3 Conifactof'lnliiais - . -
•  • b/2/2U22

NoflfvC^nl/y ̂ ealiK^^ iPage l of 3 bale - .
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bocu^n Envelope jb:-Bbbi4»E^EFMSl>^d(^b^8Q^

,New Hampshire' Depaftrhent of Health and'Human Services
Community Health Worker Training and Coalition Support

EXHIBITS ' '

129. Rlea's~aht: Street

&oncprd,iriH 03301

^6. Xh® P®partment shall'make payment to the Contractor within thii^ (30) days'
of receipt of each irivoic^. -subsequent tO approval of the submitted invoice and
1f sufficient .funds are available, subject, fp Paragraph 4 of the GeneraJ
P/oy|sioris Form f^ufn^f Pr37 of this Agreernerit.

7. The final irivoice shalTbe^due;to the Department no laier.lhan for^ (40) days
'after the contract compJelion,dale, specified in Fpnm P^37, General prpyisjons
Block 1,7 Gpmpletipn pate,

,8. The Cbhtractor- Itiust pfoVide the services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Seryjces, in
complTance wjth fundjng requirements.

'9, Jhe; Gontractor agrees that funding uhdef'this Agreerherit may be wrthheld,; h
wliole or in. part in the event of'.honTCompilance with the terms and; conditions
•of ExhibJtB, Scop.e;of S'ei^^

10. Nptwithstahdirig anything To the cdhtraiy herein, the'Contractor agrees that
funding Under this,agreement'may be;withheld, in whole or in part, .in.)he event
of nopdpmpljance wjth ariy Fedeml.oc State law, I'ule of regulation applicable"
•to the services pro.vided, or" if the: said services of products, have; ;not been
satisfactorily, compje.ted Jn accordance with the terms :and conditions -of'this
agreernent.

11.. Notwithslandirig Paragraph 17 of :the GefrerarProvisions Fprm P-3,7,-changes
limited, to adjusting arnpunts within the price Ijmjtati.on and adjusting
encumbrances betw^^^ State Fiscal Years' and budget class Tines through the
Budget iGffice'maY be made by agreement of. both parties, withojjt
obtaining approvat^;pf 'the Goyempr an Executive C.puncil, if needed and
justified.

f2. ,Audits

'112:1. Th.e; CTpnltractpr must/emajl aln annual audit tQ-dhHs.act@dhhs.hh.Qbv if
anybf-thbfclldwlngb^^
1'2;i -X, Qpnditi.bn, A^- The Gontractor expended '$750;pOPlpf more in

federal funds received as a subfecipient,pursuant to 2:GFR Part:
200;. during thelmoslTeceritly compleTed fiscal, year:

12.3 ;2r ppnditjoh' B:: The Gohtfactdf is subjpct to buditipgrsUaht to'the
requirements, of NH RSA,7:;2fit. jlj-b, pertaining ;Tp. chan^ble

^  prganizatipnsrecejvin s.upport-pf $1,000,00
X2.-1 ;3, Cbhditibri" C - The Cbntfaclbf is a public rcpmpahy^artdlrepuTred

b^ Security-and; iExchange 'pommissjpn ($EG)'£egu^ to-
submit an annuallfinancial audit;

SS-2022-DPHS-'10-COMMU^l- :C-1.3. tConlracior initials -
—  ...

North CounOy.1;|,eaim Com^^; Page'2 of 3 Dale
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New Rampshiire bepartme of Health and Hurrsn Services
iCommunity Health Worker Training and Coaliiion Supporl ^

EXHIBIT C

12.2. Tf.CohditibhAexists.ihe dontractorshalrsubrnitan:annual;slhgle audit'
performi^d.by an independentCertified Public AccoDntant (CPA)'to the^
pepartment within 20 days after the close ;bf the Contractor's fiscal
iyear, conducted in accdrdarice with the requjrernents of 2 GFR Part
f2pQ._;S.ubRart f of the Unifprrn Admjnistfaliye Requirements. Cost
'Principles, arid Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

f2^3. 'If Condition B, or Condition C;;ex]sts:,..ttie Contractor shanisubmjt an
;anOM.al. financial audit performed by ari indeperiderit CPA within 120,
idays after the close Of the Contractor's fiscal year;

12.4. Any Contractor that receives an,-amount equal to or greater thar)
'  ;$250,;0.0.0 from, the Departmerit'duripg a singlO fiscal year, regardless;

tpf the furidihg source, hriay be required, at a minimum. to submit annuaj
financial audits perforrned by:an independent CPAJf;lhe Pepartrnerit's
^hsk assessme^nt defemiinatlbh indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

12.5. In additibri to', :ahd nbl in any'way In limitation, of obligations^ Of. the
Contract, jt is understood .and agreed by the Coritractpri that the
Cpntractpr shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and/.shaij' return to:.'the Peparimenl all pay.rnerits friade .under the.
Contract to wh[ch excepfiph has been jtakeri.^O'r which have beeri
'•disaJIbweUbecause of sQch'ah 'excOption.

.^•2022-DPHSr10^COMMU-0i:

NortK .Cdunlry HeaUhppns^^^

0^1.3:

Page 3 of;3
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New Hampshire Depaitiheht df.Health and^Humari Services.
Exhibit D

CERTiFtCATlON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The'yendpr'IdentrfiedJh General Prbvisiqns ag^^^ to comply wifh the proyisibns'pl
Sections 515V^Sisp ̂  brng-Frefe Workplace'Actfpf 1,9,88 (Pub; L-r- lb0-69d. fitie Subtitle P;f41
,U;S]C. 701 et:seq.)Vand further a have thePpntractorts representative; as identified in .Sections
i .l.li and the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE'l -fOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INPiyiDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF' HUMAN SERVICES • COKlTRACTORS
US OERARTMENt bF:EDUCATION - tONTRACtdRS
CjS DEPARTMENT OF AGRlCULTURE r.CONTRACTORS

This certification is/equired'by the fegulatlo'hs irhplemehting"'Secti6hs 5151-5.160 of the" Drug-Free"
yyo>"place A«:t dfT988''{pub..;L. 1.00.;69.0: Titia"'V.;,SubtitkD;''41
1989 regujatibns amended'anb pubiished'as.Part ll. pf lhe May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
2i68i-52.169i) and require certification by grantees:(and by.inference; siibTgraritees and subr
confracl:ors).;pnor to award,"that they will maintain.a drug-free woiitplace. '8601^11.3017.630(0) df-the
regulation provides that a grantee (and.by'inference, siib.fgrahtee's arid 8ubfcdritractofs)Jhat is a State
may elect to make onexertificatibhitb th'e.Departm'e'nt ini.each'federal fiscal yearjri lieu .of certificates fpf
each,gfant during the."fedeYal,.fiscai;y8af.cdyefed.by\the;«^^ The;certificate set qut below is a
material representatjph of fact upon Which rejiance Is'piaced wtien.'the agen'cy'awards the grant,- False
certjficatlori or yiplatiqri pj the'certifiCalibn Shal[be grounds for suspension of paymerits, suspension or
terrninatipn'Pf 'Qfanls'.Xr gpyemrnenj wide suspension, or debarment. Contractors using this.form should
send Jt id;.

Cpmrhissipher
NH b.epa'rtmentjpf HeaK^^^ Human'Seiyices
129pTeasarii'Street",
'Conwrd/NH'p

■X. The graritee certifies th'al it'will brwillcdhtinuetd provide a,'didg-fr.ee^^\^^ t^'i
'l.-l.. ' Publishing a' statement'notifyirig emplpyee^^ rhanufaclure,'.dlstnbulb'n.

•dispensirig,.p;pssdssipn pr use.dta cdhjrpjle.d subsjance'.is:prphibited inlhe grantee's
•■w.prkplace;.ahd specifylhgTli;eTaci^^^^ be<iaken;aga]ris^,emp.!oyees fpr yipJafi^^^^
p/phibition;

'l,;2'. Establishingvanxngoihg drug-free:awareness, program to!lnform..empldyee's abolit<
.i;i2:1. The.dangers:ofdrug-abuse;ihthe.wdri<place;'
T.2.'2. Th'e'grantee's pdlicylpf maintaihi a cirug:free;..wdrkpla^
1,>2;3. .Ariyi!ayaijable";drug cpunwl'ing.Tehabiii^^^^ empjpyee;assTsjance
ilr2,;4, Tlie;penaltief:thaVmaybB iip'posediuponvemployeesTdrdrug abusevrdlations

■bccurnhglhliHe ;w6rkplac^^
4.3., Making it a requirerherit;that each ;emptoyee1d be; engaged.iri the peitdrrhance."d^

'glveriad.opydf the'.slalemehtrpqui.red^by/pajagra
i--4-: Npllfyjng'the.empipye^^^^^ thestajem.enl required by,paragraph (a) that; as a condition of

iernploym.ent undef .fhe^grant; ihe;employee will
i1(4;i. Abide by the.ierms'ofi'hestatemenii and
iI:4.2t Notify the employeriin writingpf hiis dr-Ker convictidn-foda/yidla^id^^^^^ cnminal.dr.ug

statute" occurring.iri the wori^place rid later Ihah'five caletidar'days u^^^^
jcdrivictidri;-; . .

1.5. N.dtifyjrig",th;e;;ag^ teri;caien;dar;days;;aft^
'Subparagraph:1.4.-Z^^^^^^^ pr.pther\yi.s;eTeceiying"acly such conviction.
EmplpyeYs pfponvicfe^^ employees rnust.prpvide notice.; including position title,.!tb.every;grant

fOfficer.pn.whose grariVactivityilhe convicted erriplbyee vifas working,^lunless the FedefaJ^agetVcy

^ibl{'D.it.Certi]ic«UpnfeBafding'dri^Ffee: 'VenclorihltlajsN '
j 1 WodiplaceRe^uifements ' 15/2/2022
cudHj&lVorVir PBge''i''bf 2 Date. ' -
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Exhibit b

has designatedla central point for the rec'elpt.df such notices. :N6tice shall include the
identificatidh hurhber(s) of each affected grahl;

"1.6. Taking dhe.of lhe^fgllowing:aS:tipnsVwi.tHjn 30 calendar,days;o,rreceiying:nolice yn^^^
subp^graph, 1.4.2., wth/espect to employee who, is so convicted
1;6;i. Takjng appropriate personnel action against such an employee,rup to and-including,

•termination, consistent with the.requirements of the Rehabilitation.Act of 1973, as
amended;-6r

i1:6:2. Requiring such employee ,lb participate'satisfactprily in 'a drug*abuse.,asSlstance"pr
•  rehabilitalipri'ptogfarn approved for\such puip.oses;by.,a;"Federal,'Sta_le; ,pj local heajth.

law ehforcernent' prp.the.f.apprppriate agency:
1.7. Making "a'good,faith effpitlo coniinue to malritain a drug-free workplace through

implemenlatiph^of paragraph^ V.i,;i,2, "1i3,-.l;4,- j.5; and 1.6..

2. The grantee may.insert'in the space .provided below the.sit'e(s) for the performance of work dprie in
connection with:the specific grarit.->

■Place.of Rei16hm'arice;(str,eetiaddress. .city, ,'cduhty. stale, zip cpdeniist each.location

•Check □ if there are workplaces on file that-are not Identified here.

Vehdbr'Naffie:

5/2/2,022

iSte Pearson

n«dbr

Title:! Execut i ve, 'pi rector

^05,

Ejthibirp.-I.GeftinMjio'hyreg^ ■ Vendor InHialiiS
"  .Wc^ace R^uire^^ :5/2/2022

x^KS/uoro; "" Page'2,of.2 "" Dale-__
U  ■ . '
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New Hampshire Depa^ment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit'E

C'ERtlFICATION REGARDINGXOBBYING

The Vendor'identified in:Section^1 .-3 of the^Genei^l Provisions agfees.to cbitiply with the prbvisions-of
•Section:319 of.Public.Law. 101-'121,.'Government wide Guldance'fo'r.New Restrirtons on Lobbying, and
;3;i U.S'-C.. 1352, ahd'.fu'fther agrees to have the Cbhtractor's'representatiye, asl'dentifled in'Sectipns Tfl
'and T.12 of theTGeheral Prdyisidns ,execute the followin

;us department of health and human SERVICES'.'CONTRACTORS
us DEPARTMEKiT of EDUCAtlON t'ONTRACTORS
:us DEPARTMENT O^F AGRICULTURE •JCONTRACTORS

iPfogram's (indicate iapplicable.prbgram.cbyer
^Teni^rary.Assislahce to Needy FamHies'.under jitTe IV-A
'Xhild.Support Enforcement %ogram under Xiiie iV-b
'Spcial iSeryices BIpck Grant Program under Title-'^
'Medica.id Program under
•Community Services,Block Grant:under title .Vl
•*Child.'Care beveiopment.Block 'Grarit under Title IV

Thetuhdersigned.c'ertifies. to the best bf bis.Or her knowtedge and beli^^^^^

i- .No Federal appropriated funds have been-paid or.will be paid by or-on behalf of the unde'rsigned^td
any person for influencing.or.attempting to influence an officer br erhployee of any agency,'d Member
of Congress,-an officer or ernployee of-Congress, or anerhpldyee 6f ,a:Member of Congress .ih'
connection'with'the avvafding of any Federal, c6htract;;continuat(ph.;rehewal, .arinehdment, ,pr'
mddificatiohbf any Redefa! contract,.grant, iban, pr-codp,erati.ye agre^erhent (and'by specirtc-mentibn
/Su,b-gtantee,'o;sub^on

:2, jfehy. funds piher than Federal apprppfiated funds have been.paid or .will be.paid to any pefsdn for
inliuendng'or attempting tolrifluence an officecor employee of any agency, a Member of .Cdfigfess,
.an bfficeror employee ofCongress, of an emplbyee.of a Member of "Cpngress in^connection wiljtMM
Federal cbritract.-grant', loan.,brc6dpefative>gfeem^^^ (and by spedfic menlipr),sub-grantee or subi-
icbhtractb'r), .the-.undersighed.shall.pbmplete;^^^ Standard Fprm .LLL, Xpisciosure Fprrn to
ReppH-Lobbyihg; .Id.a'ccbrdahbewil^ insV.uctibns,.-a'ttached^^^ identified as Standard Exhibit E-ll.)

3;, 'The;uhdersfgned;sh^ language-of this certification be included in the award
d^ument for.sub-awards'.ai ali ltersr(ihcluding,suBcdhtracls. w and contracts unde^
loans,-:dnd.cooperative.agfeernents) ahdlthat all subrfecipients shall .cedify .and disclose accordingly.;

this certificalidn is a material repfesenlatibn pf.fact upbh!.whicK reliahce,vyas,placed when this transactiorf
•was made of ehteredlntp., iSubniissipni'pf .t.hls cerijficatipn js'a;prerefluJsltVfor rnaking or entering into this
transactiph IrppPsed^by'^Sedtion I352.- "[[tie 31, U.SGode".- Any person who fails to file Ihe.requifed
Ff.illficalion'ShaJl.be.^^^^ civil penalty of not!less.than.$l6,'OOO.andept.mpre.ithan-$,.1p6,opo,fdr
each such failure.

I

ye'ndpr^Nafne:;

lgn««»y:

f'uVr1,5/2/2022: '

Ddii~ pearspn: ;
Executive bire"<:tbr

Exhibit E v.Certiflcalion Regardinglobbying. ^Vendor Initials
. . . , „ 15/2/2022

'Cu/bMKS'i.ipriy ',Page"i;of1 Data. ' . . .
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CERTIFrCATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Jdentified in Section 1.3 of the Gerieral Proyisions'agrees to pompjy with the provisions oY
.Executive Qfficepf the President. Executive Order 12M9 and 45 CFR-Part 76 regarding DObarment
^Suspension,'and Other 1^^ Matters, and .further agrees to have the Contractor's;
representative,-'as identified In Sectjons i.i 1 and T.12-of the General F'rovisions execute the;following'
vCerlification:

INSTRaCTIONS.:FOR:CERTIFICATION
;Bysigning and,TsLbhriilting'
(CertfiMtioh/set^cutbelpw.

1.. ;By signing and,rsLbhhlltiiig'thls*propbsal.(c6hlract). the:prospectlve primary participant is; providing the,
.rortiflraHrtn Ai'it'KolAw . v -

;2;. The:inab!lity;.of a person to provide :"the certification required below .will not necessarily result'in deriial
.of participation in.this covered'transaction. If necessary..the prospective participant shall submit an"
explanation of why it canno't provide the certification. The certification or explanation wili:be
'Considered ih:c6'nnection,,wlth thelNH Oepartment.Of Health and Human Services*-(DHHS)
.determiriatioh, wh'ether to enter lrito th|s trahsactioh. HOwevef; failure of the: prospecllye'prlrfiary:
■•participant toTurnish a',certirica.tiori or ah>"xplanatjon>hal]!.disqUalify such person frOm participation' in"
'tii.isTransactioh, - ■

^3;; The certifipalipn in;U;i.is representation of fact upon which reliance'was^placed;
when.'DHHS det'erminedto,enter, into this transaction; If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant k^nowinglyrendered.ah'errohedLiscertificatlon, ihi'addition to othefTemedies •
•available to,the Federal GdVerhrherit-iDHHS.rhay tefrhinate'this trahsactioh for cause or.default.

■'4; 'fherprospectlye primary pjarticipanTishaltprovide imm^ediate written notice toM'he-.DHHS agencyrto
:whqm.thi.s;proposa| (contract) is submitted If,at any^time the prospective primary participant learns
that-its certificatidn was erroneous when submitted df has-becbme 'ertdnebus by. reason.of,changed

^circumstances.

',5: The..teTfniTcby'ered'transacti6n^^ Suspended."■"tne|i9ible;*''ldwef;^ cpyefed
' transactiph." "partcipant;" "persbh',' "primaryTcoyefed ;transac^ "principal," "proposal.' andT
'"\r6iuhtari|y'b.xc|u^^^ this clause;'haye;themeanin in the Definition^and
•■Cpyerag'e'sgctjpns bf the'-lpjesjrnplemen^ B^ecdtiye; Ord^ '45 GFR' Part 7.67 Seeithe

-  .attachedTclefin^^^

,6'. ■the:prospective primafy'participanl-a9rees;b): submittihg this proposal (cbhlfacl) thatirshbuld. th'e
pfbpbsed;'cb'vereb trah'sactibn;b^ entered iri,tb.,;lt,shal) hot knowngly eritef jhto any lower tler.;bbver.ed!

'rtransactiQri'with:a;pers,b susp,e.nded.' ;declared Irieiigible. or ypiuntanty exclude^^
ftPKparticlpation in'this'CpVered.trari'sactipn, unte^

'7\ The prbspective primary"participant further agrees by.submittihg'triis pfbpbsarthat it wlll:ihclude tfie.
'Clause .titled ■Certificatibn Regarding Deb'armeht, SusperiSiph, •Ineiiglbility and Vqluhlafy.Exclusiprf -
Lower Ti_er C6yered'jrransactiohs." pfpy PHHS; without iTipd[fi.catiori, .in aijjowef'tler'coyered
trartsactiphs-and jnjalj spljcltetlpns forjpwertjer'cpyered bansactipns.

•8.; ;A partjcipant.in;a covered tranMCtion may rely upon a certification bf a prospectiveiparticipaht'.ih.ar
lower.'tier covered Iransactidn that it is notidebarred, suspended, ineligible; brmvbluhtanly .excluded
•fromthe covered.tfansactibn.uriless.it knows Iffaf.lhe.-certificatibn ii.errbneous'.. .'Aparticipaht rhay
■decide th'e rh'ethbd andTrequency b"y'Which.ii:.deiermihes the.eligibility of its.prin'cipalS; Each
participant rha^y^ butiis hpt;f,epu"ir^.tb..:check the'.'Klpri^^^

Nplh|ri9 .^O.lairied jn thejfpregoing shall bpcpr^^^^ require establishment of a system of-recordsin'prper to render'in;good failh ttie certification;required.bY this clause: ■The knowledge andj'^^®"

Exhibi.rF--,Certir«3rt6;n F^afdinb.Pe.barmerif Cpntrador IhUlato^
And OiBer Reji^nsibi!iiy..M3tter5., ' -5/272b22'

:curt)HHVi 10713,, ■ ^age.lbf?; "" ' .'O'ste.' ' •
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New Hampshire.Departimerit df.Heahh and Human Services
ExhibltF

'^infoanaUon pf a;parti^ not'requiredAp'exceed that normally possessed by a prudent
.person;in the.ordinary course of business.dealings;

^'10. ExKpt for'tran^r^o'ns iuthbrizVdWder piafa'graph 6 of these instructldns.Jf a pailicipantJn-a'
covered trahsactjdn''k'h6wrigiy. enters int'o a lower der'wered.lrari'saction"^w pe.rsbh.')4^p'j.s
:8'uspe'nded,;det>arred,i|neligible,^otvo!untarj|y'.excluded.from participaijon in; Uijs transactipri, in:
addition to other remedies aya.ilable toihe pisdera) gOvernnnent, OHHS may terminate .^.is yan^ctjon
.fpjr'cause:pr defaujl

;PRlM/^V COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participaht'certifies to.the best of Its kriowledge and belief,!that it and its'

• principals:'
^ 1 ̂ . 'are not presently debarred, suspended, propos'ed for.debariment, ̂declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded frorri coyet^ tra'nsacdpris^by any Federal department or agency;
'11.2. haye'npt'withJh a three-year period preceding'this prppoMi (contract) been cpnyicted of or had

a civil judgment leridered against t^m for commission of baud or a.criminal offense In.
connection with obtaining-attempting to.obtaini or performing a public'(Federal. State or Idcal) -
transaction or a contract undera public'tiansa'ctiori; violatiOri of Federal or Stateientitrust;
statutes or oommissioh of cmt)^leifient theft,-fdrgery, bribery, falsification orldestruc^pn'.pf"
records; niaking falsostatementS/bfTe'ceiving stolen property; _

'11.3. are hotVreMhtly Iridicted tor PtherMse'^crim or civiiiy charged by'a goyemmerita'j enU^ty
(Federal, State o> Ipcai) y^to'cprnmfsSLqh Of any of the .offenses enurnerated in. paragraph;(l)(b)
pf this ̂certificalipn; and'

i i..4; have; nj)t y^i:hin;a three-year period precedjng'this appdcatjon/proposal had'^one'or more public
transactions (Federal, State or lpcal).termjnaledrfdr-cause or default

i 2. Where the "prospective primary p'articlpaht;ls''uriable;'td ce'rtify to?8riy df.th'e stalemerits iri thiS-
.ce'ttificatiOri^;.such" prbsp«ctiye attach an explahaUpri tp^thjs prpppsai;(cpniract);;

.LOWER f1ER:C0\/ERED
13. 'By signing andsubrhittingthis'lovver ber propowl (c6ntract),'th'e prospective loweYtieVbartidpani; a's

'defined iri 45 GFR'Pa"rt 76, ceftifieS.to.the'.best of its'.knowledge'arid.belief toat:it'.and its
13.-1. are hot pre'seritly debarred, sus''pe'hded; proposed for djebarrrient, declared,ineligitile, of

ydlu"htarily-.e'xcluded,f^^^ ih\ihis.ltrahMdioh.by ahy'*federaj
13/2. 'jMiefe^t^d prpspeciiye ipwer Uer'partidipant.is ynabie tp.ceirbfy-to any'pf the;aboye,:such,

;pTpspecUye;pa.fbcip.an(:s explanali.pn to^ttiisprpppsaj (cq^

i4;'The,prospectiv0 lower tier participant fijrther.agreeslby subrhitting this'pfdpoMi (<to'ritfact) th'at it will
i'nciude.this-.clause entitled Xertificatibn RegVrdiri'g'DebariTiehl,/Suspeh'slori Irieligibility'.ran'd
ydluntaty. Exclusion ? Lower .Tle^CdVer'ed Trahsactiohs,' .without mddjficabori in all.lawer tier .cdyered

'trahsact|pns,a>d-in.all sbljcilatiOhs for. Ipwentier cpyered ̂ hMCtiphS.

Coritfactor Narhe:

Slgnadby: ,

5/2/2'62'2 1 -Ci/^ov Poi*voiC
Date NamgX.nJr?fi~ Pearson

tiUe:
Executive" Director

0*^

Ixhibit'F'^Cortficatibfl Suspe.nsibri •
And Other Resppnslblli^.Matteri. . ;5/2/2022

co«HHSnt07,i3' P#ge2.of2" Date
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CERflFICATiON OrCbMPllANCE WltH REQUIREMENtS i^ERTAINlHG TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND:

•WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The.Cphtractor Identified in Sectbn i .S of lhe;General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as id^ Sections 1;1 randi:i2 of the.GeherPI Provisions;, to execute.ihe following •
.certi^jipn;'

Contractor,will comply; add "will.'regul're-any subgrantees of subcbhtractors to'comply, wiih any appHcabler
'federal nbndiscnmlriation requirements; wh|ch"rnay"includj;

• •thelOmriibusCfimeCohtrpland'Safe.Streets A.ctp] 1968!(42 U;S Section 3789dj which prohibits^
reciple'nts.bf federal hJndirig under this'slalutairorn discriminating, either in employment practices orlh
thefdelivei7 pt^ryjces or benefi^^^ on the basis of race; cplbr; religion, national origin, and sex. The A'cl:
requires certain recjpjerits jp prpduce an'Equal Emptbymert'Oppoftunity Plan;
- the Juyeniie;justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 20d2 {42"'U.S.C. Sectlohj56.72(b)) ̂ ich adopts, by
reference, the.civii rights obligations of.the Safe Streets Act. Becipierits.o.f fedefaHunding und.er this '
statute are;prohibited.from discrimiriatihg; either in erhplpyriierit practices orjn th'e .delivei7.Pf 8e1y.ices or
benefits, on tde basis,of face,:cplpr,;religioh, natipnal origin, and sex, The.Act includes Equal'
EmplPymeht:Op^rtuhlty:Plarj;requirerhe

-.this"Ciyi! RjghtsjAct.pf 1.^4 (42 O.S.'C, Section iOOOd.^which prohibits recipierits of.federal financial
■assl.stan.ce frpm:discri^ basis oYrace, color,;or national origin in any progrVrn.or actiyity);
- the' Rehabilita'tlpn.Act'Of Section 79~4}, which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on;the basis of disability, in regard loernplpyrnerit arid.the deliy.ery'pf'
services'^or benefits,jri,any,program 6"r acliyity;
•■'the American's.with.Pis'abilltlesAct of 1990 (42rU,S..C,:Sectipris 12131-^34); ,v^ich prqhibits-
discfirriinatioh and ensures equal op'pP.rtuhity'fprperspns wjth di^biliiies in.emplpYmenVState.and .local
gbyernrtierit services, pubjic^accpmmpdatibns,-.^^^^^ and transportation;
- the Education •Am'6hdments pf 'f972'(20 1683, 1685^86); which prohibits'
;discrifpjnatiph'qrijhe, basis p^sexjn federally,assisted education prpgrafns;; •
- th'e £Jsc.riminjton;Act O.S.C. Secti6ns:61'06-07),'wHjch :proh!blls di'sca'ifninalibn pn'tjie'
[basis of agejn programs:or[activities feceiving:Fedefarfiria'nclal assistance, .Itdpe'sinpLiri'cludej
emplqymerit discrimination;.j-
r.-28 CiR:R.,pt: 31 (U'.'SijDepa'Hmeht'bf-Justice' Regulations.- pJjpp.Grant Programs); 28 p.RlRVpU 4^
;(0.S. Department"of Justlce Regulations -,Nondis^^^ Iguaj,Employment 'Opportunity;; Policies:
'and Pfocedures): ExecOtiyCOrdef No, 1327.9 (e.qu^ protection oL laws,for:faith-based and'.cbmnfiurilty:
.ofgariizations): txec.yllvXOrderT^^^^^^ •l'3559[;!which;prpv!<^^ principles and policy-making
'criterlaffor-partnerships.with^faiih-based and neighborhood orgariizatioh's;

i;-.'28 C-;f!R. pt'.r38 (U.'S.-Oe'pa'rtment ofrJu'stice Regyiati6ns;--iEquarXreatment;ta
;Ofgl;riizatibns);^arid.vyhisllebl6wef pfbtectJonV and.The Natipnal Defense Aulhorizatibri,
;Act^(Np^) for.'f'lswI Y^^^^^ \l2-239. enacted,Uanuary 2, r20'13|( lh0.,Ril6.t Pfbgrartf^fpr
rEnhancemen^pf GonfracI .Employee Whislleblbwbf'Prolectibris.whichpfbtec^^
irepnsai'for ceTtain whistle.blbwing activlties.ib.cbnVectipn wilhfedera^^^^ andj:bnirarts.:

The certificate: set d.ut'belbw is{a.mata^^^^ pf;factjjpon>/hich reljance.'is placed.when'the' ^
^agency"awards the[gfanl, False .cert'lficajipn pTviblaiion certificalipn shall be:grounds!for-^
rs'uspehslbriipf'payni.ents./s.us'pensiph of termlna^^^^ wide:suspensioh or
^debafmerit.

Exhib'rt G
fContrad'or InlTiab'^

IC^ric^'ot.Con^am MK raqUrwrwnl} p«rtiMng to 'F^ti Nonaserinihattoa. Equal fiMtoiM of Faith-Baa^ .OroanizaOo^
'•hav«»dabto*»;pro»eJ>on»'' - . -.i-.i.:-- ...

i«r/ui , ,, . ../■S/'l/siOll'
Page'ii 'of.2 ""
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In the/eyent a.Federal'pr'St^^^^ Federal or.State adminislratlve agericy'malces a finding of.
discriminate due process hearing on' the grounds of race, coldr. religion, natipnaj origin, or'sex
[against a recipient of funds, thisirecipient'-will fbrtvard a.cppy of the'fl.nding.lolthe p,ffice;fpjjpi^vil Rig^
•Uie applicable contracting agency of diyisipp'within the Oepartment^of Health and Human Services, and
tb.lhe Department of Heal.th.arid Human.Se.iyices pffice pf.the pmbudsman.

Tlie Contractor /^ In Section" i .-3 of the General Provisions agrees, by sighatufe.of the Conlractpr'.s
.represeniative as identified .in Sections'1.1-1; and -1.12 6f;lhe General Provision's; to execute the fojlpwihg
fcertificaiiori:

I. ;8y sigriing and submittihg.this'prop'ps^l (cpnva'c Contractor agreesTp.comply.with'the provisions
indicated above.

Conlractdr'Narhe":

—OeuSlsnad 1^ .

5/2/20'2'2'

Date ' FJameTtiaiJtten"' Pearson
Title. Executive Director

i;"
Exhibit .G

'Contractorinitials
;C«rtricaiioh'ot CoiviianM Mih p«itaV^ U) fnittii Noodfa^ina(icf\ EQu«t'rr'**^i^ <>< railh-BMM Ooanuitlons

:viv\* ~ . ,^... 5/2/2022.
;Rt*; iw.i/Vi' Page 2:6r.-2 -Date
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New Hampshire Department.of 'Health and Human.Services
.ExhibitH

CERTIFlCATiON REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C--;Environmehlal TbbaccoISmoke, also khpwn as the Pro-iCW Act pt 1994
(Act), requires thatfsmbking hot";l5e pertriitted in any portion of any indoor facility pwned or iMsed.or
cbntracteVfor byan.entityla used routinely or regulariy for the provision of^health, day.care, educalipny,
or library services tp;children under the_age of 10, if the services are funded by Federal prograrns either
di'recjjyipr through.S^^^^ governments; by Federaligrant, contract; loan; or loan guarantee. The
lavv does not apply to childrenVservices provided in private residences.'facilities funded solely by .
Medicare or.'Medicaid funds, and portiohs.of facilities used'for inpatleht dnjg.or.alcohol treatment, failure
to comply with the,provisions df.'the law may result in.ihe imposition of a,civil rnorletary, penaity.oLup to.
$'1000'per day and/of.the.irhpbsitioh of an-.adrrilhislrative cOmpljahce order..on,the responsible eri.iiiy.

The Cbntractdr Idehllfied in S.ectibri 1,3 bMhe -General Prpv1s;ions agrees, by signature of the'.Coritractbr's
repfesenlatiye asjderitified, in'Section and,1,12;.bf the 'General Provisions, to execute the following
cerbficatipn;

'i. By signing and submitting this contract, IhelCohtfactbr agrees to rhake reasonable'effortsTb, comply
with all applicable prbylsio"hs of Public Law103::227, Part C,;known as'the Pro-Cfii[d.reh';Act.o,f 199^;

Contractor Name:

55/2/2022 fLirvon;
'• cuepBjiwjioe... -

Date. hJam.eiTauren Pearson

Executive: Djre'ctbr

EAbi K-'CerUfication Regartfmg iCoriUadbr
Environm«nlalTobac;».Smoke' • '5/2/202?

• cy/OKhsTiibm^ PageM qf.1. bate" ''



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D48-840A-D26E9188F389

P^^n;Enye)ppe;ip:;8Ppj43^^EFM518:A28D0648p^

New Hampshire Depai^ment Of Health and Human Services

Exhibits

health iNSURANCE'PQRTABILfTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEftflENT

The Gontracton identified in Sectiori T .3 of the General Prbvislbns of the Agreement agrees to
;comply wHh;thelH Insurance Rprtabjlity^and'Accounta^^ AcLvPHblic Law T04-191'. and
>with the Standards for PTiyacy and 'Security of IndVidually Idehtiilable.Heah^^ |nfoTmatldn',.45:
iCFR Part'sT.60 and: 164 applicable t6;bLisiness':assdciatei$. As'defined.herein, 'Business
•Associate' shall meari the'Cbritfactorarid subc6ritfactors-ahd-ag^^ of the Cdritfactdf tlial
receive, use or have access, to protected health information underthisAgreement-and "Covered
^Entity'' s.h;alllrnean the,.State ,of New Pepartment of Health and'Human Services.

:(1) Definitions.

a. '"Breach":shall have the sarne meaning ;as: the term "Breach" in section 164.402; of title 45^
"Code of Federal.Regulaliohs.

;'b| "Business Associate""has^the meaning given such terrninxs.ection 160.10,6^^^^
iOLFederal Reguiatiohli.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning given such-term in section '160.103 of Title 45,
■Cp.de .cif Fed'eral Regu|.aii.ons--

'd.. 'Desidhated Record Set'shall haVe the'sarrie rhea'iiing.as the term""desigriated recort.sef
:in 45XFR Section 164.501.

:e\ ''Bata'-AQQre'Qation'ishall hav:e;the same rneaning as the terrn:"dafa aggregatl.on"iih;4.5-epR
.Section .164.501;.

f., "Health 'Care Operations' shall have the sarne meaning as the term;"healthvcare, operations"'
(in '45iCFR Sectibh wrsbl. ^

i'g.. "HlTECH-Act" means the Health Information Technology for Econorhic and'ClinicaVHealth
Act. Title^lii; SubtitreiD, Part i. &;'2jpLthe;Arnehcan Recoyery^and Reiovestmeni-ActWf
;.2oa9. " ' "" ^ , "

•Ji'.. "RIRAA" means the Health/'Insurance POriabilit^^^^ Act of 1996; Public Law
T 04-1 gi/and the Standards fbr|^^^^ and .SjecUrity-;dftridividu ldentifiabje;;H)ea[th.

• Jnfprrnatidn,-4,5.CF l6iahd;l64rand.,am.ehd

i: "Individual''shall tiave the same meariihg as'the terffi "individual" in 45 CFR.Section 1.60.103;
-and shall Ihclude a person who qualifies as a personal representative^in.accordance.with 45

.  ;CFR Section "IBA^SGlfg^^ ' ■ (

"Pfivacv Rule'Vsh'ail "rfieah the;.S.tahdards fbf PhVacyrofjndiyid.uailyi.lde^
ijnforrnatidri ati45 CFR.Parts 160"ahd.i64,'prd''mu!g^^^ underHIPAA b^the United States'
iAep.adhieht. of Healih:andiHum.ari Services.

I  .' * ^ ^ _ .. . ...
R:, "Protected' Health inforrfiation'^shaii h'ave the safrie meahihg as the te'rlri; "pi:btecled.)iea(th

imfprrriatibn" in A5' GFR:=Sectibh; 160.T03. liitiited.16'the1riformalioh created"oTTeceivjed-bj
;Busitiess.V^.ssp;ciatei^^^^ 9.n behalf of Covered Entjty;

'3/20*14' iBThibiil CQn'tfador'InHlais^
Heil.lh.insvrance'Poilabiiily.^t ^ .
Business As8(xii.aie Agreement . , 5/2/2022;

.iPag'e'l\of.8;' ^Date
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j. "jReoiiired bv Law" shall have the'same meaning as the'term "required by. law" .in 45.GFR
■  Section 1.64;,103..

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department :of Health and Human Services or
his/her desig.nee."

n. 'Security Rule"jshall mean the.Security Standards for the'Protection :df Electronic^'Proteded
Health information at.45 GFR Part 164. Sub'part C. and amehdmentsltheretd.

di "Uhs'ecufed Protected Health rnformation" me.ans prptecledlhealth informatiomt^ Is not
secured.by a.-techriology standard that fenders protected health information .unusable;
unreadabie. or indeciR.herable to unauthorized individuals arid is developed df eriddrsed.by
a standardsdevel.oping orga.nizatio.n that.i.s .accredited, by. the American National Staridafds
Institute.

p., O'ther "Definitions - All tecrt^s not otherwise defined herein shall have4h'e fneariing
established under^S C.F.'R. Parts-160,. 162 and 1,64;. as amended from time!to-ti'me..ahd the

■  HITECH

Act.

(-2) Busiriess Associate Use arid Disclosure of Protected Health Information;

'3: 'Buslness.As^sociate shall hot use", disclo'se. mairitain Of trarismlt.Protecte.d Heeith',
Information (P^l) except;as reasonably riecessafy to provide the servicesdutlined under
:Exhibit',A Of the-Agreement further. Business Associate,; Including but not liriiited to.'atl
:its.directors,. dfiflcefs. employe'es and agents, shall.not .use, 'discjose, maintain pr transrnit,
■pHI/in^anymanner that would cohstitute'aviblatidh of the Privacy and,Securi^,Ruie.

lb''. ' ,BusIhess-Associate-m'ay;use,oridis^^^^
:Fo>'the prdpef- rhahageriient.and administration of the:.Busin.ess;Asspa

'.II. As required by law, pursuant to the teffris.set forth"in'paragfaph d. below; or'
,111.; .For data-aggreg^io.n purposes for the health cafe operations 6f..Gbvefed

.'c:; To the-exterit'Busihess- Assdciate;is perniitted 1)006? thejAgfeerherit.to-dlsctpse P^'|;tb;;a'
'third ;partyr'Business Assoc must dbtain,; prior to. making any is'uch disclosure. ;(i)

^Associate",, lin: accdfdahce. witK Hhe HIRAA PfiyacY.-iSe'curity, and Breach .Notification
Rules pf,:any: breach?®- p* -fhe confidentiality of- thO PHI, .to, the. extent jt has oblalneci
knowle.dge^pTsuch breach}/

:d. The .Buslne's's Associate shajfoof.Auriless such discjosur,e;ls reasonably necessary, to
provide sefvices-lindef Exhibit A.of?Ke.AgfeOrheht, disclpse(3riy PHI iO?6SP.ph®.6'|o ?
request.fbrvdiscipsure pn the ,basls1haf it'iS:required bylaw! without first hotifying''

.  Govbred Entity so that Goyered fentity .has an qpportuhity to .object to the.disclosure and
=t6 seek.appfopfiatb-reiief;^ if'Scfvered Ehl'ity/pbiects to such disclp.sure.lthei'Busi^^ -

I. >Conlf8(^or Initials
Hea!ll^lnyuV8f>« ; •
"Businesi'Xssodiate.Agfeemeril; S/2/'2b22

Pagei.ore ' Date" •
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Associate shaljjefrajn from;disciqsing the PHI, untN ̂ vered Entity has exhausted/all
remedies.

.e; IftheGovered Entity notifies the Business Associate thM.Covered Entity has .'agreed tb
l^'^bound by-additjona^^ restrictions over and above :those uses or disclbsures-or security:
safeguardsjot.PHVpur^^^ to the Privacy and ,$ecuri^ Rule, the Business .Associate
'shall be bound by such,additiblial/estrlctidnsend shall not disclose PHl''in .yioiatipn of
such additional re$trictioriS';and'Shall abide by any additional secCirity'safeguards..

(3) Obligations arid Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business-Associate shall, notify the'Cpyered Entity's .Privacy Officer, jrnrnediately.-
after the' BusirieSs Associate. becOmes.aWareiof;ariy"use or.disciosure pf p
health.inforrriatibri.hot 'provided'fbr by the Agreerherit ihdudihg breaches.of uhs~ecure.d
protected health Information and/or any security, incident that may ihaveen.impact bh the
pro.tected.health iinformatiOfi of the Covered Entity.

b:. .The Business Associate shall immediatefy'perform.al-jsk assessment" when'^il,becomes,,
aware ofany of the-.aboye situations. The risk assessment shaiririclude, but.hot'be.
limited tp:

.o; The riatu're en"d,:e)derit,pf-lhe;prptect^^^^ health" infbrmatibn iri.voiyed, includirig the
.fypes^bf'Identifiers and the likelihood of.re-ideritificatibri;.

0 The unauthorized persbn used the protected'health Irifo'rmatibh of to whom the
:djscigsure wa.s;made;-

'6: 'Wether,the,.:pro.tec.ted health;.rnformetion"was:actually acquired or yieyy.ed
.0 The'exterit to'which. the risk to the'prbtecte'd. health Jnfdrmatlbri has" been

iniitlgated.-

the Business:Associate.shali .complete ffie risk asses.sm.ent .wj.thin 48 hQUrs of the:
[brea'ch.arid i'mnriediatelyTepbrt the findings! of the risk.assessrriehtjh .writing ttf the
OoverediEritify;. " "

rq;. The .Business Asspcafe shaLlicpm^ with all .secjibns'bf'the Privacy; S.e.curifyi and
Breach Notification Sole.

id': fBu'dries's.Asebcla'te:"shall make available.'afl of its iritefhel pbli.cies ari"d prooe'dures.,;bobks!
.  'and records relating t'6 the-use and disclosure of PHI feceived'ffbm.bncreated b'r
lt.dcejYedby!t.he!.By,siness;Assoc|ale;o Entity to-'lheBecfetaryifor
;pUfpdee^-df .tgyered Entity's:cpmbiiance with HIPAA and the Privacy and-
Security BuI.e;. ' ■ •

fi- .
B,usiness>A"s.soclate:shall reguife-;all of its business assdciatesHhat feceive.'use oThave
laccess to RH.|;undet^lhe;A9''eement,: t^^HOreeIn,wrjting'tp adhere;tp the'Same
;res.trict[dns;ahd!con.dh^^^^^ .on Jh.e;use'and d.i.sclpsurepf PHI contamed hereini Including
itherd.uty- to. fetufh !dr:.destfby the PHl as! prpyided under Section thevGpyered Em^^
iShall!becbhsidefed:.'a:difect.tfiifd'party!b!erieficiafy'bf-the;Cbritractb^ebusirie"s
■•a.9CeeJT.ents ywth:Cpn'tfac'tbris:intend associates, who vvill bereceivip^

I  Coniraciof fhiiials

.SuslneVv/Olsbo 5/2/2022"-
Page 3 pl.A ' ' ' :Datev • '
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pursuant tplhis Agreed with fig.ht_s of enforcement and tndernntfrcation from such
b;usiness: a'sso.c)ate,s who; shall be-gpyerned by standard Paragraph #13 of the .standard
cohtfact.'provisionS (P-37) of this Agreerherit for the purpose;pf.use^and, disclosure of"
protected health, information.

yyithih'^^ (5) business days of receipl of a written request from Covered.Entity.i
Busiriess Associate shall.'make available durinig norrrial.busiriess hours at.its offices-all,
records,, books; agfeerhehts, policies and iDroc'edufes'reiatihg to.the use and disclosure;
prPHI toihe;Cpyered,E purposes of enabling Covered Entity to detefmihe'
rBuslness Assoclate's-cpmpliance witlrthe terms of the Agreement.

.With'ihten (.10) business,days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
iBusinessAssocl.ate shall provide access to PHI ir^ a Designated RecO'rd Set.to the
.Covered Entity; ,pr,as:dj.rected'.by Cpyered^E^^ an iridiyidual in order to meet the
.requirements under 45 CFR Section fW.524-.

Within ten' (10) business days, of receivirig a.writt'eri fequest'from Coyered Entjty for^an"
•iamendment of PHI or a ̂record atjout an individual contained in a Designated RecOrd
iSe.t, the Business Associate shallmake-such PHI available to Covered Entity for
erfiendmerit and ihcOrporatejany'such amendment to;ena6ie Goyered^Entity'to fulfijj its
{Obligations Urider.45:GFR Section 164.526'.,

Business Associatejshall dpcument such disclosures of PHI -and 'iriformalion related to
:Such;dlsclosures"as. would be required for eovered Entity to respond "t0"a request by an
;individual for an.accdunting of disclbsuresrof-PHI'in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

•"I

j.' 'Wfhiri ten (tdj.ybusiness days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
ire'quest for anaccpuhting ;of ,disclosur€S.pf,,PHr.Busjness,^^sso.ciate;s'hall make available
Ho Covered.Eritity' sDchHriforrtiatiPh asCCPvered Entity,may/eqiiire to fuifilLlts .pbligations
'tp, p_rqvide.ar)_^accquntlng;.of disclosures with.respect to PHI in accordance with 45,";CF,R
.'Section 1M.528.

k.- In the 'event any individual requests acce'sS'to.ariiendmentrpf. or;accpunting of PjHf
•directly frorn^ the Business Associate.Hhe Business';AssP'ciate "shall within" two .(2)
business days fPrward such requesl.to^Cpyered Entity.- Govered'Eritity shall have the
respprisibliity of "resp6nding to 'fprwardei;re9uests; However, If forwarding the
individuaVs request to Gpyer.ed .Eritiiy would cause Covered Entity- pr the Business

• Ass.ociate'to yiblate;HlPAA.a"ridJh;e;Priyacy:ahd Secunty Rule,- the Business Associate
shall.iristead respond "to",the, indiyidu"ars'"reques,t as re,quired,.by such law--and..ootify
Covered Entity of'such response "as.sodriraslpracticable.

I. Wthin ten JiQ)' b-Usiness .day.s of termination ofHhe-Agreerherit', ifor any. reas"6n, the
Busin'ess./^s's'ociatelslialj,return or cfestroy. as .specJfied'by=Cpyered/EntJty,-.^
received from. o7-crealed of, ■received by the Business y^ssQciatejnvCpnnectjpn the

-  Agreement; and shall not'retain any copies .of ba'ck-up tapes of 'such PHI. If retLifh;or
destructipn ls;npt'feasjb|e,:0,r.;l_h^^ of the PHrhPs.beeh 6theiwjse.-agfee'd,tdiri;
th'e Agfeeriient. Business Asspclat'e shail;cpntinue;tp ;extendH,he:prpte.ctions-.bfHhe
'Ag.feerfierit, to "such* PHI and limit fufther u'ses and ;displps;ures;;,of:;such; PHI%^
purposes thatimake theiretufn ordestfuctidh.irifeasible.'fdr so lo'ng as Business

WtPi:

3/2014- ExWWM Contfaclor Initiala^ .
1  " !Healthlnsi*ance;Pd^^^

;Bu5jne53*^Mdat^^ i5/2"/2P.22
-Pflge.'Coj.S "' ' -" Dale " "



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CE95DE6-BDA2-4D4&.B40A-D26E9188F389

'Do^SignEn^l^:ipj.^143^-4EF^

New Hampishire Department of Health and Humart Seivlces

,Exhibit-l

■Associate,maintains such-PHI. If Covered,Entity, In itis sole discretion, recfuires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ajl PHI, the Busjhess Associate shall certify to
Goyered Entl^%at:the^^^

]4) iObliqatibhs of Covered Entity

.a:. G.oyered Eritiiy shall notify Business Associale ,pf any changes-or limitatipn'(s):if}..its
Notice of Privacy. Practices provided to individuals in accordance with, 45 CFR. sVctibn"
164:520./tb'the e)deht that such change of lirtiitatiori rhay affect Busiri'ess\A"ssbciate's
;use..pr'disclpsure p.fPftI-

b.- Gbvered. Eritity .shall promptly 'notify Business Associate of any changes.ih.'.of feyPcatioh
of permissipp proyided to .Covered Enti^ by Individuals whose PHI may be usedor'
{disclosed by.BusineSs.Associate under'this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
'1.64:506:or45CFR,.Scctipn;164.^^^^^^^

c. iCpypred entity shairprpmptly.notify .Business Associate of any restrictions ori the-'use of
;discipsure pf rBi that;6pye|ed Entity has agreed.tp in accprdance with 45-CFR 1 W,522.
itathe.extent.that such restricVionimaya'ffect Business Associate's use or dlsclbsure of
'PHI.-

(5) Terminatlcnforll^ause-

llh additibnjto.Paragraph tO.of the standard tefms-'and coriditions '(P-'37) pf-thls-
^Agreemenlthe Cpyered Entity.maylmmediately terminate the Agreement 'upon Covered
Ei'-fi-^ -S^ i'^n.ow'bdgepr breach by Business Associate of "the Business Associate

.'Agreement;set ferih herein as Exhibit I,., Xhe C'oyered Entity-may ejther immediately
vtefrfliriate the Agfeertieht of provide afi opportunity for Busiriess AssoCiete:t6'cure the
.aljeged b/eachwithin a tlmeframe specified' by Covered Entity. If Covered Ehtity
rdetermjnes'that neither jerminaUpn ,npr;cureTs feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
yibiatiori to the Secretary .

.(6) Miscellaneous

^a. ^Definitions and ReQulatorv^References. -Alljerrns u"'sed.. but not otherwjse^defined. hereirtv
ishairhave the safne rtieahing 'as those terrhs .In the Privacy and Security Rule; ianiended
•from time to time, preference in the^Agreement, as amended to include this'Exhibit I, fb
-a Sectipn imthe^rlyapy iDd ,§6.cunty Rule means the Section as in effect of .as!
-.amended,

Vb. -Amehdmerit". CoVeTed'Eritibf"-and.Busihess:Associate.;agree to take suchactibn'as^is
hecessaiy tb^amehd the^rAgfeemehtv f^^^ time to time as lb hecesSary'',foj: Gpve'fed^^
Enlity to cpmply.with the changes in the requ'irementSibfjHlPAA, "the Privacy and
SeCuf% Rule;iandjappJicablefeder^^^

'C, Da'ta-OwnefshlD. The'Busihess Associate ■acknowledges;rhat it ha's-'ho owhefshiplrlgh
'wj.th.Tespectfo-.the-RMtpfpyided'by pr-created on

-;d. Irifefofetatibh... The'^parties.a^gf.ee th'at'ahy ambiguity In the Agreement shalf be ry
ip permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, therPrivacyrahd Security Rule'.,

[3/2014" _ ^ _ ExhiWy. ^ ;C<y^8^or
Insurance RpHa^^

Buslness'^aodaie ^ 5/T/.iO 2 2
page 5;pfS. D"aie> " "
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Seoredatioh: lf-:any*te'rm' or co'ndltibn.of.thls Exhibit -I or the' application-.therebf to any
person(s); or circunistance Is held'inyalid. sych invalidity shall not affect,other terms or
^pnditipns which;can .®tfect without the invaiid term or condition; to Oiis :e.ndjthe.
ferms and cpriditiohs^df^ Exhibit i are'declared'seyefable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I fegafdihg'the use and disclosure of.PfHI.,fetufh or
destmction;pf PHi,Je)rt'ensipns of^the prdtedjbns of the-Agreement in^s

':defense;and,inde.mhiflc^tion proyisions;p^ (3);e;and Paragraph 1.3 .of.the. ' '
standard terrris and conditions. (P-37), shall.survive the termination of the.Agfeement.,

•IN Vyi.Tf?JESS;YW P^rt.'ss.hereto have duly executed.this.lExhibi] I,-.

Departhrient of^Heallh.anb Hurrian'Services North Coyhtry iHeaUh' ■Cphsprti um

JheaStatd'tFy: ' .^G^QiUbe-Contractor

ISignature of Authorized, Repres.entative 'SlgnanTre^prAuthbrlzed.Representative
;patrn.cra M. trVVey Lauren Pearson

■Name pf'Authorized. ReRreseptJ
Director;

ative; !Name pf Aythprlzed Representatiye;

'executive Director
TitjeeXAuthprized Representati
c5/.lp/?p22

ye Xit!e;p}Authpnzed Representatiye
572/20'22

Date Date

,3/20X4'

M:.

iEihlbii.l
HeaHh'InsurancePoiiability Act
Business^sociale Agreement

•  Page:'6;ol.6 "

ContractOf, ihliiala^

.. . 5/2/2022:
Dale " " '
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iCERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY-

ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

TheFederajFundirig AcoDuntabil^^^^^ r^ylres prime<awafdeespfjnd^^^
Federai grante equaj to or greater pian $25,000 and awarded on or after October l,'2dl0'..tb report ori

• data retated to executive compensation and associated nrsWtier sub^rants of $25,000 or more.'If the
initial a^rd is below $25';000 but subsequent grant rhodificatidhsVresullin a total award equal.to dr over
!$25,000. the award ls',sut^ect to the FFATA,reporting reqy(rem,ehts, aS'Of the.dale of the award.
'In accordance .with 2 GFR Part 170 (Repbrting'Subaward''ahd ExecutiyeConnpensatidn Iritoirnatidfij, the
iDepartment of Heai.ih and .Hurnan'^rvices (DHHS);rnusl report the following jrifdrTriation for any
subaward or contract award .subject to the^FFATA'reporting requirements:
•1. ,Name.df entity
2. '^duril drayrafd
,^3.. .Fynding'agency
'4. [N>W,bs code for contracts / GFDA program nurrfber for grants
5/ .PCPflrani APM'ce .•
>6. -Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7; location of the eritity
'8. Principleolace of.pertdritiance
>9. 'tJrilque Identifier'drtheentity,'(DUNS
7,0- Total qbm'pensatipn.end names of the .tpp;fiye execu^s'if;

■i.d.T. Mp/e-^an So% of annual gross,'reve^ are frprn the Federal gpvemmerit,-and those-
revenuesare greater than'$25M arihually and

10.2. Gbmpensation'ihformation is.nbt already availabldthfou'gh repdrtihg to the' SEG.

;Rrinfie graht'recipients ^ FFATA.requirj^.databy.lh'eebd oflh"e'.m.orith,'plus 30:days.!jn i^ich.
.the award bravi^rd am^^^
T he .(^nVactbrjden.Ufied in-^ction 1,3 pf the'Generai Provisions'agrees'to comply with'the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accpurftability and.TransparencyrAcl, Public Law.'-id9-282 and Public Law'1"10r252,-
fand 2:GFR.Part 170.{Reporting.Subaward and Executive,Compensation lhformalion),,!and further.agrees
tdhaye the Cohtractbys representative..as*Jden,tifi^ Sections; l.;11 and 1.12 brth"e,Geherai,Prpyisip.ns';
;execute.the fpllpwng Certi^^
The :belpw. named bon^c(pr;agreeslp;pidv^^^ Oeeded Infarmabon'as p.utljn;ed;.ab9ye/td:th^ ^H.
'Depailmentpf Hea!^^ and ftumartJSeryices andjp'cc^ply w[thiajl appji_caWe;provi Federal
'Financial A'ccpuntabH^ '

>Gbntractpr Name:

S/2/2022 rwcvtoyu

(Dife ^ '
Executive 6'irector

E^ibK;T-Cc1t(fKalidnl^afdi09;tl^^ .Cdntfartor.lKKIala^
A^unt8Wljly;Andtr»n»lMre;i^ Ad - , 5'/2/2022-

•.ciM>HMa^uo?i3 ' .Rage i 0( 2'^ :Oate-' .
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FORM A

AS the Cd'ntractbridenlifiedjn 1..3 pf.^e General Rrpvislpns; I certiiy thaVihe responses.to the
'belb^ listed questions are trbe.'and accurajte.

1 . . . 017711198
1:. -The pUNS number for:your enlity is: _1__

f2v In .your business br^brgahlzation's preceding completed fiscal year. did'ypur bushess or prganjza'tipn
receive'(1)!;80 perceht'or more'of your annuatgrp'ss; revenue"jn U.^.'federal contacts, subopntracts,
'{Paris,;gKants,;sul>-gra.nts, arid/or'cppperatiye.agre ar}d {2) $25.bbO,ObO or more in annual'
^g^oss reyeriuesifrpm U.S.cfedera.l contacts, subcontracts, loans,,grants,;subgranl5; and/or
'Cppppratiye agreernents?

NO YES

irtHe, answer tol#2>bpye Is

ij the.answe[ to #2;e^ye'is -YES, please answer the following}

3.; poes/trteipublic have accessio information,aboutilhe compensalibri of the executives In" your
business or organization through-perii^lc^po'ds filed under.sectjon 13<a) pr 15(dj'pYthe'Securiiies'
Exchange Act 6f-193^4:{15,.U:S.G.78rri(a), 'i^iBo(d))orsectjon 6ib4of the lntemai Revenue'Code of
1986?

NO yes;

If lherahswer\to#3.abovCis""yES, stop^here

If the"ranswer tp#3Xabpyp.^'^^ NO, ;ptease;answer the^^f^^^

'4, Ihe names and ,TOmperisati'pn ofrthe five most highly compensated officer's In yb'uKbusiness of.
,prganization'are as'.foilows:'

:Name:

Nariie:

N'ame; _

sName: _

■Name:

Arripurit::,

Ampunt:..

•Amount?.

Amp.urit:;,

AmPurit;'

;CUrt)HMVn07j3_

ExhnjItJ •T:Ceniiicat'ion,Regardii}g'the Federal jPunding'
AccdunlabljityAnd Transparehcy Act (FFATA) Compliance

'  ' " Rage'2.of2^

'Cbniractor4nitia^
.  . 5/2/2022.

iOate; ::' '
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PHHS Iniformation Security Requirements.

'A- P6?Ln!tlP.ns

Jhe follpwihgllerms may be reflectied and have the described meaning in this: document:

.1. "B'rea.ch"' means ^the loss of control,, •.comprdmise, Cihauthdrlzed disclosure,
lihauthorizeii acquisition, unauthorized -access, or any sirnilar term referring to
situations .where persons other than authorized users and for an pther than
authorized purpose have 'access or potential access, to personally Identifiable
:infqrmatfbn. iyhethec physicaj or electronic: With regard 'to Protected Health
:lnfofmation," Breach" shall haye'the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
'164 .402 of Title 45, Code of Federa! Regulations,.

2: 'Gbrnpiiter Security Incideht" shall have- the; same' meaning "Cpmpute.r Security
Jncidentr in section two' (2) of NISI Publication .800-61, Computer Security .Incident,
.jHandlfng .Guiie, ;Naiiona1 Institute-of Standards -and Technology, !U.S. Department:
of Commerce.

3. "Cbhfidehtial ilnformatiori"-or''Confidential Data" means iail confidential .iriformatipn^
d'i.scjpseb by one party-to the other such as all medical, health,'flhancial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without lirriitatioh, iSubstahde.
Abuse; treatmenf; Records', -Case Records,- Protected Health. InfoiTrialion lahd
Pefsonally'ldentifiable Information.

Confidential, Infofmatibh ialso Includes' any and 'ah information Owned or managed .by •
'the;State prNH.-xreafed, received from df on.behalf .of the Departrheht of Health,and
Humen iSeryjces; (pHjfjS) or accessed in the course of performing ic'Ohtracted
ise'rvices - of,which; cOirection, discipsure,;protectjpn.-ahddispgsition is .governed by.
state- or-'federal law.ior feguiation. 'this-'information; includes, b.uj is; ;no.( Nrnited -to,
■Protected Health Ynformation ;(PHI). R'ef^dnal Informatibn (PI), Personat Ki.nanciai
Ijh^ormation;(PfJ)'.; federal Tax ilnfprm.ation ^(FTI)', iSocial Security. Numbers; (SS,N),
,Payment Card [ndu.stjy. JPCl),:andor .pthe/ sensitrye and confidential irifofmatloh'.

.4".- '-End. User" means iany persom or entity ({e.g., 'contractpr, contractpx's empjoyee,;
.'busihe'ss lassociate, "subcontractor,> other:' idpwh.strearn user, etc.) '.that, receives;
'DHHS data "or derivative data In accofdahce 'with. the terms Of this (tpniract^^

iS - ^"HIPAA" rneans ^he Health Insurance Portability and 'Accountability Acf.bf i9!|6.;and;the;
;reguiatip.ns'pi:pmu!gat^^^^ thereunder.-

'6., ''Ihcident" .means :an;.act that potentially ylo[ates:an ;explicit of implied" securiypdiicy,,
•which jncliTdes'atterfipis (elther'fail.ed ox.sucpessfij.O'tp gain unauthorized, .acw.ss'tb a
:system:or its data, uhwahled disruption "or dehiaj-pf service', the .unauthorized, use; of
'3 .sysfem [for the- prpcessing; or storage .of data; and ;Chan9es to "system hardware,
'fifmy/are, ;or .so.^are icharacleris'lics without the owner's ikhOwledge, linstructlon, m
consent. Incidents.'lnclude theloss of data through theft or device misplapemenl,: loss

-.or misplacement-of-ha'rdcbpy ddcurnents"; and'mIsroOting [of phy.sjcai/or .eleptrpnic

■V5..L8$l'u^ale'\W09/lB ..Exfiibirk; CQnlraclbVlfittlalsV :
"  " * ibfiHSJniormaUon ,

:SecuHty:Re9ulrements 'i/2/i022
:Pago;rW9 Da'ia
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

rriail, aH 'Of^wKlch may.'have, the poKntiaj tp put'the. data of'unauthorized
.access,use. disclosure, mbdinc^tioh'br destruction.

7. "Open-yVi/eless 'Network" means any network or segrheht, of-a. network {haj :ls
not designated .by. the. State: of New Hampshire's Departrnent ibf information'
Technology or delegate as a protected inetwprk (designed, testedi and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network .and :'not adequately secure for"the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFk,
PHliOr confidential, (^HHS data.

8. 'P.ersbhal Irifdrmatiori" (or "Pf) meansririfprm.ation .y^ijch cari beused to distinguish
bV .trace an individual's identity,! such as. their name, .'social security nurnber,> personal
information as defined in New HamTpshire BSA 359r.G:1,9, biomelric records, etc.,
alone, or when cornbjried wijh dther personal or-identifyihg iriformatioh .wHich is liriked
oT.iinkabie .to: a speCificj'ndiyidOaJ. such as date and place of. birthi mplt?er!s maiden
harhe, etc.

9: "Priyacy-'Rule" shall mean tHe-Stahdards foKPrivacyof Irldividually idehtifiable Health
infOrrnatipmai 45 .C.H.R;. Parts '0O;and. 184, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States.b.epartme'nt of Health-andrHurnan^Ser^^^

'10. "Protected IHealth Iriformatibh" '(or "PHI") has' the same; meaning .as- proyjded -in/the
definition oT''Rrotected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule;,at 45 C'.F.R. §
T60..1037'

11 "Security JJyJe"" shai[, mo^.tl 'tee ̂ Secyriiy Standards for the Protection .of, .iElectrohiC
Protected Health; Irifb'rmati.On vat '45 !G,,F.R. .Part 1.W; Subpart C,- 'and ;amendment.s:
;theret6.

1'2^"p„r)secured'Prote,cted Heallhlnfbfmatlbri" means Protected Health Informatioh tha't.is
•noT'secu,red''by'a technplpgy ista.ndard ttnat renders Protected Health Hhfomiatibff
uhusabie, runr.eadable, pr jndeclph'erablei 10 unauthorized ^indjyjduals and is
developed of efidofsed :by la standards de.^^elopihg orgahizatioh :that js; a;cprpdi.t^ by
;the.Amefican National'Standards Institute.

PESPQM^^ and the CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use'and Disclbsure of .epnfidenira! Information.

1.. The" Cdntractbr must nbt:use. disclose, .maintain :pr.transnriil• CpnTidentlal llnlprmajtlpn
:excepl as:feasbnably hecessary'es^^ this.!,G,onlract,;,Further,'Gon'trac,toc.-
including b.ut not limited to .all its direddrs, .officeTs,/employees'a^^^^ agents,/must not

■  iuse^dkclpse, rhajntain dr'transrnit PJ^I jn any manner that would cgnstjtute a;.vip
ioftfid Pfiya^'lhd S'scufityRulb".

ifc The .Gpntrador-must; not; d^ Ihfbfmalioh (ihiresiwh^^^^ to a

yiXosl'updaio./lO/WrtA Contra'clorlnitiabprtHSJnldirnatiqn _ '
ISecurityRequlrcfnorits. ;5/2/2022

PaBe.'2of!.9. Qotd"
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request for dlsdbsure dh the-basts that it is r^dired by Idw, in .res^hse to a
subpoena, etc., .without first .notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opfxjrturiity to
cpnsent-pr object to the disclpsure.;!

3. If .'P.HHS :notifies,' the Gontractor Ihat PHHS has. agreed \o be bound by additional
restrictions over-and abOve those 'uses'or disclosures or security safeguards of RHI
pursuant'to the "Privacy and Securify Rijle, the Contractbr must be. bouiid by such
additional restrictions'-and must hot disclose PHI Iri violatio'h of such additional

restnction.Svand must abide by:any .addjtlpnal security safeguards.

4. Xhe-Cohtractor agrees ithat DI^HS Data'or derivative'there fronn disOlbsed fe an ̂End
User rhust' only be "used" pursuarit.to the termsOf. this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS-Data obtained under this Contract may hot'be used fof -
any'pther pUrppses that are npjJndica.ted^in this Cootract.^

6. The contractor agreeS rto grapl.-access to; the data, to; the 'authorized represeht'atiyes
of DHHS for the purpose of* fnspeptihg jto. cohfirm :cornpliance with the" terms- of Jhis
Cohtfact. ' '

!!, METHODS Of SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DAJA

t.. Application Encryption: If-End Use/ is -transrnittihg OH.H'S data cori'tajning
Confidential Data between" applications, lhe:;Cohlra.ctb'riattests the appiicatibnsih'aye"'
been 'evaluated by. an expert knowledgeable In Cyber security and 'that -said
■appjicatiohls'enbjvptionicapabililibsrensureisecure trarismissipn/yiai'the internet.

2-: Cdthputer' Disks arid Portable' Storage Devices. End Use? may ,not use; cbmpTuter^disks
or p.prtable :storage devices.:sucb'asa thunib.drive.-'as a rnethpd,pjiransmltting DHHS
data;

3: 'Ehcrypled Email. End Dser may" bnly~'emj3ldy: ehi'airtb transmit ,Cdhfidehlia| Data, if
:email.;is encrvbt'ed and b.elng sent to arid 'being received by email addresses-of
pers;ons au.th"priz.ed tp'reGeiye such information,

4. 'Ericp^pted "'Web 'Site. If End Use? Bidmploying^Uhd Web ?d'transmit Confidential
.D"ata-i;;the secure- isocket.'layers (SSL): :must be used and'the web site musVibe
^spcure.;: .S^SL;^/}erypTs.d,ala/tjansm^ site^

.5: .File Hb.slihg .Services, ,ais"o; khp"wh as 'File: Shad.h'g Sites. iEnd Use;r may' .npj lu'se' flTe:
hosting, services, such' .a's Dropbox; .or Google^ Cloud Storage." Ho' t'ra'hsmil
^Gonliie.nJlaf Data.

;6.. iGround Mall .Se.rt'ice. Ertd User'rnay onjy. fransmit Corinderitial Data yia c©/^Fe.d:grpLund
mail withihithe continental U-S. and when 'sent:t6:a'hamed.individual..

7.. Baplpbs and^ P0^:- 'ff .End User 'Is ernplpyipg portable, dpvlces to* transmit
Cdhfideritial. Data sajd ;deyic'es..mCis.t'6e ericryptbd anddass.word-prptedted,..

'8;.; Cpen .yyireless NetyyorkS; |End;User may hotrtransmitConfideniial .Data, via ah ippe'h

'V5...Last"upda'to'iWC)9/i8 E.xhtbii 1^' "C^nirac'tb'rlriUtats^-" ■ "
iOMHS jnfofrn8li0,ni .

Siscufity.Requiremenls . ^S/.2/^022
;Page 3!ol9' Da'to
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wireiiess netwdrt<. End User must efnpiby a virtual prfvate nelwojl^ .(VPN)
;remplely:transrTiittjng;y^ an open wireless-network.

-  " .. . ... .
'9. Bernote User Communication. , jf End User.ls enripjoyjng rernote comrriunication to;

access or itransmitVGbnridential Data, a virtual private networi<'^PN) must be
ihstalled ori,;t,he User's mobile :devlce(s) or laptop from which iriforrhatidh will be.
transmitted Or accessed.;

10'. SSH File Transfer Prbtbcol :(SFTP). also known as Secure FHe Transfer protpcpl . Jf.
Erkl User'js 'eoiplpyinQ ;an.' SFTP to transmit 'Confidential Data, Erid 'User wilt
structure the-.Folder .arid acdess •privileges tb prevent inappropriate djsdpsure'of
infprrriatipfi. .SFTP folders and sufchfblders used for transmitting ̂ Confidential Data will,
be coded ;fo'r 2'i-hbur;aut^e|etiori cyd,ei(i.e, 'Gpnfiden'tlalCata.M deleted,every'24
hours):;

11. Wireie^-bevices';, If End User isTransmittirig Confrden^al :Data.;yia yrirejess^ devices;: all
data.nhust be.end^ted.tbprevent.ihiapprop^^ disclbsure.of Information.

RETENTION^ANP piSROSjTlON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The'&htractbrwili oniyjetain the data..ar!d..an>;.'detwatlye;o|'the'data for^the'duratipn of this
Contract. After:'suchNtime, the Cbntractbr Wiii have. 30 days, to destroy'the/data aAd.'any
d_erivative ;ih; whatever 'forrri it imay exist, .unless, otherwise 'required by law "dr pemiitted
under,this..Co,ntract To\Hjs end; .thejparties.mustV

.A. Retentibhi

tv

dloud cdmpCitirig,. cloud service: or clotid stprage.-cap.abijities, and_ incLudes, .backup,
data'andOisasier Recoverylbcatibn's.

2, The/Contractpriagrees proper security rhoriitoririg ca'pabilitieS are> In
place to deiedt Pplenjia[:security' events "that ;can; impact-Stale :bf :NH :systems
■andfer bepart.meht co.nfi'd'pritiarjhfprrhaU^ for cpntractpr'prpyided-s^^

3. The" iCbritractbr 'argre-es to prpvide'' security =swareness,: and' education fpi;- its .End
'Users in supportbf-prptecliripDepartfrieri^ information.

A . The Gpntractpr agrees-to retain all elwtrdhic 'arid hard. cbpies;;'of Confidential .Data
ih'A:secu.re1pcajipn and :identified in section IV. A:2 '

■5. - Th'e i.CbhtractPr _^agrees; Qonfi'dential, Data stored, jn 'a Glpud ;musV: be Iri' a
.FedRAMP/HITECH cbmpliafit :sbiu,tion aridjcprTipTy'with all appUrable, statutes ;and"
reguiations-regardirig the privacy'ari'd.security All se'ryers ;and'deylces .rnus,t_,haye.
.Currently>suppprted and hardened'ppera^^ systerris. the ..latest ariti-viral; a'riti-
'fiacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and .antl-:rna|ware' utilities, The.enyironment, as,a,

■V5.--Last:ijpdat©-1(y09/l8 ... . .ExhiWik.. .Coniractorlniliob
_ JDHHSjn'fonnation,^ ... .

- ''Sacurtly.Roquifcmenls . , 5/2/2022
OalB •• •-
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whole, must:have aggressive intrusiOn-detectiori and firewall 'protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ehsufes its' complete cooperation iwth the State's.
Chief .lnformatip_n Officer in; the detection of any security vulnerabiljty of the-hpstihg;
infrastructure. ' .

B. bisiposition

-1. If the Contractor •will maintain any Cohfidehtiaf Iriforrhatioh on 'its systems (or' its
sub-contractor systems),: \h^^ Cqntra.ctpr'will ;maipt'ain a documented process for
set^rely- ■dis*po.sin'g.,pf -.s'uc^'. data, upon; request Or icpritract .terminatipn-On.d will;
obtain written cerlification for any State of New, Hampshire data; destroyed by 'the,
Contractor orpny subconfractdrs-as a part of ongoing, emergency, and of disaster
recp.^ery pppratlonsu-yVhen.no longer.in; yspi electronic media:cpnta[hing:iState-of-
Ne.w Hampshire 'datia'shairbe rendered, unrecoverable via a secure wipe, program;
Tn laccordarice. =With industry.-accepted ;.standafd.s for secure deletion and .media,
sahitization, id'f .otherwise' 'physically destfbyifig the; media (foT example^
degaussing)" as :descrjbed in NIST Special Publication 800-881; Rev 1,; Guidelines
for jCledia ;Sapiti?atipn, .National Institute of .Standards and Technology, U,-
Department of .Commerce. ■the .Contractor vyili 'document :and' certify In ^writing at
tirhe of the;data;destructidfi,,.ahd will pfovide written 'ceftificatioh' to tHe'Departrrierit
upon request. The written ceftificatioh .will Include :all details hecessafy to
dempnstrate.'-data ;has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
feguiatpry and, pfofessionai standards fpr' ;retentipn..fequiremenb: ^w^ be: jointly,
.evaluated by the Stateiand Contlraclorpripr to destructiorv

'2. Unless otherwise specified, .vvithih" thirty (30) days of the tefrriihatioh; [Of this;
Gphtracl, Coriiractpr agreesto .destroy all hard .copies of .Cdfi'fideritial Data", usifig'/a
secure me.thpi3 such as shredding^

[3:. Unless :Oth'erwse :spec|fied. within thirty ,(30) days of the terrnjnatip.n
Cdhffacl, Cdntfactbf^agree's t6;'Cdfn'p!elely\de""stfoy all elBctfonlG ICphifidehtial Data
by me.ans of data erasufe..'als6 known as secure data wiping:.

IV: PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

Cont'facfo; •agrees Jp- safeguard •(he IbB-HS, !bata rec.eiyed' under -this, •Qpntract, -.and .any
defivatiye'ldataldf fi lesVPsifollow^^

1. The- Gdrilfactbr will "frialdtairi: proper secufily -cohtrpls'; to profect Depa.rtrnent
ppnfidehtial ififOfmatiofi collected', pfdcessed, managed, arid/or-;st6red In the^idelivefy'
pf.cpnjra^ctpd seiv.o V .

2. -The; .Gpntfactor wHf maintain pplj.ci.es. ;anP iprocedures to piplect Department.
cdhfldentiaL infofmatidn th'roughout .the irifo'rniatioh ilifecycie', where ̂ .appiicable,, (ffom;
.creation, trarisfdfifhatibhj. use",' stbfage'arid s'ecufe destfuctibri); .tegardlese of Ithe
media u.sedTp store the,data.(iie., '.tapej'di^^^^^

.vs. Lasl'u^pda|0'1(yCI9/ie .ExWbll'K , Contfaciof Iniliab^
"  DHHiS Irifofmalion _

S«cOrtty"Rfqirffwe^ -5/'2?;2(S2.
f'" ''Pa9«5,"6f.9; ' 'Date "" '
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•3. The, 'Qqntraj:tor wllj maihtain appropriate, 'autheriticatibri arid .aocess iCOiitrols' to
/contractor syslem^^^ Iransmit,- or .store Department confideritial iriforrriatibri
where; applicable.

;4. the Contractor* Will ensure proper secunty mpniioring capabiniies- are .In place to
.'detect potential -security'' events that ban Irhpact State of NH /systems land/or*
Depart.rn®nt confidential infprmatibn fpr cbrilractbr ;pr6vlded systems.

5. The Gontractbr yvili provide iregular''security awareness and education for its''End
Users/iri support of'pro.tectirig:'pepartrnentconfidential'inform,atibn.

6. If the Contractpr wOi be :sub-cpn'tractihg,-any core functions of the-engagement
suppbrtlrig the. services' for' State- of New Hampshire, the Spntractor >yijl maintain a,;
program lof an internal proce'ss bf processes that defines specific, fse;curity'
expecfaiipris/ and mpnitbring .cprnpliance tb-security requirerriehts that;,at a minirrium-
rriatch those for .the:Gontractor,, including breach notification requirement,?.

7. The/Contractor .will •work' with the. pepartrneri,t..'to sign and. comply with" aj), applicable
State bf' New .Hampshire .-arid, Departrhent; systerh access, and authorization; ppii.cies;
and procedures, systems access forms, and cbrnputer use; lagreerrieots fas. pert ;6f
pbiaining _and maintaining access 16' any fDepartmerit systerri(s). Agreements.'will be;
cpmpl.eted .and. signed by the Goiitractbr and -any applicable sub-'cbrilractbrs prior to
systern'.access being authorized,

8; If ihe Department "determinesrthe Contractor 'is /a; Business As.spciaje pursuant to. 45'
GFR i BO.flOS,; the Gontractbr will, execute a HIPAA ;Busiries'S' Associate, ■Agreernerii,
^B^)' with the ppRartmerit and is responsible for .mairilaining' compnaric'e'"with the';

,  agreement.

.9; Tfie; Contractor Will Work' wTlh; the pppartment :ai .its /request Hb complete -a* ISystem'
Managernerit Survey. The, purpose; pr thp ,;suryey is 'jp .enable the department ^arid
Contractor to moriltdr for any" change's in risks- threats, land yulne.rabilities; that;may
pcpur pyer ,the" life of the Cpritractor- erigagemeht. The survey .will, ibe' ,cpmple.te:S
annuajly,: gr-;ari:aifernab tirrie frame"at the Departmentis-.discretiori.with' agfeem'e'rit by
ihe; dontracipr;pr. ;tbe request the survey be -cdrhpleted when'.the'
scope 'of .the;;engage'men beiwe,en;,the;deR and the Gontractorchanges.-

TO. The' Coritfactor will nbt.rstorejfeo/dhg'y'Prjunknpwjngfy. ariy'S New Hampshire
pf; Department data/offshore., for p.Ots.ide.Jhe. ̂ .bpunda.rles ihe United States unless
prior express written, coriserit', is bbtalriefcJ. from., 'ihe .Information fSpcurjty Offjce
leaders_hip;mernbe/-w^ the,Departmerit;

. '.Data, Secunty preach Liability. In 'the"event of' any security ' breach 'Goritracto'f, 'shaJl
fma'ke: /efforts to"; investigate jhe -causes of the breach, promptly take' measures to
rpreverit future -brea-ch; "and rm'inimize, /any damage -"or joss,resulting from; the- breach,
the State shall fecover'.fro'rii': the >COntfactor aircosts/of' resppO-serand recovery fr.om

-OS's:.

V5' last updare 10/09/18 Exhibil K /ConlraclorJniUars ■ .
"V :0HHS In'rorrMUbfi

Securi^ F^eguirdme'nts _ 572/2622/
.  -Pages of 0- ' Data ' '
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Exhibit k

DHHS informatipn Security Requirements

the breach,- Incjudlng^bul npt-Jimited to: :cfedit- rhdhitorihg services, mailing costs arid
costs: asso.ciated: with vyebsite apd te|jephpne call center services riecessary :dye: to •

^the breach.

12. Cohtractbr'must, .comply "with all applicable ■.statutes' and regylatioris regarding the:
privacy-and security of: Cohfidenllal' Irifdrmatidri, and must iri all bihe.r :resp;e:cts'
maintain the..privacy arid security^of PI arid 'PHI-at a level and' scope that is not less-
thari the level and scope of requirements: applicable to -federai .agencies. Including.,
but, riot limited to, prpvisipn.s :q| the p™ of 1974 (5 U.S.C'. § 552a), DHHS;
Privacy Act Regulations (45 G.F.R., §5bX BlPM Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Partis'160 arid 164) that govern protections for iridiyidually .ideritif^^^
informatiori and as;applicable u'ridef State law: •

13. Cpniractg.r'.agrees'tp establish and rii^intairi appropriate admiriistrative,;technical,:and
physical'safeguards: tp protect the cpnfldenlialily of the Confidential :Data-'arid'ito
prevent uriauthori2ecl :use: dr .access'.to l.t The safegu.a.rds rnust provide-a level arid!
scope of security that, is' riot lesS than: the level and scope of: security regu.ire.rnents
.established by the State of New Hampshire, De'partriieht of Infprmatioh technplogy.
Refer;tp Vendor'Resources/Procurement at. https://www..nh:gdv7dbit/verid6r/iridex;htm'
for the Department of inforniatipn; technplogy pplicles. guidelines.: istandards,. .and
^procurement Infbrrriatibri relating tb yeridprs.

14.-Coritractor agrees' lb rhairitaih .;a dbcurhented .breach nplificatlon ;and Iriciderit
^response process. The Cdritractor .will notify the .State'sj .Privacy pfficer and the
•State's iSecurjty Qfficer-of 'any security breach iirrimediately, -at th.e.emai) .addresses
prpvided :ln:j^ecliori. -VL .this Includes a confidential Irifofmatloh breach, ■cbmpute'r'

• security incident. Tor suspected ..b'reap.h y^.ich affects or includes, any -State- of New
Hampshlreaysterns lhat-oOnhect to the State .of New Hamps.hire netyrotic.-

^ i5i .•gpritractpr must' restrict': acces's' to 'the. Cbhfideritiai Data :bbtaine6,' un:der this.
iCpntradjtp. oril^^ Users who need such'.:DHHS Data to
'^rfbrinJheirdfficia^^ dutiesJ.ihlcp,nnecU^^^ .wlh purposes identified.In this Contract.

16. The Cdritraclbr rriust .ens:u.re.th.al:ajl End'Clsers:
:a. "cbrtiply with: .au.ch ,safeguards; :as- referenced in. >Se,ction IV rA. above,

jfhplemerited to protect iCbhfidential Inforrhatipn jhat- is/turnisha.d by DH_HS
iunder IhlsiCoritract from loss, theft bfririadvedent-disciosute.,

ib, !saleguard'this.:iplp^^^^ tirfies.
ic; 'erisure: that, (aptpps and iblher,electronic -deyi.ceslmedia cpritaihirig PHI, PI, or

PFI are en'cfypted arid ■passwo''rd-prdtected., :
d. isendamails .cpnjajriihg^ Information 'only if encTvbted iand .beirid

-'sent tb. arid being .received by d.mai) addl'ssses .of- :pers6hs: authorized to.
Teceiveisuch information. .

-05^

VSiiLes^l updaie lb/09/V8; E^ibil K; iConiraclor Initials
•  "" :DHHSJnfofmatio'n:

•Socuriiy R^uJfOT :5/2/2.Q22
Pa9B..7,o.fj) Data ^ '
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

e,. limit;disclbsure of the Cdrifidentiaimformation'td the extent pefrnitted by lavv;;

■h •Cpbfidenlial Trifprfnation received under this -Coritra'ct- and mdividually
Jdentifiable data derived frpm, DHHS Data,, must be ^stored in an: area that-
.pHysically and techholo'gicariy secure from access :by unauthorized; perspns
iduring duty hour's as well as hon^uty .hours ■(e.g./door lb'ck^^^ card keys;
!blpmetric'iden'tlfiers, etc.).

g.. 'pnly. authorized ;End -Users may transrnlt the.Gpnfideritial D'ata, 'including :ahy
derivative files containing personally identifiabie. information,-and m all, cases,-'
such'data must; be enciypted at lalf times when .in transit, arirest, pr ^.whep
stored on portable.rhedia as required in section IV above.

.h- in; ,aj' pther ^instances Confidential Data must .be; rhairitained. used /and.disclosed 'using; ;apprppriafe s,a^gvards;: as- determined' by -a xisk^ibased.
assessmeht/6f.Uhe.circurhstanc^^ "

i., understand :lhat thelr'^user credentials' (user :name and :password). must not Ibe.
shared yinth ;anypne:- ,End Users wjl) l^eep their ;credentiai; ihfo?matidrl "secCireit
This appliep: to credentlais used to access the site. bJrectly or .indirectly through,
a third party applicatibn. , * '

Gbfitractpr-js responsible; for ;6versight^and cbmpl^^^^ bf [their End Users. DHHSi
reserves .thej right ,to ^conduct onsi.te inspertibns- :tp rTipnitqr -compliance .with Ithls
C.bntraCt, iihcluding 'the priyacy and. security 'requirements: p/pyided in berejn.;
and blhVr applicable laws: and Fedefal. fegulalibris; uhliLsuch'.time. th'e Cohfldentj'aL.Daja.,
is'disposed of-'in.accbfdahce with'this.Gdnt'ract:

y;; Lgss reportihg;

' thei iGbhlractp;r fmus't, indtjfy: ;the/ ^State's; 'Pny.aGY -QWcer ;and Security .Officer of any
Security^ Incidents arid ,Breaches .imm.e.dlately,'at; the;ie;maii, :address^^^^^ i.n
Section Vh

inhe:'Cprijr;act,Pr. mOs^ :fudiVer ;h;andre; and repp.ij Jnciden'ts ;and' Breaches- Involving PH\ in
acoo.rdjn.ce'with the agency% .docu.mented jncjdent: Handling ;and Breach ;lsi6tifjcati6ri

)  prdcedures; arid! in vaccordahce .with ^42 G;F.fe[§§ 431;.30a ;-!!3P6;:, ,ln; .addition 'to. and
. hbtwith"sta"ndingVGbritractbr;s cbmpliance;with,bll .bppiica.bie obiigatipris apd p.rpceduresf

Cbnlractof's" pfbpedbres.must;ajsd'addre^ hdw.'th'o Cbritractdr will:
identify |nciden]s::

2."! Determine if p.ersQnal!y(ibenllfiab|e i.nfprma;tio.ri.Js jnyplyedjn .Incidents;
3. Report suspected bri'cbnfifmed Iricidehts as requifecTiri .this Exhibit orS-37;
'4. Identify arid •.cdhVerie a bore respdrise group: td'determirie, thb ;risk;feyei /of (ri.c.ideTrits

andbeWmineYisktbased/re.spon

V5; Last update 1(V69/i"8 .. CbntrBclorlnlllabN'
bHftS..|n(oiTnation' ^

Security RoquiremeniS: .. 5^2/2022;
Page 8 of?; Date'" 'V;
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PHH.S Jpfprrnatipn Security Requiternents

*VI.

5.; Determine wh.sther .Breach notification'is required,'arid,, if'so, identify, lapprbpriaie
B/ea'ch/notification method.s,; firriing,! sourc^^^ and contents frorii arnpng different
idptlons, and ,t>ear costs" associated with, the .Breach .notice as well, as. ariy ;m[tigat|on
'.measures.

/

incidents iand/or Breaches that implicate Pl. :rhust t)e addressed '.and reported, as
applicable; in .accordance .with NH RSA 359=C;2,0.

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS'Privacy Officer:;

pHHSPriyacyOffi^.r@dhhs^

B;. t^HHSSecu.rJty .Officer;

!b,H H SJ h(ormatiolnSeeu n tyOM^^

v,5. :L6? j.:upid aie.;i
pHHS'lnlomation

;SewSiy Requii^ents.
„  Pao6;9.,of.9

1
CdiStractdrlhitials

Date'
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